RADC-TR-79-285 Final Technical Report November 1979





ODC FILE COP

in the state

n na shi ku sana ka sa ka ka ka ka ka ka ka ka ka ku ku ku ku ku ku k

POLARIZATION PROCESSING TECHNIQUES STUDY

ITT Gilfillan

Mr. Albert Klein

- Dr. David Hammers
- Mr. Masaaki (Tom) Fujita
- Dr. George Ioannidis
- Dr. Nhan Levan
- Dr. Jeffery Bell
- Mr. Charles Lucas



APPROVED FOR PUBLIC RELEASE; DISTRIBUTION UNLIMITED

ROME AIR DEVELOPMENT CENTER Air Force Systems Command Griffiss Air Force Base, New York 13441

120 S 2 ... 80

aster atter

This report has been reviewed by the RADC Public Affairs Office (PA) and is releasable to the National Technical Information Service (NTIS). At NTIS it will be releasable to the general public, including foreign nations.

RADC-TR-79-285 has been reviewed and is approved for publication.

APPROVED:

biesteesseriiveessaareessaare

Rusill D. Sion

RUSSELL D. BROWN Project Engineer

APPROVED:

Frank / Kehn

FRANK J. REHM Technical Director Surveillance Division

FOR THE COMMANDER: John Plans

JOHN P. AUSS Acting Chief, Plans Office

If your address has changed or if you wish to be removed from the RADC mailing list, or if the addressee is no longer employed by your organization, please notify RADC (OCTS), Griffiss AFB NY 13441. This will assist us in maintaining a current mailing list.

Do not return this copy. Retain or destroy.

119 REPORT DOCUM	ENTATION DACE	READ INSTRUCTIONS
TT REPORT DOLUM	ENTATION PAGE	BEFORE COMPLETING FO
RADC-TR-79-285		
Trist E land Schutter		
POLARIZATION PROCESSING	TECHNIQUES STUDY	Final Technical Aepert.
	THE THE T	
(10)	7_11/5-1	9532-
Wr Libert Tlein	Dr. George loannidis	
Dr. David Hamers	Sr- Shan Jevan	30602-72-C-0119 /
Mr. Masaaki (Tom, /Fujita	Hr. Charles Lucas	-
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME	AND ADDRESS	S PROSPAN ELENEN" PPOJECT
ITT Gilfillan	1	1921 1 404 (· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
7821 Orion Avenue	77	15067136 17 14
Van Nuys CA 91409	<u>(6,</u>	
CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND	ADDRESS	12. AEPO# 08761
Rome Air Development Cent	ter (OCTS)	ioverber 1979
Griffiss AFB NY 13441		NUMBER OF PIGES
		52
STORIGATING AGENCY NAME & AD	HESS'T Zillerent trom Cantraling Office)	NU SECUMO DEXES SERVE ADAM.
(12) 155	Į	30LASS1:122
	İ.	ISA DECLASSIF CATTON DOANDAA
Approved for public relea	Repart, ESE; distrization unlimited.	Recor
Approved for public relea CISTREDUTION STATEMENT (*1 20 SZIE SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer:	Repart, ESC; distrizution unlimited. element entered in Black X, -1 ellerent 2007 Russell D. Brown (CCTS)	Recor
Approved for public relea CISTREBUTION STATEMENT (#12) Same Same Same RADC Project Engineer: I RADC Project Engineer: I Radar Detection Signal Processing Clutter Modeling Polarization Processing Dual Channel Radar	Repart, ase; distrizution unlimited. element entered in Slock 20, of different lower Russell D. Brown (CCTS) of percesser and identify by Meck comber Mathematics and Statis	Reser
Approved for public relea CISTREBUTION STATEMENT (#12) Same Same Same Same Supplement Any NOTES RADC Project Engineer: I RADC Project Engineer: I Radar Detection Signal Processing Clutter Modeling Polarization Processing Dual Channel Radar Approact Common processing Dual Channel Radar Approact of common processing Clutter Modeling Polarization processing Dual Channel Radar Approact of common processing Approact of com	Repair, ase; distrizution unlimited. Asses: entered in Sheek X. I different here Russell D. Brown (CCTS) If prevenues and identify by Meek surface Mathematics and Statis Mathematics and Statis Horeways and identify by Meek surface Mathematics and Statis Horeways and identify by Meek surface Horeways and identify by Meek surface Mathematics and Statis Horeways and identify by Meek surface Mathematics and Statis Horeways and identify by Meek surface Horeways a	targets and surrounding d to utilize polarizati trix. Several zetbods s transmit waveform and r statistics. Simulati a significant increase
Approved for public relea CISTERBUTION STATEMENT (# 24 Same Same Same Same Supplementary NOTES RADC Project Engineer: I RADC Project Engineer: I Clutter Modeling Polarization Processing Dual Channel Radar Approximation Serves as a chaff and clutter. A dual information which exists presented for designing a matched coherent received results for various targed detectability for the two	Repair, ase; distrizution unlimited. example of the start of the sta	targets and surrounding d to utilize polarizati trix. Several zetbods es transzit waveforz and r statistics. Sizulati a significant increase

3

kan merina buah mangan bahan bahar
And a second second second second second second and a second second second second second second second second s

UNCLASSIFIED

ing superstant of the second second

INC. STIC NES

e

٠

ŕ

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE(When Date Entered)



SECUPITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE (Poen Dara Entered)

ite in the second

PREFACE

Herterstry of Burtrangevick and seathly on the second

ULT AND SEQUATED STATES AND SUPERIOR STATES

PRYNP

This report describes work performed by ITT Gilfillan for Rome Air Development Center (RADC) under Contract No F306-02-78-C-0119 The Project Engineers for RADC were Mr. Vincent Vannucola and Russell Brown. The objective of this study was to optimize radar systems by using the properties of the scattering matrix, including polarization and statistical, to design the waveform and receiver. The report contains results of computer simulations which compare target detection performance for derived dual channel systems which incorporate processing techniques utilizing the scattering matrix, against that of conventional single channel systems.

Analytical and systematic approaches are described for five techniques which lead to dual channel optimum processing. Finally, the statistical target and chaff models are formulated and described as they are applied to computer simulation for system evaluation.

The report was edited by Mr. Albert Klein who also contributed to Sections 3, 5, and 6. Dr. David Hammers supervised the signal processing and analysis tasks, which were performed by Mr. Masaaki (T.-m) Fuitta, Dr. George Ioannidis, and Dr. Nhan Levan. Dr. Jeffery Bell wrote Section 4 on modeling and simulation and contributed to Sections 1 and 2. Mr. Charles Lucas was responsible for the signal processor design.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section			Page	
	FORI	EWORD	İİ	
Ī	INTRODUCTORY SUMMARY			
	1.1	Background and Problem	1-1	
	1.2	Approach]-!	
	1.3	Results and Conclusions	1-2	
2	PROI	PROBLEM FORMULATION		
	2.1	Polarization Properties of Targets and Clutter	2-1	
	2.2	Scattering System Formulation	2-3	
	2.3	Computation of Return Signal Covariance Matrix	2-5	
		2.3.1 Definitions of Important Matrices	2-5	
		2.3.2 First Method	2-6	
		2.3.3 Second Method	2-7	
		2.3.4 Further Notes	2-8	
	24	Covariance Matrices of Point Target in Chaff	2-10	
3	OPTI	NAL TRANSMIT WAVEFORM AND		
	RECI	EIVER DEVELOPMENT	3-1	
	3.1	Finite Dimensional Space	3-2	
		3.1.1 Generalized Vector Approach	3-2	
		3.1.2 Vector Approach Waveform Design	3-6	
		3.1.3 Generalized Matrix Approach	3-8	
		3.1.4 Maximum Likelihood Detector	3-14	
		3.1.5 Preliminary Design of the Processe.	3-17	
	3.2	The State Space Approach	3-21	
		3.2.1 State Space Modeling of Radar Targets and Clutter	3-21	
		3.2.2 Optimum Receiver Design: The Case of a Point Target		
		in a Cloud of Chaff Dipoles	3-26	
		3.2.3 State Space Summary	3-31	
	3.3	The Fredholm Integral Equation Approach	3-31	
		3.3.1 Integral Equation for the Filter Q_0	3-32	
		3.3.2 The System of Fredholm Integral Equations for		
		$D_0(t, u) = [D_0^{ij}(t, u)]$	3-33	

A SHORE A SHARE A S

hereardeannant Annardiaeanannan lasse an a

sector of the sector and the sector of the s

では、日本にあるこので

.

)

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

where a the stores

ł

the second sector and the second second second second second second second second second second second second s

A STATE AND A STATE AND AND AND AND AND A STATE AND A

Section			Page	
		 3.3.3 Integral Equation for the Filter E₀ 3.3.4 Approach to Solving Equations 3.3.5 Fredholm Approach Summary 	3-33 3-34 3-35	
	3.4	Stokes Formalism	3-35	
		3.4.1 Stokes Model	3-35	
4	MODELING AN: SIMULATION			
	4.1	Target Models	4-1	
		 4.1.1 Methodology 4.1.2 Target: A Collection of Scatters 4.1.3 Radat Cross Section Validation 4.1.4 Covariance Matrix 	4-1 4-1 4-3	
	4.2	Chaff	 -8	
		 4.2.1 The Dipole Chaff Cloud Model 4.2.2 Theoretical Covariance Matrix 4.2.3 Stochastic Model Derived From Autoregressive Process 4.2.4 Covariance Matrix Validation 	+-8 +-8 +-12 +-18	
	4.3	Simulation	4-18	
		 4.3.1 Overview 4.3.2 Target 4.3.3 Chaff 4.3.4 Processing Algorithms 	4-18 4-18 4-23 4-23	
5	COMPUTER SIMULATION RESULTS			
	5.1	Simulation Parameters	5-1	
		5.1.1 Target and Chaff Models5.1.2 Definition of s/c Ratio5.1.3 Qualitative Assessment	5-1 5-3 5-3	
	5.2 5.3 5.4	Stokes Approach Pesuits Vector Approach Results Matrix Approach Results	5-4 5-5 5-6	
		 5.4.1 Dual Channel Results 5.4.2 Matrix D al vs Single Channel Results 5.4.3 Transmit Waveform Selection 5.4.4 Receiver Matrix 	5-6 5-8 5-13 5-14	

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

. چې بو

が知られ

The second second

le l'écontral

J. W. W. W.

ийн нан на самаро сама в вин от вести бавааги на вологи на воло по воло и укустралиса и уко на вологи и на поло

المحققة الم

ويتعظيمين بمريحه عاد

و بيت

Section		Page
6	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	6-1
	REFERENCES	6-4
Appendix		
А	A MODEL FOR THE SIMULATION OF THE SPECTRAL AND POLARIZATION CHARACTERISTICS OF CHAFF	A-i
В	LIKELIHOOD DETECTION	B-1
C	CONSTRAINED OPTIMIZATION OF S/C	C-1
D	SIMULTANEOUS DIAGONALIZATION OF TWO COVARIANCE MATRICES	D-1
E	BHATTACHARYYA DISTANCE B FOR GAUSSIAN DENSITIES	E-1
F	AUTOREGRESSIVE MODELING	F-1

EVALUATION

Air Force radar systems must operate against natural and man-made interference, particularly clutter and chaff. This program has investigated new methods of target detection in dual polarization radar systems. Contrasting scatter in polarization between targets and chaff is exploited to enhance target detection.

Of significance in this study are design methods for polarization coded transmit waveforms and matched receivers. A simulation was performed for analysis of potential improvement factor. This contract supports TPO R4B, Surveillance ECCM.

Rusicl (D. Srown RUSSELL D. BROWN Project Engineer

anaranana anananana anana ana

hysister in surant surant several solution (star) normer and solutions and solutions and solutions and solution

ACCESS. DE POP WTIS T:B DEC i Di 🖓

Section 1

INTRODUCTORY SUMMARY

1.1 BACKGROUND AND PROBLEM

Conventional radar signal processing techniques use Doppler and polarization information in discriminating target returns from chaff and other forms of interference. These two discriminants are used independently; most often in single channel system:. For example, the polarizations of the transmit and receive antennas are fixed and determined by the combiner. On the other hand, spectral processing is performed by the receiver processor on signals that have already been combined by the antenna. As a result, such systems do not exploit the statistical properties of the target and chaff scattering matrices, which include both spectral and polarization information.

The utilization of this information which exists in the scattering matrix should be more fully exploitable in a dual-channel system, relative to the more conventional single channel system. Thus the basic objective of this effort was to explore the merits of performing the signal processing in a dual-channel system, to develop the optimum combined spectral and polarization processing approach. This involves determining the optimum transmit waveform and coherent receive polarization and time weights for each pulse in a burst. The criterion of optimality is to maximize the probability of target detection for a given false alarm rate attributed to the interference.

1.2 APPROACH

The basis of our approach was to formulate the system in an operator theoretic manner, such that the resulting approach would be readily amenable to be validated by computer simulation. We started by developing a range/Doppler spread dual channel scattering formulation, since this affords complete information on the target operato. However, we reduced the problem to a Doppler spread point target in a dual channel formulation for computer simulation, and concentrated on this during the bulk of the study.

Several system models were developed and used in the analysis. They include a matrix receiver weighting method, a vector receiver weighting method (essentially a subset of the matrix method) a state space approach, a Fredholm integral approach, and a Stokes vector approach. (The Stokes approach is a single pulse polarization processing scheme, which has no spectral processing capability. It was investigated in a prior study and reported liere only for the sake of completeness.) The matrix and vector methods, as well as the Stokes approach were simulated on a digital computer to evaluate their performance. The state space approach was carried to the point of an optimum receiver design, given the transmit waveform and target/clutter scattering properties. The Fredholm integral equations were formulated to the extent of developing the system of equations with target clutter scattering matrices.

In order to perform the simulations, it was necessary to have adequate models of the target and chaff. We chose the BQM-34A as our target model since we have validated simulated res plots with actual measurement data. This target model is deterministic, and consists of mathematical expressions for the elements of the scattering matrix which are functions of the target orientation with respect to the radar, and to the carrier frequency of the emitted signal.

Chaff was modeled as a collection of dipoles with selectable preferred orientations. The dipole cloud was further described by Doppler and dipole rotation statistics. From the distribution of the dipole crientations and the spectral statistics, a theoretical covariance matrix was derived. This matrix was then used in conjunction with the chaff model. Simulated signatures were derived from the target model by sampling its scattering matrix at various aspect angles corresponding to a trajectory. The simulated chaff signatures were derived from the same sample rates. Once these simulated signatures were generated, correlation functions (covariance matrices) were created. The optimum dual-channel waveforms and receivers were then computed through application of the various techniques developed (matrix, vector, and Stokes approaches).

The figures of merit used in the evaluation were probability of detection and target-to-chaff ratio improvement. The various optimum dual channel systems were simulated and compared with single channel simulation results, and with the single pulse Stokes formulation results.

1.3 RESULTS AND CONCLUSIONS

The most significant results are plots of probability of detection vs signal-to-chaff power ratio generated from simulation outputs which compares dual channel performance against single channel. An example is shown in Figure 1-1. Here we see the probability of detection vs input signal-to-chaff ratio for a dual channel system using matrix receiver weighting. Three curves are also shown for conventional single channel systems. The conventional systems are assumed to have the same polarization during both transmit and receive. Vertical, horizontal, and right circular polarizations are shown. Each of the conventional systems is assumed to have a filter matched to the transmit waveform. The dipole distribution of ±45 degrees means that the dipoles in the chaff cloud are uniformly distributed between ±45 degrees from the horizontal; yielding a partfally preferred orientation in that direction. The pulse sample rate was 3 msec, such that the target model scattering matrix is reasonably decorrelated pulse-to-pulse (approaching a Swerling II model). The curves show that the probability of detection is far greater in the dual channel system than in any of the three conventional single channel systems.

All of the simulation results reported upon yield to the same basic conclusion: that is, the exploitation of the polarization and spectral spread scattering properties of the target and chaff in a dual channel matrix configuration, provides superior target detection performance compared to conventional single channel matched filter systems. The degree of target detection enhancement is a strong function of the pulse-to-pulse



ロマンドレンションションション

adultan samhara, yiken shiran dalaharan san ya

Figure 1-1. Dual vs Single Channel RT3 Target

correlation property of the target scattering covariance matrix. A Swerling II type target which is uncorrelated pulse-to-pulse, will perform better than a Swerling I, which is completely correlated pulse-to-pulse. In the latter case however, dual channel performance is still better than the conventional single channel.

In view of the results, it is recommended that further study be performed to more fully define the practical advantages of the dual channel configuration. This would involve application of a typical surveillance radar implementation incorporating MTI type processing in conjunction with the polarization discriminant. A preliminary design of the dual channel system would be undertaken to provide qualitative cost assessment against single channel systems.

Further analytical work is also recommended to develop the state space approach for waveform design and computer simulation. Finally, the range spread properties of the target should be considered as an added discriminant toward optimizing target detection in clutter.

1-3

Section 2

PROBLEM FORMULATION

The purpose of this section is to mathematically formulate the problem with the aid of scattering operator theory. Using this approach, we treat the target as a system which is characterized by a scattering matrix (operator). The function of this scattering matrix is to operate on incoming or incident radar signals (waves) to produce backscattered or output signals. This represents a linear coherent dual or two port system which can account for the horizontal and vertical polarizations. If the transmitted radar signal is a two-element polarization vector which is operated on by the 2×2 target scattering matrix, then the corresponding two-element vector scattered back to the radar is considered to be the radar receiver input. This receiver input is then operated on by the radar in processing the signal.

A block diagram c. this total process is depicted in Figure 2-1. Here we see dual channel signal modulation during the transmitting process. Likewise, the dual channel receiver process is shown operating on the backscattered signal from both the desired target and the undesired clutter. The basic problem treated in this study is to determine the optimum combination of dual channel signal waveform (including the transmit antenna polarization) and the dual channel signal processing (including the receive antenna polarization). By optimum we mean that which yields the maximum probability of detection for a given false alarm rate.

The approach is to solve for the dual channel transmit wavetorm (optimum) which provides the maximum separation of received target and clutter covariance functions. This requires a vector form of the scattering operator to effectively manipulate the mathematical functions inherent in the covariance matrices, so as to properly isolate the clutter return from the target plus clutter return. Once this is obtained, the receiver function is derived to maximize the probability of detection.

Since a key element in designing the optimum dual channel system is knowledge of the target and chaff covariance matrices, we will also develop a methodology in this section for computing these matrices for use in optimizing the system design.

2.1 POLARIZATION PROPERTIES OF TARGETS AND CLUTTER

It should be fairly obvious that more information about a target and background exists in a dual channel polarization sensitive system than in the conventional single channel system. Since our goal here is to include dual channel scattering characteristics into a system design, let us briefly review a few important known polarization sensitive characteristics about targets and clutter.

In the area of clutter suppression we know that polarization sensitivity of rain has been well established, and that circular polarization can be used to cancel isotropic rain. More recent approaches [Beguin (1975), Nathanson (1975)] have improved on this by estimating



U(t) BASIC UNMODULATED CARRIER SIGNAL £ M(t) DUAL CHANNEL TRANSMITTED SIGNAL MODULATION OPERATOR ÷ A_T{t} ≟ TRANSMITTED ANTENNA POLARIZATION OPERATOR $H_T(t,\tau) \neq TIME-RANGE TARGET SCATTERING OPERATOR$ $H_{c}(t,\tau) \doteq TIME-RANGE CLUTTER SCATTERING OPERATOR$ A_Rit) **# RECEIVED ANTENNA POLARIZATION OPERATOR** G(t)DUAL CHANNEL RECEIVER SIGNAL PROCESSOR OPERATOR -Z(t)÷ DETECTED SIGNAL

Figure 2-1. Dual Channe! Scattering System

0032

ichter seinder Under Amtichantica bei under Statischer Statis Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statis Statischer Statis Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statischer Statis Statischer Statis Statischer Statische the ellipticity of nonisotropic rain and then adaptively varying the horizontal and vertical polarized receive channel to enhance suppression. For target enhancement, it has been found that pulse-to-pulse variation of polarization of a transmitted signal will tend to decorrelate target returns in a manner similar to that achieved by frequency variation. Poelman (1978) analyzes this problem relative to simple targets and shows that considerable improvement can be achieved in target detectability through polarization agility. The same concept has also been applied to improve angle estimation in a multipath environment [Ewell, et al. (1971)].

The pulse-to-pulse correlation phenomena for targets and rain may also be extended to other types of gro ad and sea clutter. For example, backscatter from manmade clutter, such as buildings (cities), tends to exhibit much variability (10 to 20 dB) between H and V responses, whereas mountainous areas tend not to exhibit such deviations. Angles of incidence and wavelength influence this heavily. More variability exists at smaller aspect angles and lower frequencies. For example, at angles of incidence less than 10 degrees, the variation in the VV/HH ratio has been measured at C-band to be about 14 dB [Daley (1968), city of Phoenix].

Chaff drops (of interest in this study) are characterized by metallic type dipoles which are cut to resonate at the radiated frequencies of the radars they are designed to confuse. As with target scattering surfaces, maximum backscattering occurs when the majority of the dropped dipoles are oriented parallel to the E-field of the transmitted signal. After the chaff has been dropped dispersion occurs (due either to air conditions or by design) so that the principle plane of the dipoles in the chaff cloud changes with respect to space and time. The changes that occur can be correlated with wind characteristics. Relative to sampling time, it is possible for a polarization diverse radar to make estimates of the polarization properties and thus adapt in such a way as to maximize the target-to-clutter ratio. The bases for utilization of these polarization properties are formulated in the following sections.

2.2 SCATTERING SYSTEM FORMULATION

is the second

The relationship between the polarization sensitivity of targets and background as applied to radar systems, can be described by a dual channel (or 2-port) operator as shown in Figure 2-1. In this formulation we consider changes in the wideband range dependent scattering properties as well as longer time (pulse-to-pulse) scattering properties due to motion. As a result, both interpulse and intrapulse signal modulation and the corresponding optimum receiver can be derived to maximize the signal-to-background ratio.

Referring to Figure 2.1, we find that the transmitted signal is the 2 x 1 complex vector X(t) where elements $x_1(t)$ - the vertically polarized component - and $x_2(t)$ - the horizontally polarized component - are functions of the time variable t. $-\infty < t < \infty$. Similarly, the received signal will be a 2 x 1 vector denoted by Y(t). The scattering matrix – which relates the relative amplitude and phase of the incident and backscattered electric field vectors – of a complex radar target is given by a 2×2 matrix of the form:

$$H(t,\tau) = \begin{bmatrix} h_{11}(t,\tau) & h_{12}(t,\tau) \\ h_{21}(t,\tau) & h_{22}(t,\tau) \end{bmatrix}$$
(2-1)

Here, the entries $h_{ij}(t,\tau)$, i, j = 1,2, are taken to be complex Gaussian processes, t is the time variable, and τ is the space variable – measured in units of two-way travel time to the reflection point on the target.

From the scattering approach, a complex radar target then admits the input-output dual channel or two-port description:

$$\mathbf{Y}(t) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \mathbf{H}(t,\tau) \, \mathbf{X} \, (t-\tau) \mathrm{d}\tau, \qquad (2-2)$$

$$= \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} H(t,t-\tau) X(\tau) d\tau.$$
 (2-3)

These equations form the familiar linear relationship between the input signal (X) and output (Y) when operated on by a system. At this point it is convenient to introduce a scattering rector which has the same elements as the matrix $H(t,\tau)$ and is defined by:

$$\widetilde{S}(t,\tau) = [h_{11}(t,\tau), h_{12}(t,\tau), h_{21}(t,\tau), h_{22}(t,\tau)]$$
(2-4)

where ~ denotes matrix transposition.

KINA DAVIDA UNVLAND

It then follows that (3-2) can be written as

$$Y(t) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \begin{bmatrix} x_1(t-\tau) & x_2(t-\tau) & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & x_1(t-\tau) & x_2(t-\tau) \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} h_{11}(t,\tau) \\ h_{12}(t,\tau) \\ h_{21}(t,\tau) \\ h_{22}(t,\tau) \end{bmatrix} d\tau$$

or,

$$Y(t) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \underline{X}(t-\tau) S(t,\tau) d\tau \text{ (say).}$$
(2-5)

where

$$\underline{X}(t-\tau) = \begin{bmatrix} x_1(t-\tau) & x_2(t-\tau) & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & x_1(t-\tau) & x_2(t-\tau) \end{bmatrix}$$
(2-6)

Similarly, (2-3) can be written as

$$Y(t) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \underline{X}(\tau) S(t,t-\tau) d\tau.$$
(2-7)

Equations (2-5) and (2-7) now define the received signal vector Y in terms of the transmit matrix \underline{X} and the scattering vector S.

2.3 COMPUTATION OF RETURN SIGNAL COVARIANCE MATRIX

2.3.1 Definitions of Important Matrices

Since knowledge of the covariance matrix of the target and clutter returns are of major importance in designing the optimum system, we will, in this subsection, define the covariance matrix and devise two approaches for computing it. Here we define a general expression for the covariance matrix $K_y(t,w)$ of the received signal Y(t) – which is a complex Gaussian process with zero mean. Thus, let $E(\cdot)$ denote the expectation operation and $\frac{1}{2}$ stand for the complex conjugate transpose, then

$$K_{y}(t,w) = E[Y(t)Y(w)^{*}]$$

$$= \begin{bmatrix} E[y_{1}(t)y_{1}(w)^{*}] & E[y_{1}(t)y_{2}(w)^{*}] \\ E[y_{2}(t)y_{1}(w)^{*}] & E[y_{2}(t)y_{2}(w)^{*}] \end{bmatrix}$$
(2-8)

Before proceeding to derive the two methods of computing the covariance matrix, it is instructive to define two new matrices which have the same information as the scattering matrix H(t,r), Equation (2-1). They are

$$M(t,\tau) = \begin{bmatrix} h_{11}(t,\tau)I_2 & n_{12}(t,\tau)I_2 \\ h_{21}(t,\tau)I_2 & h_{22}(t,\tau)I_2 \end{bmatrix}$$
(2-9)

39q

$$N(t,\tau) = \begin{bmatrix} H(t,\tau) & 0_2 \\ 0_2 & H(t,\tau) \end{bmatrix}$$
(2-10)

where I_2 is the 2 X 2 identity matrix, while O_2 is the 2 X 2 zero matrix. 2-5

2.3.2 First Method

We now present the first method of computing $K_y(t,w)$ using the target scattering vector $S(t,\tau)$. For this we define the scattering rector covariance matrix $K_S(t,\tau,w,\sigma)$ as

$$K_{S}(t,\tau,w,\sigma) = E[S(t,\tau) \cdot S(w,\sigma)^{*}]$$
(2-11)

Next, we have

$$M(t,\tau) \begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} h_{11} & 0 & h_{12} & 0 \\ 0 & h_{11} & 0 & h_{12} \\ h_{2i} & 0 & h_{22} & 0 \\ 0 & h_{21} & 0 & h_{22} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} h_{11} \\ h_{12} \\ h_{21} \\ h_{21} \\ h_{22} \end{bmatrix} = S(t,\tau)$$
(2-12)

where the h_{ij} 's are functions of i and τ . Similarly, it is easy to verify that

$$\widetilde{N}(1,\tau) \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{i} \\ \mathbf{0} \\ \mathbf{0} \\ \mathbf{1} \end{bmatrix} = \mathbf{S}(1,\tau)$$
(2-13)

Therefore

$$S(t,\tau) - S(w,\sigma)^* = M(t,\tau) \begin{bmatrix} i \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 0 & 0 & 1 \end{bmatrix} \quad \overline{N}(w,\sigma)$$

or

and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

$$S(i,\tau) \cdot S(w,\sigma)^* = M(t,\tau) \cdot \underline{1} \cdot \overline{N}(w,\sigma) = N(t,\tau) \cdot \underline{1} \cdot M(w,\sigma)^*$$
 (2-14)

where - indicates complex conjugate and

where

$$\underline{\mathbf{I}} = \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{i} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{i} \\ \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} \\ \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} \\ \mathbf{1} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{1} \end{bmatrix}$$
(2-15)

Consequently.

$$K_{S}(t,\tau,w,\tau) = E[(M(t,\tau) \cdot \underline{I} \cdot \overline{N}(w,\sigma)] = E[N(t,\tau) \cdot \underline{I} \cdot M(w,\sigma)^{*}] \quad (2-16)$$

It then follows from Equations (2-5) and (2-8) that the covariance matrix $K_y(t,w)$ of the received signal Y(t) is given by

$$K_{y}(t,w) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \underline{X}(t-\tau) \cdot K_{S}(t,\tau,w,\sigma) \cdot \underline{X}(w-\sigma)^{*} d\sigma d\tau , \qquad (2-17)$$

where $K_S(\cdot)$ is the target scattering vector covariance matrix and $\underline{X}(\cdot)$ is the transmitted signal matrix defined in Equation (2-5).

2.3.3 Second Niethod

The second method does not lead to a direct computation of the covariance matrix. Instead, a \cdot rctor is computed, which has the same elements as those found in the covariance matrix. This covariance vector, as we will call it, is 4x1 and defined by

$$\tilde{\kappa}_{y(1,w)} = [K_{y_{11}}(t,w), K_{y_{12}}(t,w), K_{y_{21}}(t,w), K_{y_{22}}(t,w)]$$
 (2-18)

where $K_{y_{ij}}(t,w)$ are the elements of the covariance matrix in Equation (2-8).

If we further define the vector

$$\widetilde{X}(t-\tau, w-\sigma) = [x_1(t-\tau)\overline{x}_1(w-\sigma), x_1(t-\tau)\overline{x}_2(w-\sigma), x_2(t-\tau\overline{x}_1(w-\sigma), x_2(t-\tau)\overline{x}_2(w-\sigma))]$$
(2-19)

the covariance vector is given by

$$\kappa_{y}(t,w) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} E[M(t,\tau) \cdot \overline{N}(w,\sigma)] X(t-\tau,w-\sigma) \, d\sigma d\tau \qquad (2-20)$$

This may be written as

$$K_{y}(t,w) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} K_{H}(t,\tau,w,\sigma) X(t-\tau,w-\sigma) d\sigma d\tau, \qquad (2-21)$$

where

$$K_{H}(t,r,w,\sigma) = E[M(t,r) \cdot \overline{N}(w,\sigma)]$$
(2-22)

is defined as the scattering matrix covariance matrix.

If the entries of $H(t,\tau)$ and $H(w,\sigma)$ are uncorrelated for $\tau \neq \sigma$ - that is, when the return signals from different points on the target are uncorrelated - then

$$\kappa_{y}(t,w) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} E[M(t,\tau) \cdot \overline{N}(w,\tau)] X(t-\tau,w-\tau)d\tau. \qquad (2-23)$$

It is important to note that

$$M(t,\tau) \cdot \overline{N}(w,\sigma) = \begin{pmatrix} h_{11}\overline{h}_{11} & h_{11}\overline{h}_{12} & h_{12}\overline{h}_{11} & h_{12}\overline{h}_{12} \\ h_{11}\overline{h}_{21} & h_{11}\overline{h}_{22} & h_{12}\overline{h}_{21} & h_{12}\overline{h}_{22} \\ h_{21}\overline{h}_{11} & h_{21}\overline{h}_{12} & h_{22}\overline{h}_{11} & h_{22}\overline{h}_{12} \\ h_{21}\overline{h}_{21} & h_{21}\overline{h}_{22} & h_{22}\overline{h}_{21} & h_{22}\overline{h}_{22} \\ \end{pmatrix} = \overline{N}(w,\sigma) \cdot M(t,\tau),$$

$$(2-24)$$

where the h_{ij} are functions of t and τ , while the \bar{h}_{ij} are functions of w and σ .

2.3.4 Further Notes

It is important to note that in the dual channel description above (Equations (2-2) and (2-3)) a radar target is characterized by a linear system whose impulse response matrix is the target scattering matrix (H(t, τ) (Equation (2-1)). However in this case, the entries of H(t, τ) are random processes and, in general, are unknown. Thus from a system theoretic viewpoint, we have a linear random system and our problem is basically that of "identifying" the random entires $h_{ij}(t,\tau)$ of its impulse response matrix H(t, τ). To this end we have transformed Equation (2-2) into Equation (2-5) by introducing the scattering vector S(t, τ) from Equation (2-4) and the transmit matrix $\underline{X}(t-\tau)$ from Equation (2-6). This is justified by the fact that Equation (2-2) when written out in full becomes

$$\begin{bmatrix} y_{1}(t) \\ y_{2}(t) \end{bmatrix} = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \begin{bmatrix} h_{11}(t,\tau) \ x_{1}(t-\tau) + h_{12}(t,\tau) \ x_{2}(t-\tau) \\ h_{21}(t,\tau) \ x_{1}(t-\tau) + h_{22}(t,\tau) \ x_{2}(t-\tau) \end{bmatrix} d\tau$$
(2-25)

Then each of the scalar terms

hendi uyukusu ketikisterinsu halisa kutuma kutu kita kutu

ny kana sean kanahanan harangan

weitereter Astronomiscon Nerman auf autoritate

$$\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} h_{ij}(t,\tau) = X_{K} (t-\tau) d\tau , i, j, k, = 1, 2, \qquad (2-26)$$

is actually the output of a linear scalar (i.e., single input-output) system whose impulse response function is the scalar random function $h_{ij}(t,\tau)$ and whose input is the scalar function $x_k(t-\tau)$. Since the system is linear, Equation (2-26) can also be regarded as the output corresponding to the input $h_{ij}(t,\tau)$ (in time and space) of the system whose impulse response is $x_k(t-\tau)$. Hence Equation (2-2) becomes Equation (2-5) in which the four scalar inputs $h_{ij}(t,\tau)$, i, j = 1, 2, are arranged into the 4 X 1 scattering vector $S(t,\tau)$. Hence, it is easy to see that Equation (2-5) is a linear transformation from a 4-dimensional space into a 2-dimensional space. Since the input vector $X(t-\tau)$ is a 2 X 1 vector, Equation (2-2) is just a linear transformation from a 2-dimensional space to a 2-dimensional space.

The idvantages of Equation (2-5) are many fold First, the problem of identifying the matrix H(t, τ) now becomes that of identifying the vector S(t, τ) from the output data Y(t). This allows one to are techniques of signal design, processing and simulation in radar problems. Secondly, in computing the output covariance matrix K_y(t,w) in Equation (2-17), we have relied heavily or the covariance matrix K_S(t, τ ,w, σ) in Equation (2-11) for the vector process S(t, τ). This in turn is expressible in terms of the two matrices M(t, τ) and N(w, σ) of Equations (2-9) and (2-10) respectively. These matrices, as we have shown, are on the one hand directly related to the vector S(t, τ) and therefore allow one to compute K_y(t,w) from simulated or experimental data, and also on the other hand lead to the type of "spectral polarization." of K_S(t, τ ,w, σ) in Equation (2-16) and K_H(t, τ ,w, σ) in Equation (2-22).

Finally, it is noted that for the case of an isotropic target, $h_{12} = h_{21}$, the matrices $M(t,\tau)$ and $N(t,\tau)$ are both symmetric and so is the matrix $K_{H}(\cdot)$, whereas $K_{S}(\cdot)$ and $K_{y}(\cdot)$ are always hermitian matrices.

The two methods discussed earlier are used in Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.2 respectively. It is appropriate to comment on the fact that due to the Lature of the Generalized Matrix Approach, the second method cannot be used, whereas the Generalized Vector Approach may use either methods. However, from the computational aspects, the second method was preferred.

2.4 COVARIANCE MATRICES OF POINT TARGET IN CHAFF

We now apply the results found above to the case of a point target. We have in this case

$$H(t,\tau) = \begin{bmatrix} h_{11}(t) & h_{12}(t) \\ h_{21}(t) & h_{22}(t) \end{bmatrix} \cdot \delta(\tau - \tau_0) = H(t) \cdot \delta(\tau - \tau_0)$$
(2-27)

where τ_0 is the two-way travel time to the point target.

It is seen from Equations (2-9) and (2-10) that

$$M(t,\tau) = \begin{bmatrix} h_{11}(t)I_2 & h_{12}(t)I_2 \\ h_{21}(t)I_2 & h_{22}(t)I_2 \end{bmatrix} \cdot \delta(\tau - \tau_0) = M(t) \cdot \delta(\tau - \tau_0)$$
(2.28)

and

ianthuman yadatan danakara na haran ka

XHARARARAN PARANANANANAN

$$N(t,\tau) = \begin{bmatrix} H(t) & 0_2 \\ 0_2 & H(t) \end{bmatrix} \cdot \delta(\tau - \tau_0) = N(t) \cdot \delta(\tau - \tau_0)$$
(2-29)

Therefore, from Equation (2-22)

$$K_{\text{H}}(t,\tau,w,\sigma) = \mathbb{E}[M(t) \cdot \overline{N}(w)] \cdot \delta(\tau - \tau_0) \cdot \delta(\sigma - \tau_0), \qquad (2-30)$$

and from Equation (2-16)

$$K_{S}(t,\tau,w,\sigma) = E[M(t) \cdot \underline{1} \cdot \overline{N}(w)] \cdot \delta(\tau - \tau_{0}) \cdot \delta(\sigma - \tau_{0}). \qquad (2-31)$$

Then, using Equation (2-23) we find

$$\kappa_{y}(t,w) = E[M(t) \cdot N(w)] \cdot X(t - \tau_{0}, w - \tau_{0}).$$
(2-32)

Similarly, from Equation (2-17)

$$K_{y}(t,w) = \underline{X}(t-\tau_{0}) \cdot E[M(t) \cdot i \cdot \overline{N}(w)] \cdot \underline{X}(w-\tau_{0})^{*}. \qquad (2-33)$$

Let $H_T(t,\tau) = H_T(t) \cdot \delta(\tau - \tau_0)$ be the scattering matrix of a point target surrounded by a chaff cloud – whose scattering matrix is denoted by $H_C(t,\tau)$. As in the above, let X(t)and Y(t) be the transmitted and received signals, respectively, then



$$Y(t) = H_{T}(t) \cdot X(t - \tau_{0}) + \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} H_{C}(t,\tau) \cdot X(t - \tau) \cdot d\tau$$
$$= Y_{T}(t) + Y_{C}(t)$$

Let $K_y(t,w)$ be the covariance matrix of Y(t), we have

$$K_{y}(t,w) = E[(Y_{T}(t) + Y_{C}(t)) (Y_{T}(w)^{*} + Y_{C}(w)^{*})].$$

Therefore, since Y_T and Y_C are uncorrelated

ukanananannikina maduntakini anununukini dinak

120

Generally

KRUNANAKA MARAKAN WENDERINA MENDARKAN DERINA

HANNER HEALING

RANG WATCH WATCH

$$K_{y}(t,w) = E[Y_{T}(t)Y_{T}(w)^{*}] + E[Y_{C}(t)Y_{C}(w)^{*}].$$

= $K_{y_{T}}(t,w) + K_{y_{C}}(t,w),$ (2-34)

THE PRIVACENTIANS SHARMAN

where the point target covariance matrix $K_{y_{T}}(t,w)$ is computed from Equation (2-33), while the chaff cloud covariance matrix $K_{y_{T}}(t,w)$ can be derived from Equation (2-17).

It is also evident from Equation (2-34) that

$$\kappa_{y}(t,w) = \kappa_{y}(t,w) + \kappa_{y}(t,w)$$
(2-35)

where $\kappa_{yT}(t,w)$ is given by Equation (2-32) and $\kappa_{yC}(t,w)$ can be computed from Equation (2-21).

As noted in the following sections, the received signal covariance functions become key elements in the design of the transmit waveform and associated receiver weighting for maximizing the output s/c ratio.

Section 3

OPTIMAL TRANSMIT WAVEFORM AND RECEIVER DEVELOPMENT

The previous section described the manner whereby radar targets and clutter can be characterized by scattering operators. Associated with these scattering operators are scattering vectors, which can be regarded as stochastic vector processes. With this description, the signals received from the target and clutter can be formulated as the outputs of a deterministic system whose inputs are the scattering vectors, see Figure 3-1. Since a major study task was to maximize the probability of target detection for a given false alarm rate, the more immediate problem becomes one of transmit waveform and associated receiver design to meet this objective. Given then the scattering vector descriptions of both target and clutter, it was necessary to find the optimal deterministic transmit waveform and optimum receiver weighting for maximizing the target return signal-to-chaff plus receiver noise ratio.

Five viriants of the scattering theory approach were investigated. Two of these methods fall into the domain of finite dimensional discrete time and frequency space. These were more fully developed than the other methods in terms of obtaining both theoretical and simulation results for waveform/receiver design and associated detection performance. The state space and matched filter Fredholm Equation approaches were both mathematically formulated, but they were not simulated on a computer.

sarahan tahun tahun merekerahan tahun mandurahan darahan merupakan merupakan darahan darahan darahan darah dara

al human tradition of the second states of the states of the states of the states of the second states of the s



Figure 3-1. Simplified System Model

3.1 FINITE DIMENSIONAL SPACE

The two methods related to finite dimensional discrete-time and frequency space were developed. They are herein designated as the vector and matrix approaches. The matrix approach has the potential for utilizing all of the information available within the dimensional space constrained by both the transmit signal and target/chaff scattering properties. Assume, for example, that the target and chaff scattering vectors each consist of four variables (h11, h12, h21, h22), and that the transmit signal is composed of N pulses. each containing separable V and H polarized components. The four element scattering zector, in combination with the N dual polarized transmit pulses, establishes a $4N \propto 4N$ receiver weighting matrix for optimum processing of the return signal. As absequently shown, the weighting matrix results from eigenvector solutions involving the target and chait scattering vector covariance matrices. However, since the observable data consist of only 2N separable signal returns, the receiver weighting dimension must be reduced to a 2N x 4N matrix. The matrix elements then consist of the 2N eigenvectors associated with the 2N largest eigenvalues resulting from the scattering vector covariance matrix solutions. This resultant weighting matrix maximizes the signal-to-clutter ratio (s'c) under conditions shown in Section 3.1.2.

By contrast, the vector approach utilizes only the one eigenvector which is associated with the largest eigenvalue. Consequently, the receiver weight is then a 4N-element vector. Although the vector approach can be considered as a subset of the matrix implementation, it was developed from a somewhat different mathematical approach and provided valuable insight into subsequent development of the matrix method. Additionally, the vector approach is simpler to implement both from a software and hardware standpoint, which can prove to be of further benefit in the realization of actual systems, even though performance is not as good.

Associated with the vector and matrix approaches is the concept of the maximum likelihood receiver, from which the false alarm and target detection probabilities were derived. The likelihood implementation is, therefore, described in the following sections for completeness. It should be realized however, that the design of the transmit waveform and receiver weighting function need not depend upon the maximum likelihood concept.

3.1.1 Generalized Vector Approach

ประชาชรีสุลงทุกธรรมชุล/ จะไปสุลงทุสอก (ธรรม)ทักญรทกแขงชาวเธลามจรมบนสะวัสสุขภาณหม่ย องปรุกสองนสถ

and yaa kinaanaa kabaa baada ayaa ayaa ayaa had

The vector approach is described below relative to the interaction of a coherent pulse train with a target characterized by a polarization scattering matrix possessing both temporal and range variations. The analysis presented here is general and can be applied to both the coherent pulse train and the single coded pulse waveform. In what follows, we assume that the radar system under consideration employs two orthogonal polarizations on transmit and receive. The envelope of transmitted vector is

$$X(t) = \begin{pmatrix} x_1(t) \\ x_2(t) \end{pmatrix}$$
(3-1)

and the target scattering matrix is represented by

$$H_{T}(t,\tau) = \begin{bmatrix} h_{11}(t,\tau) & h_{12}(t,\tau) \\ h_{21}(t,\tau) & h_{22}(t,\tau) \end{bmatrix}$$
(3-2)

The target covariance matrix is a 4 x 4 matrix given by

$$K_{\text{HT}}(t-u\tau) = (k_{\text{ii}}(t-u;\tau)) \ i = 1, \dots, 4, \ j = 1, \dots, 4,$$
 (3-3)

where, referenced to equation (2-24):

TAN PRODUCTION AND A REALIZED AND A STATEMENT AND A STATEMENT AND A STATEMENT AND A STATEMENT AND A STATEMENT A

$$k_{11} (t-u; \tau) = E[h_{11} (t,\tau) \ \overline{h}_{11} (u,\tau)]$$

$$k_{12} (t-u; \tau) = E[h_{11} (t,\tau) \ \overline{h}_{12} (u,\tau)]$$

$$k_{13} (t-u; \tau) = E[h_{12} (t,\tau) \ \overline{h}_{11} (u,\tau)], \text{ etc.}$$

and where $E[\cdot] = expectation operator.$ (Note that when the scatterer is isotropic (i.e., $h_{1,2} = h_{2,1}$) then K_{H} is symmetric.)

For a receiver weighting function

$$W(t) = \begin{pmatrix} w_1(t) \\ w_2(t) \end{pmatrix}$$
(3-4)

the video amplitude at the output of the receiver is given by

$$V(t) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} dt_1 W^* (t_1 - t) \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} H_T(t_1, \tau) X (t_1 - \tau) dt$$
 (2.5)

From above we find that the average output power is proportional to

$$E[V(t) V^{*}(t)] = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} dt_{1} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} dt_{2} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} d\tau_{1} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} d\tau_{2} E[W^{*}(t_{1}-t) H_{T}(t_{1},\tau_{1}) X(t_{1}-\tau_{1}) X^{*}(t_{2}-\tau_{2}) H_{T}^{*}(t_{2},\tau_{2}) W(t_{1}-t)]$$
(3-6)

3-3

If we assume that the elements of $H_{T}(t_1, \tau_1)$ and $H_{T}(t_2, \tau_2)$ are uncorrelated for $\tau_1 \neq \tau_2$, then we can write (3-6) as

$$P(t) = E[V(t) V^{*}(t)] = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} dt_{1} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} dt_{2} W^{*}(t_{1}-t) K_{yT}(t_{1},t_{2}) W(t_{2}-t)$$
(3-7)

where $K_y(t_1,t_2)$ is a 2 x 2 covariance matrix whose elements are given by (3-8) below as previously derived in Equation (2-20).

$$K_{yT}(t_{1},t_{2}) = \begin{cases} K_{yT11}(t_{1},t_{2}) \\ K_{yT12}(t_{1},t_{2}) \\ K_{yT21}(t_{1},t_{2}) \\ K_{yT21}(t_{1},t_{2}) \\ K_{yT22}(t_{1},t_{2}) \end{cases} = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} d\tau \ K_{H_{T}}(t_{1}-t_{2};\tau) \begin{cases} x_{1}(t_{1}-\tau) \ \bar{x} \ _{1}(t_{2}-\tau) \\ x_{2}(t_{1}-\tau) \ \bar{x} \ _{1}(t_{2}-\tau) \\ x_{2}(t_{1}-\tau) \ \bar{x} \ _{2}(t_{2}-\tau) \end{cases}$$
(3-8)

Introducing the discrete vector W, where N is the lamber of pulses

Whether the second states of the second states and the second states and second state

$$W^* = \{W^*(1), W^*(2), \dots, W^*(N)\}$$
(3.9)

(the asterisk indicates complex conjugate transpose), we note that in discrete form P(0) obtained from Equation (3-7) for t = 0 is given by

$$P(0) = W^* K_{yT} W$$
 (3-10)

where K_{yT} is an N x N covariance matrix whose elements are the 2 x 2 matrices K_{y} (i Δt , j Δt), where Δt is the interpulse period. Thus, using Equations (3-6) and (3-7), we can write the signal-to-chaff ratio as

$$s_{C} = \frac{(W * H_{T} X) (X * H_{T} * W)}{W * K_{VC} W}$$
(3.11)

where K_{yc} is the N x N clutter covariance matrix defined in a similar manner as K_{yT} above.

$$\widetilde{X} = [X^*(1), X^*(2), \dots, X^*(N)]$$
 (3-12)

and

LASA A PREDVER RADIAL RADIA RECORD RECENTION REPORTING STREET REPORTED FOR A REPORT REPORT REPORT REPORT REPORT

Vildersteb Lothumartenes, spranteristik ditecuelitik anterna engenanteristik menterik penergikan prosesteb sedan

of the part of the second

$$X(m) = \begin{pmatrix} x_1(m) \\ x_2(m) \end{pmatrix}$$
(3-13)

The expression in Equation (3-11) is a direct extension of the results of Rummler (1966), ('967), and DeLong and Hofstetter (1967) to the polarization sensitive targets. The vector \tilde{W} that maximizes Equation (3-11) was shown by Rao (1973) to be

$$W = K_{vv}^{-1} H^* X^*$$
 (3-14)

Note that K_{yc} is actually a function of X, i.e., $K_{yc} = K_{yc}(X)$.

The basic functions described above are indicated in Figure 3-2 for a train of three transmit pulses with dual polarization. As noted in Equation (3-14), the desired weighting



Figure 3-2. Schematic of Transmitter Receiver Configuration

vector is a function of the target and chaff scattering covariance matrices, and also of the transmit signal vector. Although the scattering properties are known stochastic functions, the weighting vector cannot be determined until the transmit waveform is specified. The vector approach as derived above, therefore, does not yield a direct solution for the optimal transmit waveform. An iterative procedure is possible, however, which does result in a quasi-optimum transmitter waveform design under certain conditions, as described below.

3.1.2 Vector Approach Waveform Design

ningkoviktendin invitanturev iz eli tukishedi iziozati vluvisi.

IGAN BRORALDORD) ANYORI

The approach of Rummler (1966, 1967) is adapted herein to the formulation of an optimum set of transmitter/receiver operators for maximization of the sic ratio for dual channel systems. The generalized solution for the receiver weighting vector W as given in Equation (3-14), will be applied to the case of a Doppler spread point target in Doppler spread clutter. For convenience, the notation denoting the time varying properties of the transmit vector and scattering functions will be omitted. The signal-to-chaff ratic of Equation (3-10) can be written for the above point target case as:

$$s/c = \frac{W^* K_{yT} W}{W^* K_{yc} W}$$
(3-15)

where K_{VT} and K_{VC} are the target and clutter covariance matrices, and where

$$K_{yT} = E[(HX) (HX)^*] = X E [HH^*] X^* = K_{HT} X$$
 (3-16)

H is the previously defined 2 x 2 target scattering matrix. The parameter K_{yc} is defined similarly for clutter. It is again emphasized that both K_{yT} and K_{yc} are functions of the transmit signal. X. Given K_{yT} and K_{yc} the problem becomes one of finding the value of W which maximizes the s/c ratio.

It is clear that s/c (kW) = s/c (W) where k is any arbitrary scalar constant. So we may assume, without loss of generality, that W* K_{yc} W = 1. Hence, the original unconstrained optimization is equivalent to the following constrained optimization problem:

max
$$W^* K_{yT} W$$

subject to $W^* K_{yc} W = 1$ (3-17)

Applying Lagrange's multiplier rule (see Appendix C), we see that the optimum W and s c must satisfy the following conditions:

$$(K_{yT}-\lambda_{max} K_{yc}) W = 0$$

$$(s/c)_{max} = \lambda_{max}$$
(3-18)

where

ind measures and a second

and alympith and a soluty vitation and the system of the solution of the second s

Warmy warding find and a solution of the state

HUNA-BURNAN MANUALANAN

$$\lambda_{\text{max}}$$
 = maximum eigenvalue of $K_{\text{vc}}^{-1} K_{\text{vT}}$

The optimum signal-to-chaft ratio is then the targest eigenvalue of $K_{yc}^{-1} K_{yT}$, and the optimum weighting vector is the eigenvector corresponding to this largest eigenvalue.

Note that the s/c ratio was maximized for a given transmit vector, which had to be chosen a priori. The choice would generally be made based upon experience dealing with specific target/clutter situations. According to Rummler, this initial choice could be the unweighted, uncoded vector. In any case, it may be possible to further improve the s/c through an iterative procedure devised by Rummler. This is based upon the fact that the s/c ratio is unchanged if the transmitted waveform and the receiver response are conjugated and interchanged. This is done by using the receiver weights from one iteration as the transmitted signal vector for the next iteration, for which the procedure will converge to a maximum s/c.

Although the solution converges to an optimum s'c ratio there is no guarantee that a better solution could not have been reached if the procedure had been started with a different initial waveform. Rummler has noted, however, that the s c ratio convergence does not appear to be strongly dependent upon the choice of initial vector. Nevertheless, the vector to which the procedure converges is strongly dependent upon the initial choice.

This iterative procedure was developed for computer solution of transmit signal and receiver weighting configurations for optimization of the s/c ra* o for both dual and single channel configurations. Results of this technique are reported 'pon in Section 5. A summary of the iterative procedure is given in Table 3-1.

TABLE 3-1. VECTOR METHOD WAVEFOI M DESIGN

1) Maximize s/c ratio given scattering properties

$$s/c = \frac{\Psi^* K_{\gamma T}(X) \Psi}{\Psi^* K_{\gamma c}(X) \Psi}$$

2) For given transmit vector X, find receiver weight W to maximize s/c

3 Constrained optimization problem, eigenvalue solution of:

$$(K_{VT} - \lambda_{max} K_{VC}) W_{ost} = 0$$

eigenvector of Amax

where

$$\lambda_{\text{max}} = \text{maximum eigenvalue of } K_{v2}^{-1} K_{vT}$$

" wopt

5) Iterate by interchanging X and W, obtain convergence to optimum s/c

3-7

One additional fact should be noted in regard to receiver noise. The effects of noise are taken into account by adding an identity I matrix to K_{yc} , where K_{yc} is appropriately scaled to reflect the received clutter-to-noise ratio (c/n).

3.1.3 Generalized Matrix Approach

In the analysis below, we consider the detection of a point Doppler-spread target in Doppler spread clutter, when the radar transmits a coherent pulse train composed of N equally spaced rectangular subpulses. It is also assumed that the radar is capable of modulating the transmitted polarization from pulse-to-pulse. A simplified block diagram of the system is shown in Figure 3-3. For convenience, the time notation will be omitted.

Given a transmitted sequence of N pulses, the transmit vector X will be a column vector shown as a $(2N \times 1)$ dimensional matrix. The transpose of X is represented by:

$$\bar{X} = (X_{VI}, X_{HI}, \dots, X_{VN}, X_{HN})$$
 (3-19)

where X_{V1} is the complex variable representating the amplitude and phase of the vertical component of the pulse-1 transmitted electric field, X_{H1} is the horizontal component, etc.

The scattering properties of the target and chaff are represented by their respective 2×2 scattering matrices, H_T and H_C . Given that

$$H_{T,C} = \begin{bmatrix} h_{11} & h_{12} \\ h_{21} & h_{22} \end{bmatrix}_{T,C}$$
(3-20)

and that the target (T) and clutter (C) scatterers are isotropic $(h_{1,2} = h_{21})$, then the elements of the scattering matrix can be rearranged for mathematical convenience as a scattering vector h, of dimension (3N × 1).

$$\widetilde{\mathbf{h}} = \left(\mathbf{h}_{11}^{(1)}, \mathbf{h}_{12}^{(1)}, \mathbf{h}_{22}^{(1)}, \dots, \mathbf{h}_{11}^{(N)}, \mathbf{h}_{12}^{(N)}, \mathbf{h}_{22}^{(N)} \right)$$
(3-21)

where $h_{11}^{(i)}$ represents the vertical-to-vertical scattering property relative to pulse-1, etc. Note that the values of the elements vary with time for Doppler spread targets, such that in general $h_i^{(i)} \neq h_j^{(j)}$.

The signal received at the receiver antenna is denoted by the vector Y, as noted in Figure 3-3. For mathematical convenience, the transmit vector X is rearranged into a (2N X 3N) transmit matrix \underline{X} , such that Y can be given by

$$Y = \underline{X} h \tag{3-22}$$

where Y is a $(2N \times 1)$ vector with

DARTER DARD AND TRADARD AND THE PERTURATION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF THE PART OF T

$$\tilde{Y} = (y_{V1}, y_{H1}, \dots, y_{VN}, y_{HN})$$
 (3-23)

The elements of Y represent the complex vertical and horizontal components of the received electric field vector. For Equation (3-22) to be dimensionally valid,

$$\underline{X} = \begin{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} x_{V1} & x_{H1} & 0 \\ 0 & x_{V1} & x_{H1} \end{bmatrix} & 0 \\ \begin{bmatrix} x_{V2} & x_{H2} & 0 \\ 0 & x_{V2} & x_{H2} \end{bmatrix} & (3-24) \\ 0 & \begin{bmatrix} x_{VN} & x_{HN} & 0 \\ 0 & x_{VN} & x_{HN} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$$

The above rearrangement of terms is a special case of Equation (2-6), where $h_{12} = h_{21}$, resulting in a dimension reduction of h.



Figure 3-3. Simplified Block Diagram Matrix Method

3-9

Expression (3-24) shows the matrix \underline{X} as a (2N x 3N) arrangement of the elements of the transmit vector X. Observation noise N₀ is added to Y to produce the received (2N x 1) vector \underline{Y} . This realization of the vector \underline{Y} is simply the result of the transmit signal X bying reflected back to the radar by the target and chaff plus the additive receiver noise.

The preliminaries, to this point, of rearranging the mathematical form of the transmit signal and scattering properties into \underline{X} and h, was necessary to properly dimensionalize the matrix multiplication for

$$\underline{Y} = \underline{X} h + N_0 \tag{3-25}$$

The effect of a linear receiver upon the signal vector Y, can then be expressed in terms of the matrix G, which operates on \underline{Y} to give

$$Z = G\underline{Y} = G \underline{X} h + GN_0 \qquad (3-26)$$

The receiver output Z would then be subject to hypothesis testing for one of two conditions: the presence of target plus clutter or of clutter only. The implementation of this likelihood process will be deferred to Section 3.2. At this juncture, the major consideration is the design of G \underline{X} such that the sic ratio at Z is maximized.

3.1.3.1 Matrix Transmit-Receive Design - Define a weighting matrix W, where

$$W = G \underline{X}$$
(3-27)

The object then is to find the optimum W for maximizing the s., ratio, given the statistics of the stochastic scattering vectors for both the target and clutter.

The target and clutter covariance matrices are given by

$$K_{\rm VT} = E [h_{\rm T} h_{\rm T}^*]$$
 (3-28a)

and

yany ye cesalarah ini kuni kasa vinak mut

MARTINE STALL MORA

$$K_{yy} = E \left[h_C h_C^*\right] \tag{3-28b}$$

where

* represents the conjugate transpose.



Since K_{yT} and K_{yc} are positive definite hermitian matrices, they can be simultaneously diagonalized by a matrix ϕ (see Appendix D), where

$$\dot{\phi}^* K_{yT} \phi = \Lambda$$

 $\dot{\phi}^* K_{yc} \phi = I$
(3-29)

The columns of ϕ are the generalized eigenvectors ϕ_i satisfying

$$K_{yT} \phi_i = \lambda_i K_{yC} \phi_i$$
(3-30)

where the λ_i are the eigenvalues of the matrix equation

$$K_{VT} - \lambda K_{VC} = 0 \tag{3-31}$$

The joint diagonalization of K_{yT} and K_{yC} by this process, orthogonalizes the target and chaff covariance matrices through the matrix transformation ϕ . This in effect provides a maximum separation of the target and clutter vectors at the Z output, which is the desirable condition for hypothesis testing. Consequently, the matrix W can be chosen as the transformation matrix ϕ . There is, however, a dimensionality problem in that ϕ is a (3N x 3N) matrix, the result of the arrangement of the h. On the other hand, there are only 2N observations at Z as limited by the transmission of N dual channel pulses. Consequently, the dimension of the W matrix must be reduced (k x 3N), where k \leq 2N. The problem then arises as to the method of selecting k out of 3N eigenvectors for the matrix W, where

$$W = (W_1, W_2, \dots, W_k)$$
 (3-32)

and the W_i are (3N x 1) column vectors, representing the k eigenvectors of the transformation matrix ϕ , that correspond to the k largest eigenvalues of matrix equation (3-31).

The criterion for selecting the k-optimum eigenvectors is based upon the Chernoff bound, whereby the probability of error is minimized with respect to the hypothesis test on Z. Given nypothesis H_0 (clutter only) and H_1 (target plus clutter), it can be shown that the probability of error P_c is bounded between [Van Trees, 1971].

$$f_{\min}(p,q) \; J^2 \leq P_s \leq \frac{1}{2} \; J \tag{3-33}$$

where p is the a priori probability that H_1 is true. q is the a priori probability that H_0 is true and J is the integral

$$J = \int_{\Omega} p(Z/H_1) p(Z/H_0) ^{\frac{1}{2}} dz$$
 (3-34)

3-11

For zero mean Gaussian densities (see Appendix E),

$$B = -\ell_{n}(J) = \ell_{n} \left\{ \frac{K_{Z1} + K_{Z0}}{2^{k} |K_{Z1}|^{\frac{1}{2}} |K_{Z0}|^{\frac{1}{2}}} \right\}$$
(3-35)

where P = -Cn(J) is known as the Bhattacharyya distance. Note that since $0 \le J \le 1$, the minimization of J is equivalent to the maximization of B. Therefore, we select the transformation matrix W so as to maximize the Bhattacharyya distance.

In Equation (3-35), K_{Z1} and K_{Z0} are the covariance matrices of Z under hypotheses H_1 and H_0 respectively. These quantities are:

$$K_{Z1} = W K_{yT} W^* + W K_{yc} W^*$$

 $K_{Z0} = W K_{yc} W^*$ (3-36)

Substituting of the W matrix as resulting from the eigenvector solution of Equation (3-32) into the above for K_{Z1} and K_{Z0} , and then substituting of K_{Z1} and K_{Z0} into the Bhattacharyya distance B as given in Equation (3-35) yields

$$B = \frac{1}{2} \sum_{i=1}^{k} \ln \left[-(\lambda_{i} + 1) + \frac{1}{\lambda_{i} + 1} + 2 \right] + k^{2} \ln^{-1}; \qquad (3-3^{2})$$

Note that due to the restriction on k, k must satisfy $\leq 2N$. Then, maximization of B requires finding the appropriate k eigenvalues $\lambda_1, \ldots, \lambda_k$ out of 3N eigenvalues that satisfies

$$|\phi^{1} + \phi + \phi^{1} + \phi_{-1}| > |\phi^{2} + \phi + \phi^{2} + \phi_{-1}| > \dots > |\phi^{k} + \phi + \phi^{k} + \phi_{-1}| > \dots > |\phi^{2k} + \phi + \phi^{2k} + \phi_{-1}|$$

Since

WHA LAD AND A DATA DATA ON A DATA WAYA MANA DATA DATA MANA

verther were a universited of the public of the laws and the product of

 $\partial_1 + \phi + \partial_1 + \phi^{-1} > \partial_3 + \phi + \phi^{-1}$

implies

 $\lambda_i > \lambda_j$ for all $\lambda_i, \lambda_j > 0$

inc a eigenvalues that maximize B are then the k largest eigenvalues of the ordered set

$$(\lambda_{\max} = \lambda_1) > \lambda_2 \dots > \lambda_k > \dots > \lambda_{3N}$$
(3-38)

It then follows that the k eigenvectors of W should be selected from those which correspond to he k largest eigenvalues of $K_{yT} - \lambda K_{yc} = 0$ 3.1.3.2 <u>Transmit Waveform Determination</u> – Once the above optimum matrix W has been determined the receiver transformation matrix G and transmitter waveform matrix \underline{X} are selected by minimizing the Frobenius norm

$$\|\mathbf{G} \underline{\mathbf{X}} - \mathbf{W}\|_{\mathbf{F}} \tag{3-39}$$

which is defined by

A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACT

$$\|A\|_{F} = \left[\sum_{i,j} |a_{i,j}|^{2}\right]^{\frac{1}{2}}$$
(3-40)

The choice of the Frobenius norm here is for mathematical convenience, since in finite dimensional spaces all norms are equivalent – as far as topological properties are concerned. For a given waveform matrix \underline{X} , the minimizing G is given by

$$G = W \underline{X}^* (\underline{X} \underline{X}^*)^{-1}$$
(3-41)

Substituting Equation (3-41) into the expression for the norm, yields

$$I \le (\underline{X}^* (\underline{X} \underline{X}^*)^{-1} \underline{X} - 1) I \frac{2}{F}$$
(3-42)

Optimum performance is obtained if Equation (3-42) is identically zero. The above discussion indicates that for a given matrix W the transmit matrix \underline{X} can in theory be computed by minimizing the Frobenius, norm. In reality, this direct method for solution of \underline{X} is extremely difficult. An alternative approach is to start with a large library of reasonable waveform structures, and search for the waveform which minimizes the norm. This was dome during the study and will be reported in Sections 4 and 5.

Once \underline{X} is selected through this procedure, the receiver matrix G is computed from Equation (3-41). A summary of the matrix approach is given in Table 3-II.

TABLE 3-II. SUMMARY MATRIX WAVEFORM APPROACH

- 1) Solve for eigenvalues of $|K_{vT} \lambda K_{vc}| = 0$
- 2) Select the k<2N largest eigenvalues
- 37 Furm W matrix from the like genvectors of largest eigenvalues
- 4) Solve for transmit matrix by minimizing norm of

W
$$(\underline{X}^* (\underline{X} \underline{X}^*)^{-1} \underline{X} - I) I^2$$

 Step 4 above can be satisfied by comparing a library of stored transmit vectors against W, and selecting the one resulting in the minimum error

00:12-0

6) Solve for receiver weight G using

 $\overline{x} \rightarrow W^{-1}, (\overline{X} \overline{X})_{-1}$

3-13
3.1.4 Maximum Likelihood Detector

The matrix approach yields a transmit waveform with an associated receiver weight which maximizes the s/c ratio based upon the Bhattacharyya distance criterion for optimality. Up to this point of the design (output Z of Figure 3-3), the hypothesis test for the target or chaff decision process has not been a factor. For a surveillance radar application, one is interested in optimizing the probability of detecting a target in chaff for a given false alarm probability created by chaff plus receiver noise. Referring to Figure 3-3, the two conditions for hypothesis testing are

$$H_{0}: Y = Y_{C} + N_{0}$$

$$H_{1}: Y = Y_{T} + Y_{C} + N_{0}$$
(3-43)

Here H_0 represents the false alarm situation of chaff return plus noise, while H_1 represents the target return combined with the chaff and noise.

The above receiver inputs are linearly operated upon by the weighting matrix G to produce the observed receiver output Z. A decision must then be made as to whether Z satisfies hypothesis H_0 or H_1 . The transmit vector X and receiver matrix G are now known design parameters. The statistics of the target and chaff scattering properties as well as the receiver noise are known stochastic processes; consequently, the signal distribution at Z is also known for each hypothesis. This then lends itself to a convertional maximum likelihood decision process for H_0 and H_1 . The maximum likelihood receiver configuration can be found in standard texts [Van Trees, 1968], and will not be elaborated upon. There are, however, some design features peculiar to the matrix approach. These are discussed below with the aid of Figure 3-4, which is an extension of Figure 3-3.

At the threshold T, a binary decision is made for condition H_0 and H_1 . Since it is desired to utilize a conventional receiver implementation such as, for instance, a square law detector, it is necessary to transform the output at Z to fulfill certain conditions. This is indicated by Figure 3-4 by the matrices Q and P which operate upon Z to produce the output signal r. This signal is then squared and summed to provide a signal u, upon which the threshold test is performed. The mathematics associated with the decision process involves knowledge of the probability density function of u, and this computation can be facilitated if the elements of the signal matrix at r are uncorrelated. This is accomplished by finding a transformation matrix Q which diagonalizes the covariance of signal Z; that is,

$$Z = Q.7.$$
 (3-14)

where

 $E[\underline{Z} \cdot \underline{Z}^*] = diagonal matrix.$



2012-0

المتعقدة الدارية والمعاد المع

20 5-20



3

-

3-i5

It is noted that the covariance of Z may itself satisfy the orthogonality criterion. This would be true if in the matrix waveform design, the quantity $G\underline{X}$ were identically equal to the matrix W. In general, however, the Frobenius norm $\pm G\underline{X} - \Psi \oplus i_{2}$ satisfied by a least squares fit procedure, such that $G\underline{X} \neq W$. In this case, Z must be orthogonalized by the transformation matrix Q. Additive receiver noise also requires imposition of the Q matrix.

The matrix P which operates on \underline{Z} to produce r, is simply a scale factor to properly weight the elements of r prior to the square law operation. The final observed receiver output u, is then

$$u = r^* r = \sum_{i=1}^{k} |r_i|^2$$
(3-45)

The likelihood ratio hypothesis test is dependent upon the probability density of u under the criteria H_0 and H_1 . The probability of false alarm for a given threshold T, is then

$$P_{FA} = \int_{T}^{\infty} p(u|H_0) du \qquad (3-46)$$

For a desired P_{FA} , the threshold T can be computed using the Newton-Raphson technique. Given T, the probability of detection then becomes

$$P_{\rm D} = \int_{\rm T}^{\infty} p(u|H_1) du \qquad (3-47)$$

A target is declared if $u \ge T$. Note that the optimum receiver overall weighting function is now

$$G_{opt} = P \cdot O \cdot G \tag{3-48}$$

Appendix B provides a detailed derivation of the foregoing procedure, assuming that Z is jointly Gaussian under both hypotheses H_0 and H_1 . It should be noted that the maximum likelihood detector decision process can be applied to any of the waveform design techniques considered during this study.

3.1.5 Preliminary Design of the Processor

The processing algorithm is presented in a functional flow form in Figure 3-5. A sample vector $(k \ x \ i)$ is multiplied by a weighting matrix $(k \ x \ k)$. The elements of both the sample vector and the weighting matrix are complex. This produces a $(k \ x \ l)$ result vector r with complex elements. The elements of the result vector r are squared and the squares are summed to form a scalar u which is then compared with a threshold T.

For the preliminary design, k is assumed equal to 6. Under this assumption, the sample vector will contain six complex (1,Q) samples one sample from a channel with horizontal (H) polarization and one sample from a channel with vertical (V) polarization for each of three pulses. A pulse repetition time of three milliseconds is assumed. Further, the quantizer is assumed to quantize the 1,Q quadrature components to 10-bits.

Under these assumptions, the processing load can be estimated as follows:

Processing Per Sample Vector

Matrix Multiplication:	144 real multiplys 132 adds/subtracts
Vector Squaring and Summing:	12 real multipiys 11 adds
Threshold Detection	i subtract

These data may be summarized as follows: each three millisecond period, the processor is required to perform 156 multiplications and 144 add/subtracts for each sample vector processed. Input-output, bookkeeping, and other overhead operations are in addition to these requirements.

If these operations were to be performed in a general purpose 16-bit microprocessor or computer without any specialized multiplication hardware, a reasonable assumption would be one 16-bit by 16-bit multiplication each 16-clocks, and one add or subtract operation each clock. Using these assumptions the minimum processing load would be $(156 \times 16) +$ 144 = 2640 clocks. If in addition, we estimate four clocks of overhead for each element of the sample vector and of the weighting matrix, we require an additional 4 x (12 + 72) = 336clocks for a total of 2976 clocks. This can be rounded up to 3,000 circles.

Figure 3-5 contains a processing block diagram which contains a 16-bit microprocessor identified as the ITT Gilfillan Radar Processing Module (RPM). The RPM is capable of operating at a clock speed of 250 nanoseconds. A first estimate will be made assuming that the entire task were performed in the RPM. This requires $3000 \times 0.250 = 750$ microseconds during each three millisecond period for processing of the target in a single range hin.



المعادية ومادينا الملية عد المعاد المدينة

and the substitution of the second second second second second second second second second second second second

Kikikaburuesisisin perintelakeka jurusa neutum perisisisi senasi

inest to the

ಿರ್ದ್ರ

بشائلا ومرتز

Figure 3-5. Processing Block Diagram

والاجترافية ومعتد ومترد وسترده المتحر

-

14.

Figure 3-5 shows the use of a specialized programmable Outboard Processor designed to unload the RPM to improve processor efficiency. The detailed block diagram of the Outboard Processor is given in Figure 3-6 and represents an alternative to RPM only processing, noting that the RPM is still required for data management and other ranging functions. This processor is built around an available 12-bit by 12-bit LSI multiplier accumulator chip. This processor is designed to receive quadrature samples and matrix weights from the RPM in one set of memories while it is processing data from the other set of memories. This processor is designed to perform the matrix multiplication and vector squaring operations. Addition/subtractions into the accumulator are fully overlapped with multiplications. A total of 26 multiply and accumulates are required to produce the squares of the real and the complex parts of the elements of the result vector r. 13 for the real part and 13 for the imaginary part. This requires a total of 6 x 26 = 156 clocks for each sample vector processed. The elements of the matrix weights are changed only as required. In this configuration, assuming a 250 nanesecond clock, a matrix multiply and vector square operation can be done in $156 \ge 0.250 = 39$ microseconds (much more efficient than the 750 microseconds associated with the RPM for this function).

EUR. VERAILIEN WARDEN STOREN EGENERALEN

With reference to Figure 3-5, the RPM designates the range at which samples are to be collected to the Range Gate Logic which strobes the outputs of the H channel and the V channel A/D converters and passes the samples to the RPM. The RPM passes the samples and the matrix weights to the outboard processe, which computes the squares of the elements of the result vector τ and passes these squares back to the RPM where the squares are summed and thresholded.

The configuration of Figure 3-5 would be effective for implementing a track function in the radar, resident in the RPM. To apply the same processing to an acquisition function in the radar, additional processing capability would be required. Adaptation of the ITT Gilfillan developed Optimum Filter Transform (OFT) modular approach would provide the required additional processing capability (the O!T module implements a vector times a matrix multiplication and was developed for high performance Deppler processing in radar signal processing applications).



and a service of the



ş

3

al catholise

3.2 THE STATE SPACE APPROACH

This section is also devoted to modeling of radar targets and clutter and to the design of an optimum receiver for detecting a target in clutter. Here, as in previous sections, both target and chaff are taken to have a dual channel scattering operator description; but our approach will be that of the modern state space theory of systems.

From an external viewpoint, a system can be described by the family of all possible input-output pairs. This may be the most general description of a system but, unfortunately, it does not give a useful relationship between a given input of a system and its corresponding output. Because of this, we introduce the state space theory of systems.

The state of a system is the least amount of information which, together with the input, will uniquely determine the output. In what follows we shall be mostly concerned with *discrete-time systems with a finite dimensional state space*. Thus, let t be the time variable which takes the values $0, 1, 2, \ldots$, and let A, B, C be matrices of appropriate dimensions. Then a linear discrete-time system is described by the pair of equations

$$s(t + 1) = A s(t) + B u(t)$$

 $q(t) = C s(t)$
(3-49)

where s(t) is a vector called the state at time t, while u(t) and q(t) are the input vector and the output vector, respectively.

3.2.1 State Space Modeling of Radar Targets and Clutter

3.2.1.1 Point Target Model – The state space theory is not only developed for studying systems, but it is also intended for "generating" stochastic processes – by means of systems for applications, for instance, in communication and control systems. It is evident from Equation (3-19) that if the input u(t) is a stochastic process then so is q(t). Therefore if a stochastic process can be generated from a dynamic system with a state space description, then we have a state space model for the process

We now derive a state space model for a point target. Let $H_T(t, \tau)$ be the scattering matrix of the target, then

$$H_{T}(t, \tau) = H(t) + \delta(\tau - \tau_{0}), H(t) = [h_{it}(t)], i, j = 1, 2.$$
 (3-50)

where $h_{ij}(t)$ are Gaussian processes. If x(t) is a transmitted signal – which is a 2 by 1 deterministic vector – and

$$\hat{S}(t) = \{h_{11}(t), h_{12}(t), h_{21}(t), h_{22}(t)\}$$
 (3-51)

is the transpose of the target scattering vector, then the corresponding received signal is

$$Y(t) = \underline{X}(t - \tau_0) \cdot S(t)$$
(3-52)

where the 2 by 4 matrix $\underline{X}(\cdot)$ is given by

ULED MEDICERSERVICED

$$\underline{X}(t - \tau_0) = \begin{bmatrix} x_1(t - \tau_0) & x_2(t - \tau_0) & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & x_1(t - \tau_0) & x_2(t - \tau_0) \end{bmatrix}$$
(3-53)

which is deterministic. It follows from Equation (3-52) that the received signal vector Y(t) can be regarded as the output of a linear time-varying dynamic system whose state vector is the scattering vector S(t). Thus the problem of modeling the point target becomes that of modeling the vector process S(t).

To model the process S(t) we use an *autoregressive model*; that is, S(t) is taken to be of the form:

$$S(t) = \sum_{n=1}^{N} A_n S(t-n) + u(t),$$
 (3-54)

where the 4 x 4 constant matrices A_n are to be computed and the 4 x 1 vector u(t) is a white noise process with zero mean. The N step autoregressive model Equation (3-54) is actually a form of a state space model and is equivalent to the pair of equations:

$$\vec{S}(t) = A \cdot \vec{S}(t-1) + \vec{U}(t),$$

$$S(t) = C \cdot \vec{S}(t),$$
(3-55)

where \overline{St} -) and $\overline{U}(\cdot)$ are 4×1 vectors, while A and C are constant matrices of dimension-4N x 4N, and $4 \times 4N$ respectively.

The basic problem in representing S(t) by an autoregressive model is to estimate the matrix coefficients A_1, A_2, \ldots, A_N , from the observations $S(1), S(2, \ldots, S(N))$. Let us now illustrate the estimation procedure for a one step autoregressive model. Thus let S(t) be generated by the equation

$$S(t) = A_1 + S(t - 1) + u(t).$$
 (3-56)

where $A_1 = \{a_j\}$, i. j = 1, 2, 3, 4, is to be estimated. For this we define

$$\frac{2}{a} = \{a_{11}, a_{12}, a_{13}, a_{14}, a_{21}, \dots, a_{24}, a_{31}, \dots, a_{34}, a_{41}, \dots, a_{44}\}.$$
 (3-57)

Then Equation (3-56) can be written as

$$S(t) = \phi(t-1) \cdot \overline{a} + u(t),$$
 (3-58)

where the 4 x 1 matrix ϕ is made up of entries of the 4 x 1 vector S(t - 1). Now if the values S(1) . . . S(L) where (L>5) are known, then we form the 4L x 1 vector

$$\widetilde{S}(2, ..., L) = [\widetilde{S}(2), ..., \widetilde{S}(L)]$$
 (3-59)

and the 4L x 16 matrix

$$\begin{array}{c} \phi(1, \ldots, L-1) = \phi(1) \\ \vdots \\ \phi(L-1) \end{array}$$

$$(3-60)$$

It then follows from Equations (3-58), (3-59) and (3-60) that

$$S(2, ..., L) = \dot{Q}(1, ..., L - 1) \cdot a + U(2, ..., L)$$
 (3-61)

where

A STATEMENT AND A DAMAGE AND A DAMAGE AND A DAMAGE AND A DAMAGE AND A DAMAGE AND A DAMAGE AND A DAMAGE AND A DA

odyk woendykt to energy statisty of the street of a grap with the transferent hale and the

Kukitandikan dasi kangunan dan Ayna Kutikan dasi kasedan anggaran da

$$\widetilde{U}(2,\ldots,L) = \{\widetilde{U}(2),\ldots,\widetilde{U}(L)\}$$

To estimate the vector \vec{a} - which in turn gives the estimate of the matrix A_1 - we use the least square criterion, i.e., we minimize the functional

$$1 S(2, ..., L) - \phi(1, ..., L-1) + \overline{a} I^{2}$$
 (3-62)

Then the least square estimate a of a is given by

$$\frac{\Lambda}{a} = [\phi^*(1, \ldots, L-1) \cdot \phi(1, \ldots, L-1)]^{-1} \cdot \phi^*(1, \ldots, L-1) \cdot S(2, \ldots, L)$$
(3-63)

3.2.1.1.1 Computation of Matrix Coefficients – In the case of our problem, the observations are actually the transmitted signal data set $[X(1), \ldots, X(N)]$ and the received signal data set $[Y(1), \ldots, Y(N)]$. It is evident from Equation(3-52) that

$$S(t) = [\pm (t - \tau_0)]^{-1} \cdot \underline{X}(t - \tau_0) \cdot Y(t)$$
 (3-64)

where

$$\mathbf{x} = \begin{bmatrix} x_1 x_1 & x_1 x_2 & 0 & 0 \\ x_2 x_1 & x_2 x_2 & 0 & 0 \\ & & x_1 x_1 & x_1 x_2 \\ 0 & 0 & x_2 x_1 & x_2 x_2 \end{bmatrix} = \underline{X}^* \cdot \underline{X}$$
(3-65)

Therefore the data set $[S(1), S(2), \ldots, S(N)]$ can be computed from Equation (3-64), using the transmitted and received data sets.

The matrix coefficients A_1, A_2, \dots, A_N , can also be computed from the Yule-Walker equations

$$A_1K_2(m-1) + A_2K_3(m-2) + A_NK_3(m-N) = K_3(m),$$
 (3-66)
for $m = 1, 2, 3, ..., N.$

Here $K_S(\cdot)$ is the covariance matrix of the process S(t) which can be approximated by

$$K_{S}(\kappa) = \frac{1}{N} \sum_{n=1}^{N-\kappa} S(n + \kappa) + S(n)^{*}, \text{ for } \kappa = 0, 1, 2, ...$$
 (3-67)

Equivalently, one can also compute $K_{S}(\cdot)$ from the scorived signal covariance matrix $K_{y}(\cdot)$, as discussed in Section 2. :

$$K_{S}(t - w) = [\underbrace{\mathbb{X}}(t - \tau_{0})]^{-1} \cdot \underline{\underline{X}}(t - \tau_{0})^{*} K_{y}(t - w) \cdot \underline{\underline{X}}(w - \tau_{0}) \cdot [\underbrace{\mathbb{X}}^{*}(w - \tau_{0})]^{-1}$$
(3-68)

3.2.1.2 Chatf Model - In this case we have the transmitted-received signal relationship

$$Y(t) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} X(t - \tau) + S(t, \tau) d\tau.$$
 (3-69)

where, as in the above $X(\cdot)$ is the transmitted signal matrix and $S(\cdot)$ is the range-spread chaff scattering vector. The problem now becomes that of modeling the input $S(t, \tau)$ which is a stochastic process in ther each fixed τ - of a linear system, given the system weighting matrix $X(\cdot)$ and the output y. We chail now give an approximation procedure for this case.

Let $[\psi_n(\tau)]_{n=1}^{\infty}$ be a sequence of orthonormal 4 x 1 vectors over the interval $(-\infty, \infty)$, i.e.,

$$\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \left[\psi_n(\tau), \psi_m(\tau) \right] dt = \delta_{n,m} = \begin{cases} 1 \text{ for } n = m \\ 0 \text{ for } n \neq m \end{cases}$$
(3-70)

where [...] denotes the inner product in C⁴. Expanding the 4 x 1 vector S(1, τ) in terms of the sequence $[\psi_{\rm B}(\tau)]$ we find

$$S(t, \tau) = \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} s_n(t) - \psi_n(\tau)$$
 (3-71)

where the scalar functions $s_n(t)$ are random processes. Let $K_S(t, \tau; w, \sigma)$ be the covariance matrix of the process $S(t, \tau)$.

$$K_{S}(t, \tau; w, \sigma) = \sum_{n} \sum_{m} A_{nm}(t, w) + \psi_{n}(\tau) + \psi_{m}(\sigma)^{*}$$
 (3-72)

where

ad day includings a quantu vision maas pole da culta) taxat qui (d) ver culta da qu

ovazionia a davana kutar vzna v sa ovazi ku matera da da

and the second strates of the second s

$$A_{nm}(t, w) = E[s_n(t) \cdot s_m(w)].$$
 (3-73)

Therefore

$$A_{jk}(t, w) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \psi_j(\tau)^* \cdot K_S(t, \tau; w, \sigma) \cdot \psi_k(\sigma) \cdot d\sigma d\tau,$$

j. k = 1, 2, 3, ..., (3-74)

Having computed Λ_{jk} (...) from the covariance matrix K_S (...; ...) we can then model each of the processes $s_n(t)$ by the autoregressive scheme discussed above. Equivalently, we can model the vector process

$$\vec{s}_n(t) = [s_1(t) \ s_2(t) \ \dots \ s_n(t)]$$
 (3-75)

with

$$E[\vec{s}_n(t) \cdot \vec{s}_n(w)^*] = Matrix [\Lambda_{ik}(t, w)]$$
(3-76)

by the same procedure.

it is noted that the received signal Y(t), in this case, admits the mean square approximation

$$Y_N(t) = \sum_{1}^{N} s_n(t) \cdot V_n(t)$$
 (3-77)

where the 2 x 1 vectors $V_{ij}(t)$ are given by

$$V_{n}(t) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \frac{Y(t-\tau)}{2} \cdot \psi_{n}(\tau) \cdot d\tau, n = 1, 2, 3, ..., N.$$
 (3-78)



3.2.2 Optimum Receiver Design: The Case of a Point Target in a Cloud of Chaff Dipoles

Let Y(t) be the received signal from a point target in a cloud of chaff dipoles, then

$$Y(t) = Y_T(t) + Y_C(t),$$
 (3.79)

where Y_T and Y_C are the received signals from the target and d_{C} chatil respectively, and both Y_T and Y_C are Gaussian processes.

The binary detection problem is to find the optimum receiver for testing

H₀: Null Hypothesis (i.e., Zero Target Signal): $Y(t) = Y_{C}(t) - r(t), \text{ for all } t \text{ in } [T_1, T_2]: \qquad (3-80)$

H1: Alternate Hypothesis:

$$Y(t) = Y_T(t) + Y_C(t) + i(t)$$
, for all t in $[T_1, T_2]$. (3-81)

In the above, r(t) is an external additive, statistically independent 2 -1 vector, white noise process. T₁ and T₂ are the initial and final observation times, and the interval [T₁, T₂] is assumed to be long enough for complete observation of the received signal.

3.2.2.1 State Space Model for the Point Target - Without lost of generality, the point target is modeled by a "2-step" autoregressive scheme. Thus Equation (3.54) now becomes

$$S(t) = A_1 + S(t - 1) + A_2 + S(t - 2) + u(t)$$
 (3-82)

where the $4 \ge 4$ matrices A_1 and A_2 have been computed from the methods discussed above and u(t) is a statistically independent $4 \ge 1$ vector white noise process. Set

$$\vec{S}(t) = \begin{bmatrix} S(t) \\ S(t-1) \end{bmatrix}$$
(3-83)

Then the state space model for the point target is

 $\vec{\mathbf{S}}(t) = \begin{bmatrix} A_1 & A_2 \\ I_4 & 0_4 \end{bmatrix} \cdot \vec{\mathbf{S}}(t-1) \neq \vec{\mathbf{u}}(t)$ $\mathbf{Y}_{\mathbf{T}}(t) = \mathbf{X}(t-\tau_0) \cdot [\mathbf{I}_4 \ \mathbf{0}_4] \cdot \vec{\mathbf{S}}(t)$ where $\vec{\mathbf{u}}(t) = \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{u}(t) \\ \mathbf{0}_{4,1} \end{bmatrix}$ (3-54)

and $0_{4,-1}$ is a 4 x 1 zero vector.

3.2.2.2 State Space Model for the Chaff Dipoles - For the chaff dipoles, let us assume that

$$S_{C}(t, \tau) = s(t) \cdot N(\tau)!_{2}$$
 (3-85)

where.

active and a stream of the pression of the standard and the standard and the standard and the standard and the s

urtyry i zwecherpulara uranywajiani i zwenunu unanaku munika munika zwananya na mananya na mananya na hina na h

DECT YEARA WILLAND AND SA

sanskoisho vitabadilustan vito visualanistie. arti

 $N(\tau)$ is a deterministic function of the average chaff cross section in range, and s(1) is stochastic. It can then be shown from the discussion in Appendix A that

$$K_{S_{C}}(t-u, r) = \rho(t-u) \cdot N(r) \cdot \mu$$
 (3-86)

and

$$K_{s}(t-u) = \rho(t-u) \cdot \mu$$
. (3-87)

where,

$$\rho(t) = [\exp(-j\overline{\omega}_{d}t - \frac{\sigma_{d}^{-}t^{2}}{2})] + [K_{1} + K_{2} \exp(-2c_{r}^{-}t^{2}) + \cos (2\overline{\omega}_{r}t)] (3-88)$$

ากd

$$\mu = 0.9\lambda^2, \ K_1 = 1.75 \begin{pmatrix} 2.73 & 0 & 0 & \frac{1}{2} \\ 0 & 1.12 & 1.12 & 0 \\ 0 & 1.12 & 1.12 & 0 \\ \frac{1}{2} & 0 & 0 & 2.73 \end{pmatrix}, \ K_2 = 1.5 \begin{pmatrix} 1.3 & 0 & 0 & 1.6 \\ 0 & \frac{1}{2} & \frac{1}{2} & 0 \\ 0 & \frac{1}{2} & \frac{1}{2} & 0 \\ -1.6 & 0 & 0 & 1.3 \end{pmatrix} (3-89)$$

It follows from the above that for the chaff dipoles we need only to model the process s(t). Thus as in the case of the point target we take

$$s(t) = a_1 s(t-1) + a_2 s(t-2) + \mu^{\frac{1}{2}} + v(t)$$
 (3-90)

where a_1 and a_2 are 4 x 4 matrices, and v(t) is a white noise zero mean process. Set

$$\vec{s}(t) = \begin{bmatrix} s(t) \\ s(t-1) \end{bmatrix}$$
(3-91)

Then the state space model for the chaff dipeles is

$$\vec{s}(t) = \begin{bmatrix} a_1 & a_2 \\ I_4 & 0_4 \end{bmatrix} \cdot \vec{s}(t-1) + \vec{v}(t)$$

$$Y_C(t) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \underline{X}(t-\tau) \cdot N(\tau)^{\frac{1}{2}} d\tau \cdot [I_4 \ 0_4] \cdot \vec{s}(t)$$

$$(3-92)$$

where the vector process v(1) is again white and with zero mean, and

$$\vec{\mathbf{v}}(t) = \begin{bmatrix} \mu^{1/2} \cdot \mathbf{v}(t) \\ \mathbf{0}_{4,1} \end{bmatrix}$$

Real and Charles and Charles

The main information given for the design of the optimum receiver is the target received signal covariance matrix K_{yT} (t, w), the chaff dipoles received signal covariance matrix K_{yC} (t, w), and the white noise process v(t) covariance matrix K_{y} (t - w) = K - δ (t - w).

3.2.2.3 Estimation of $y_T(t)$ under Hypothesis H_1 – In the state space target and chaff formulations, set

$$A_{T} = \begin{bmatrix} A_{1} & A_{2} \\ I_{4} & 0_{4} \end{bmatrix}, \text{ and } A_{Ch} = \begin{bmatrix} a_{1} & a_{2} \\ I_{4} & 0_{4} \end{bmatrix}.$$
(3-93)

Then define

uter and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

$$Z(t) = \begin{bmatrix} \vec{S}(t) \\ \vdots \\ \vec{s}(t) \end{bmatrix}, \text{ and } W(t) = \begin{bmatrix} \vec{u}(t) \\ \vdots \\ \vec{v}(t) \end{bmatrix}.$$
(3-94)

We obtain – by combining Equations (3-80), (3-81), (3-93), and (3-92) – the following state space formulation for the received signal Y(t) – under hypothesis H_1 :

$$Z(t) = \begin{bmatrix} A_{T} & 0_{4} \\ 0_{4} & A_{Ch} \end{bmatrix} \cdot Z(t-1) + W(t)$$

$$(3-95)$$

$$Y(t) = C_{1}(t) \cdot Z(t) + P(t)$$

where

$$C_{1}(t) = [\underbrace{X}(t - \tau), 0_{2,12}] + [0_{2,8}, \int_{\infty}^{\infty} \underbrace{X}(t - \tau) \cdot N(t)^{1/2} dt, 0_{2,4}]$$
(3-96)
= $C_{T}(t) + C_{C}(t)$ (say)

It then follows that the problem of estimating $Y_T(t)$ now becomes that of estimating the state vector Z(t). This is discussed below.

3.2.2.4 The Kalman Filter for Estimating Z(t) - The least square estimate $\hat{Z}(t)$ of Z(t) - basing on the observations Y(t), Y(t - 1), ..., Y(0) - is obtained by the discrete Kalman filter. The derivation of the Kalman filter is standard and will be omitted here. Figure 3-7 gives a block diagram of the filter.



Figure 3-7. The Kalman Filter for Estimating Z

The basic equations for the realization of the Kalman filter are:

a) The estimate at time t of the state of Equation (3-95) is Z(t|t-1) - the conditional mean - and it satisfies the recursive equation:

$$\overset{\Lambda}{Z(t|t-i)} = \mathbf{A} \cdot \overset{\Lambda}{Z(t-1|t-2)} + \mathbf{G}(t) [Y(t) - \mathbf{C}_1(t) \cdot \overset{\Lambda}{Z(t-1|t-2)}].$$
(3-97)

with the initial value Z(1|0) (say) given. The matrix G(t) is given by

$$G(t) = A \cdot P(t) \cdot C_1^{*}(t) [C_1(t) \cdot P(t) \cdot C_1^{*}(t) + K_{\nu}]^{-1}.$$
(3-98)

In the above

A STATE OF S

$$A = \begin{bmatrix} A_{T} & 0_{4} \\ 0_{4} & A_{Ch} \end{bmatrix}$$
 (Equation 3-95) (3-99)

and K_{ν} is the covariance matrix of the white noise process $\nu(t)$.

b) In Equation (3-98) the matrix P(t) is the covariance of the estimation error, and it is given by

11-2020

UTAU LEVEL RANKING TO STORY AND A CONTRACT OF A CONTRACT O

$$P(t + 1) = [A - G(t) \cdot C_{1}(t)] P(t) [A - G(t) \cdot C_{1}(t)] + K_{w}$$
(3-100)
+ $G(t) \cdot K_{w} \cdot G^{*}(t)$

with the initial value P(0) taken to be the covariance matrix of the initial state Z(0).

3.2.2.5 Estimation of $y_C(t)$ under Hypothesis H_0 – The chaff cloud received signal $Y_C(t)$ can of course be estimated by a Kalman filter as in the case of estimating the target received signal $Y_T(t)$. However, it is clear that once the state vector Z(t) has been estimated, the estimation of $Y_C(t)$ is readily given.

3.2.2.6 The Optimum Receiver – The optimum receiver is described in Figure 3-8. It compares $Y_1(t)$ under H_1 with $Y(t) - Y_C(t)$ – under H_0 against the decision threshold.



Figure 3-5. The Optimum Receiver

3.2.3 State Space Summary

The foregoing approach has provided a state space model for the design of an optimum receiver in terms of detecting a point target in clutter. The receiver implementation is given in the conventional Kalman filter realization, based upon knowledge of the target/ clutter scattering properties and a given transmit waveform. Further study will be necessary to also utilize the state space model in the design of optimal transmit waveforms.

3.3 THE FREDHOLM INTEGRAL EQUATION APPROACH

We discuss in this section the design of yet another form of receiver for the bir ary detection problem of the previous section. It consists of:

- a) An optimum linear filter E_0 which estimates the target received signal $Y_T(t)$ from an observation Y(t) assuming that hypothesis H_1 is true, and
- b) A prewhitening filter Q_0 for the chaff cloud interference.

This receiver is shown in Figure 3-9, where the two filters E_0 and Q_0 are solutions of two matrix Fredholm Integral Equations.

We now illustrate this approach for the case of a point target in a cloud of chaff dipoles considered in the previous section.



Figure 3-9. The Correlator-Detector Receiver

3.3.1 Integral Equation for the Filter QG

The dual channel fifter Q_0 has the weighting matrix

$$Q_0(t, u) = K^{-1} [i_2 \cdot \delta (t - u) - D_0(t, u)], \qquad (3-101)$$

where $K = a 2 \times 2$ constant matrix - is the white noise process covariance matrix, and the 2×2 matrix $D_{(1,r)}$ satisfies the following matrix Fredholm Integral Equation:

$$D_{0}(t, u) \cdot K + \int_{1}^{T_{2}} D_{0}(t, s) \cdot K_{y_{1}}(s, u) \cdot ds = K_{y_{1}}(t, u).$$
 (3-102)

To solve for D_0 (.,.) from Equation (3-102) we first compute the chaff dipoles received signal covariance matrix K_{y_C} (t, u).

We have - from Equation (3-86) of the previous section -

$$K_{S_C}(t - u, \tau) = \rho (1 - u) \cdot N(\tau) \cdot \mu$$
 (3-103)

then

Contract in the second s

$$\kappa_{y_{C}}(t, u) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} K_{S_{C}}(t - u, \tau) \cdot X(t - \tau, u - \tau) \cdot d\tau \qquad (3-104)$$

where we recall that $k_{y_C}(\cdot)$ is the 4 x 1 vector with entries of $k_{y_C}(\cdot)$, and

$$\overline{X}(t - \tau, u - \tau) = [x_1(t - \tau) \overline{x}_1(u - \tau), x_1(t - \tau) \overline{x}_2(u - \tau)],$$

$$x_2(t - \tau) \overline{x}_1(u - \tau), \overline{x}_2(t - \tau) \overline{x}_2(u - \tau)].$$
(3-105)

Here x_1 and x_2 are entries of the transmitted signal. We have

$$\kappa_{y_{C}}(t, u) = \rho(t - v) \cdot \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \mu \cdot X(t - \tau, v - \tau) \cdot N(\tau) \cdot d\tau \qquad (3.106)$$
$$= \rho(t - u) \cdot \mu \cdot G(t, u) (say)$$

Now, let g_{ij} , i, j = 1, 2, be the entries of the 2 x 1 vector G, then

$$\kappa_{y_{C}}(t, u) = \rho(t - u) \begin{bmatrix} 3\rho_{11}(t, u) + \beta_{22}(t, u) g_{12}(t, u) + g_{21}(t, u) \\ g_{12}(t, u) + g_{21}(t, u) g_{11}(t, u) + 3g_{22}(t, u) \end{bmatrix} \mu,$$
(3-197)

where $\mu = 0.9\lambda^2$

-	-	-	
	-	-	
•	•		
	_	1	
	-	_	

3.3.2 The System of Fredholm Integral Equations for $D_0(t, u) = \{D_0^{ij}(t, u)\}$

Substituting Equation (3-108) into Equation (3-104), we obtain the following system of integral equations:

$$\rho(t - u) G_{11}(t, u) \mu = D_0^{11}(t, u)k_{11} + D_0^{12}(t, u)k_{21} + \mu \int_{T_1}^{T_2} [D_0^{11}(t, s) G_{11}(s, u) + D_0^{12}(t, s) G_{12}(s, u)] \rho(s - u) \cdot ds \qquad (3-108)$$

$$\rho(t - u) G_{12}(t, u) \mu = D_0^{11}(t, u)k_{12} + D_0^{12}(t, u)k_{22} + \mu \int_{T_1}^{T_2} [D_0^{11}(t, s) G_{12}(s, u) + D_0^{12}(t, s) G_{22}(s, u)] \rho(s - u) \cdot ds \qquad (3-109)$$

$$\rho(t - u) G_{21}(t, u) \mu = D_0^{21}(t, u)k_{11} + D_0^{22}(t, u)k_{21} + \mu \int_{T_1}^{T_2} [D_0^{21}(t, s) G_{11}(s, u) + D_0^{22}(t, s) G_{21}(s, u)] \rho(s - u) \cdot ds \qquad (3-110)$$

$$\rho(t - u) G_{22}(t, u) \mu = D_0^{21}(t, u) k_{12} + D_0^{22}(t, u) k_{22} + \mu \int_{T_1}^{T_2} [D_0^{21}(t, s) G_{12}(s, u) + D_0^{22}(t, s) G_{22}(s, u)] \rho(s - u) - ds \qquad (3-11)$$

where k_{ij} , i, j = 1, 2, are entries of the constant matrix K, and G_{ij} , i, j = 1, 2, are entries of the matrix on the right hand side of Equation (3-106).

3.3.3 Integral Equation for the Filter E0

JERNANA WANTANA

The optimum filter E_0 which gives the minimum variance estimate of the signal y_T - under H_1 - is given by the matrix integral equation

$$E_0(t, u) \cdot K + \int_{T_i}^{T_2} E_0(t, s) [K_{y_T}(s, u) + K_{y_C}(s, u)] \cdot ds = K_{y_T}(t, u)$$

(3-112)

Here $K_{y_T}(\cdot)$ is the target received signal covariance matrix – which can be computed by the results of Section 3.2. The above can be expanded into a system of integral equations, as was $D_0(t, u)$ for the chaff.

3.3.4 Approach to Selving Equations

and the second states of the s

and a standard and and a short and a short and a short and

unus. Vanurinnunurikkontraskuutaanutaanutaan kuistaanutaanutaanut

alean and the second construction of the second

The design of the Correlator-Detector-Receiver is complicated by the fact that it involves solutions of two matrix Fredholm Integral Equations. It is clear that the above integral equations can, in general, be quite difficult to solve "exactly". Their solutions depend on the functions G_{ii} which, in turn, are dependent on the transmitted signal x(t).

In most cases, these solutions can be approximated by appropriate orthonormal sequences of functions (a mean square approximation), where the choice of these functions depends on each particular case. In the case of the chaff cloud for instance, since the interval $[T_1, T_2]$ is taken to be finite, we assume that the functions $D_0^{ij}(t, u)$ can be expanded in a "double" orthonormal series of Legendre polynomials $P_i(t)$ $P_i(u)$:

$$D_0^{ij}(t, u) = \sum_{0}^{N} \sum_{0}^{N} \eta_{\kappa} i^{ij} P_{\kappa}(t) \cdot P_1(u)$$

Substituting in the system of integral equations we then obtain a system of algebraic equations for the coefficients $\eta_{\kappa 1}^{ij}$. Similarly, one can approximate the integral equation for $E_0(t, u)$.

It is also noted that an expedient choice of the transmit signal can simplify the problem somewhat. Referring back to the system of equations for D_0 , we have

$$g_{ij}(t) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} N(\tau) \cdot x_{i}(t-\tau) x_{j}(t-\tau)^{*} d\tau \quad i, i = 1, 2,$$
 (3-113)

where $x_i(t)$, i = 1, 2, are the entries of the transmitted signal X(t). Since X(t) can be chosen, and due to the specific form of the function N(r), in this case, we can take

$$x_1(t) = He_0(t) = 1$$
, and $x_2(t) = He_1(t) = (\sqrt{c}/\sigma_r)t$. (3-114)

the first two Hermite Polynomials. Then it can be easily verified that

$$g_{ij}(i) = 0 \text{ for } i \neq j$$

, i, j = 1, 2.
 $\neq 0 \text{ for } i = j$ (3-115)

The matrix G(t) therefore becomes a diagonal matrix, which will simplify the solution.

3.3.5 Fredholm Approach Summary

The above approach has been the least developed during the course of this study, ending essentially with the mathematical formulation of the problem. The difficulties envisioned in solving the sets of integral equations, would tend to faw r the finite dimensional and state space approaches as the more preferred methods in obtaining solutions to waveform design and associated concrent receiver processing. Additional study would be required to verify this assumption.

3.4 STOKES FORMALISM

The final method reported upon for utilizing scattering properties of target and ciutter, is the formulation of the system model in terms of Stokes parameters. This method is summanzed briefly below. A much more detailed description of this approach can be found in Rosien et al [1979].

3.4.1 Stokes Model

and a second states when a second second

esterrenten den der der der sterten under der den der stelte sterte der besternen seren der der der der der der

, 2010 Martin Martin States and a states and a states of the states of t

The previous sections have described the general concepts of scattering theory in terms of the target scattering matrix, as given by:

$$H = \begin{bmatrix} h_{11} & h_{12} \\ h_{21} & h_{22} \end{bmatrix}$$
(3-116)

Kennaugh [1951] has shown that the average received power can be expressed as:

$$\mathbf{P} = \mathbf{Y}\mathbf{A}\mathbf{X} \tag{3-117}$$

where X and Y are four-dimensional vectors, whose elements are the Stokes parameters, which describe the transmitter and receiver antenna polarizations. The matrix A is 4×4 real symmetric, and is known as the average Stokes scattering operator. The elements of A are cor posed of the expectations of various combinations of the elements of the scattering matrix H (see Rosien [1979] for details).

If one is given the Stokes target scattering operator A, and a similar operator for clutter C, then the problem becomes one of maximizing

$$\frac{\widetilde{Y}AX}{\widetilde{Y}CX} = s/c \qquad (3-118)$$

The solution to Equation (3-118) is detailed in Rosien [1979], and consists of a constrained maximization of the ratio of two bilinerr forms. The output is the optimum pair of Stokes vectors for X and Y, which completely describes the transmit and receive antenna polarizations.

Results of this approach will be reported upon in Section 5.2.

Section 4

MODELING AND SIMULATION

This section contains a brief description of the target and chaff models utilized in the computer simulations which provided the performance results reported in Section 5. Both the target and chaff models have been developed in prior work, and considerable additional information can be found in Rosien [1979]. The major items of interest for this study, as reported below, are the method for computing the target scattering covariance matrix and development of the autoregressive chaff model for the computer simulation runs. Also included are brief descriptions of the various software packages utilized to generate the dual and single channel target detection performance results.

4.1 TARGET MODELS

4.1.1 Methodology

herdered trentopped treber produces by the first of

Since exact solutions to the electromagnetic response of complex radar targets, such as alectaft, are almost impossible to obtain, most studies on modeling of the cross section for such targets employ approximate techniques, which are valid and sufficient for the frequency range of interest and intended applications. We are primarily interested in the high frequency response of these targets (i.e., wavelengths smaller than the characteristic dimensions of most of the scatters cn the targets). Therefore, we have assumed that the target response can be approximated by the algebraic sum of the responses of a collection of individual scatters which form the target. Furthermore, to reduce the computation labor we have approximated most of the scattering components of aircraft targets by simple geometric shapes for which there are either exact cross section expressions or approximate expressions derived using Physical Optics (PO) and or Geometric Theory of Diffraction (GTD) techniques. Both of these methods are high frequency approximations and zre adequate for modeling of the scattering characteristics of most scatters at radar frequencies.

4.1.2 Target: A Collection of Scatters

The simple geometric shapes which we use in modeling aircraft targets are ellipsoids, elliptical flat plates, cylinders and thin wires. In addition to these we represent, as discrete scatters surface discontinuities such as the wing fusciage joints or the engine fusciage joints. Table 4-I lists the various types of scatterers which we have modeled and the corresponding theory (PO or GTD) used in deriving the analytical representation. Figure 4-I depicts the BQM-34A Drone model used in our simulation program. Table 4-II lists the individual scatterers and corresponding scattering models used in the BQM-34A Drone.

The mathematical model of each scatterer is embodied in the softering matrix. It is represented in spherical coordinates in the scatterer principle axis system, which is selected such that a diagonal scattering matrix results. In mathematical form, we have

TABLE 4-1.SCATTERER TYPES USED FOR THE SIMULATION
OF THE RADAR CROSS SECTIONS

D. MERNENAMANIANA

	Scatterer Type	Theory
	Ellipsoid	PO
	Elliptical Flat Plate	GTD
	Hollow Elliptical Cylinder	GTD & PO
	Cylinder	GTD & PO
	Thin Wire	From Series Expansion
	Joint Between Two Cylinders	GTO
	Exhaust Duct	GTD
	Cone-Cylinder	GTD
9632-11	Doubly Reflected Ray From Two Ellipsoids	PO
	Smooth Junction of Curved Sufraces (Slope Discontinuity)	GTD

TABLE 4-II. SCATTERER TYPES USED IN MODELING THE BQM-34A DRONE

Scatterer	Modei
Fuselage Sections 1 and 3	Ellipsoxi
Fuselage Section 2	Cylinder
Wings, Tar', Stab Trens, and Vertical Fin	Elliptical Plate + Thin Wire
Wings, Tail, Stabilizer, and Vertical Fin Joints	Joints
Slope Discontinuity at Engine Interlace and Exhaust	Stope Discontinuity
Engine	Open Ended Cylinder
Engine Blades	Two Thin Wires
Double Reflections	Two Ellipsoids
Wing - Fuselage Stabilization - Tail	
JIGUINETY + IGH	

уматеритери и свыдущителя ранатеритется владарских виннаранскоптала принасти и маринализации и простории страну

ESTEVELOUVERSEINNA SPEINKINA EINKKOMS AN SYMMENY MAAAMA GARMAR

SAUU/ARSINEERAD BRACED EDWIN REED AND



BOM-34A Firebeel Target Drone Dropping Away from the Launch Pytion of its Carrier Aircraft

onte-aritana las Numericanas da

A STATEMENT AND A COMPANY AND A COMPANY AND A COMPANY AND A COMPANY AND A COMPANY AND A COMPANY AND A COMPANY A

10.11

TAR DUCED AND A DURING THE REAL PROPERTY OF THE REA



Figure 4-1. Photo and Model of the BQM-34.A Target Drone

$$S_{i} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & S_{\theta i} & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & S_{\phi i} \end{bmatrix} e^{-j2k\rho_{i}}$$
(4-1)

where S_i is the scattering matrix of the ith scatterer in its own principle axis system. $S_{\theta i}$ and $S_{\dot{\theta} i}$ are complex functions of the scatterer size and aspect angle in the orthogonal θ (vertical) and ϕ (horizontal) directions, and ρ_i is the one-way distance between a plane wave front passing through the reflection point and one passing through the center of the target coordinate system.

To compute the received signal, we transform the scattering matrix from the scatter principle axes system to radar coordinates. This includes several transforms as follows:

$$H_{i} = P'A'E'Q'S_{i} QBAP \qquad (4-2)$$

where H_i is the scattering matrix of the ith scatterer in the antenna coordinate system. P is a transformation from spherical to Cartesian coordinates in the antenna frame. A is a transformation from the antenna frame to the target frame. B is a transformation from the target frame to the scatterer principle axis frame, and Q is a transformation from Cartesian to spherical coordinates in the scatterer frame.

In the case of a single pulse much longer than the target, the scattering matrix of the target may be approximated by the summation

$$H_{T} = \sum_{i} H_{i}$$
(4-3)

The three element polarization signal vector backscattered from the target is then given by

$$E_{b} = H_{T}E_{t}$$
(4-4)

where the subscript b refers to the backscattered target return in the antenna frame, and the subscript t refers to the transmit antenna polarization vector.

4.1.3 Radar Cross Section Validation

and the second of the second states of the second second

nanannanadada ay kananganan hayadan kananadan kananan kananan kanan

INSUMPLEXANNEOUTAHUGERED

The target model of the BQM-34A drone was validated by comparing the simulated RCS plots for various transmit and receive polarizations with RATSCAT [1977] measurements. The drone model consists of approximately 30 individual scatterers, each of which includes both size parameters and a backscatter coefficient. The size parameters were selected to resemble the target configuration. Then from a knowledge of the characteristics of each scatterer model and through a trial and error process, the backscatter coefficients were adjusted in order to match the simulated RCS plots to those obtained from measurements. Sample results of the comparisons are shown in Figures 4-2, 4-3, and 4-4 for three different transmit and receive polarization settings. As can be seen, the simulation results match the measurements rather well in the aleas of general curve shape, specular type returns, tobing structure, fluctuation, and relative scale (power levels).



おおとうちょう ちょうちょう ちょうちょう ちゅうちょうちょう ちょうちょう

to with fan could fai the tribulio Manuch of Zeduca test that the first of the second states



•

.....

Series Ser

20.000

4-5



;

•

.....

ter anter a



7



HEAR FACEN MANAGANA WAANA WAANA WAANA WAANA HAARAY WAANA WAANA MAANA MAA AM

.

Figure 4-4. Measured and Simulated Cross Section of the BQM-34A Drone as a function of yaw argle at 5500 MHz for vertical transmit and horizon al receive

4.1.4 Covariance Matrix

The covariance matrix of the target was computed using 300 samples of RCS obtained from contiguous increments in aspect angle The angle stepping was performed in nested loops with yaw being stepped in the inner loop; roll in the intermediate loop; and pitch in the outer loop. Yow was varied between 5 and 25 degrees with increments of 0.2 degree. Roll ranged from -30 to -28 degrees and was incremented in steps of 1 degree. Pitch was varied from 9 to 11 degrees in 1-degree steps. These aspect variations actually yield 900 samples, of which 300 were selected for covariance matrix computation. When the sample time was assumed to be 1 msec, 300 contiguous samples were used. When the sample time was assumed to be 3 msec, every third sample was used to compute the covariance matrix. (Note should be made that there are four sets of RCS samples of 900 numbers. Each set represents one of the elements of the scattering matrix $(h_{11}, h_{12}, h_{21}, h_{22})$). Plots of the correlation function derived from the simulated target model are shown in Figure 4-5 for both the amplitude and phase. Since $h_{21} = h_{12}$, h_{21} is not explicitly shown.

4.2 CHAFF

<u>as de ester sukteur lyken und de generater ha avere, avert</u>

onteen and the states of the s

4.2.1 The Dipole Chaff Cloud Model

In this section a chaff cloud is modeled as a collection of rotating dipole scatterers. The model provides for simulation of the polarization and spectral characteristics of radar signals backscattered from a cloud of rotating dipoles which can have either completely random or any preferred orientation. A vector autoregressive process based upon the above model, is then used to obtain a Stochastic model for the simulation of the scattering matrix elements of the dipole cloud and signals scattered from the chaff.

4.2.2 Theoretical Covariance Matrix

A description of the theoretical aspects of the chaff covariance matrix is presented below (more detail is given in Appendix A). This covariance function can be written in terms of the spectral and polarization characteristics of the chaff cloud. These characteristics are dependent upon the geometrical configurations of the dipoles which constitute the cloud. As a consequence, the orientation of a typical dipole (as depicted in Figure 4-6) will be considered first in the development of the theoretical model.

To arrive at a description of the dipole orientation, we carry out a transformation consisting of three successive rotations defined by the Eulerian angles. Starting with the unprimed system, we rotate the double primed system by an angle ϕ counterclockwise about the z axis. The primed system is defined through a rotation by an angle θ in the counterclockwise direction around the x' axis. The dipole orientation is then found in the primed system, where the axis of rotation coincides with the x' axis and the dipole is in the (x', y') plane as defined by the angle ψ .



ĩ

2

W. W. LAULANI, DURING VILL

NARIA INA

•

¥10, -

JAN AV

.

Figure 4-5. Simulated Target Correlation Function



- 4

-2

_

Figure 4-6. Dipole Orientation

1



9632-19

.

Contract and a second second second second

1

 z^{+} AXIS OF DIPOLE ROTATION ORIENTATION OF z^{+} IS UNIFORMLY DISTRIBUTED -180° ≤△ ϕ ≤ 180°, -90° ≤△ θ ≤90° CIPOLES ROTATE IN (X, Y) PLANE

Figare 4.7. Dipole Geometry

In order to be consistent with our definition of the scattering matrix, we orient the inprimed system such that x is in the vertical direction and y is in the horizontal direction. The wave is assumed to travel along the z axis. The reprinted coordinate system is shown in Figure 4-7 where z is into the page. Notice also that the primed system is shown with the dipole rotating in the (x', y') plane. The primed system, as shown in Figure 4-7, is derived from Figure 4-0 by setting $\varphi = 270^\circ \pm \Delta \phi = -90^\circ \pm \Delta \phi$, and $\vartheta = 90^\circ \pm \Delta \theta$. The angle ψ to function of time) is given by $\psi = \omega_{\rm p} t \pm \alpha$, where $\omega_{\rm p}$ is the dipole rotation rate and α is the initial angle. As seen in the figure, the perturbations $\Delta \theta$ serve to orient the axis of rotation (z') and, subsequently the plane of the rotating dipole relative to the x axis. Notice that with $\Delta \theta = 0$ the line of sight (z axis) remains in the plane of rotation. Only when $\Delta \theta \neq 0$ is the z axis not in the plane of rotation. The limits on the perturbations are as follows. $-90^\circ \leq \Delta \theta \leq 90^\circ$ and $-180^\circ \leq \Delta \phi \leq 180^\circ$. If the limits are reached, the dipole may have any orientation whatsoever.

If the dipole direction (denoted by the unit vector d) is described in the (x', y')plane by the angle ψ , then we can find its orientation in the (x, y, z) coordinate system through the application of the inverse Eulerian transformation. The scattering matrix of such a dipole to an electromagnetic wave propagating along the z axis is given by (Borison [1967]). Wong et al [1967])

$$\mathbf{H} = \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{X}\mathbf{X}} & \mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{X}\mathbf{y}} \\ \mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{y}\mathbf{X}} & \mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{y}\mathbf{y}} \end{bmatrix} = \sqrt{0.9} \quad \lambda \hat{\mathbf{d}} \hat{\mathbf{d}}^*$$
(4-5)

where λ is the wavelength of the incident signal, d^{-1} is defined as the outer product, and $h_{XY} = h_{YX}$. From this it is clear that h_{XX} , h_{XY} , h_{YX} , and h_{YY} are all functions of the variables θ , ϕ , and ϕ , and λ , where $\psi = \omega_{p}t + \alpha$ is a function of the dipole rotation rate and time. The orientation of the dipole rotation plane described by θ and ϕ impact the polarization of the scattered wave, while the Doppler is dependent upon ψ and λ .

Before proceeding to determine the temporal and polarization characteristics of a collection of dipoles let us define a new vector

$$h(t) = [h_{xx}(t), h_{yy}(t), h_{yy}(t)]$$
(4-5)

Then the covariance matrix of h(t) is given by

$$K_{14}(\tau) = E_{1}b(t) h^{*}(t-\tau)$$
 (4-7)

where the * denotes complex conjugate transpose.

When the angular rotation rate and the Doppler due to the drift velocity are each described by distribution functions which include means and standard deviations, then $K_{\rm H}(r)$ will be a function of $\tilde{\omega}_r \ \sigma_{r} \ \tilde{\omega}_d$, and σ_d , where the subscript r denotes rotation, the subscript d refers to Doppler, the bar means average, and σ is the standard deviation. If the dipoles are distributed over restricted region, of both β and ϕ , $K_{\rm H}(r)$ will thus be a function

of these limits θ_1 , θ_2 , ϕ_1 , and ϕ_2 . As a result the covariance matrix includes spectral content due to the dipole activity and polarization characteristics due to the dipole distribution.

The covariance matrix can be written such that the spectral and polarization characteristics are separable functions (see Appendix A):

$$K_{H}(\tau) = M_{d}(\tau) \cdot \left\{ C + M_{r}(2\tau) \cdot D + \overline{M}_{r}(2\tau) \cdot \overline{D} \right\}$$
(4-8)

where $M_d(\tau) = M_d(\tau, \bar{\omega}_d, \sigma_d)$ and $M_r(\tau) = M_r(\tau, \bar{\omega}_r, \sigma_r)$ are scalars, and where C and D are 3X3 matrix functions of θ_1 , θ_2 , ϕ_1 , and ϕ_2 . Notice that the spectral content for all of the elements in the covariance matrix stems from the same two sources, namely M_d and M_r . However, the elements may exhibit different correlation characteristics as a function of the matrices C and D. In effect, the correlation functions for all of the elements in $K_H(\tau)$ result from the summation of weighted time functions, where the weights differ for the various elements.

4.2.3 Stochastic Model Derived From Autoregressive Process

diktindi be avarea starenen hasar padara karakatara dan adan adan hatar da ka

A a statistic the statistic st

Given the theoretically derived m⁻trix covariance function $K_H(\tau)$ of the chaff scattering matrix elements k_{ij} , the stochastic vector h(t) may be modeled by a three element complex vector autoregressive process excited with a zero mean complex vector white Gaussian noise source u(t) described as follows.

$$h(t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M} A_{i} h(t - i\Delta t) + u(t)$$
(4-9)

where the A_i 's are 3 x 3 complex matrix coefficients to be determined. The matrix coefficients A_i can be obtained by solving the matrix Yule-Walker equations

$$K_{H}(m\Delta t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M} A_{i} K_{H} [(m-i)\Delta t] \quad m = 1, ..., M$$
 (4-10)

As the order of the autoregressive (AR) model increases by 1 from M to M+1, there are nine new matrix elements of A_{M+1} to be computed in addition to the 9 x M elements of A_1 through A_M that need to be recomputed.

It is noted, as stated previously, that the $K_{H}(\tau)$ in Equation (4-8) can be decomposed into three components as follows.

$$K_{H}(\tau) = (M_{d}(\tau) \cdot C) + (M_{d}(\tau) \cdot M_{\tau}(2\tau) \cdot D) + (M_{d}(\tau) \cdot \overline{M}_{\tau}(2\tau) \cdot \overline{D})$$
$$= K_{H_{1}}(\tau) + K_{H_{2}}(\tau) + K_{H_{3}}(\tau)$$
(4-11)

It can be shown that the covariance function of the sum of the outputs of three independent linear systems each being excited with a mutually independent zero mean white Gaussian noise source is equal to the sum of the autocovariance functions of the output of the three linear systems.

Hence, each of the covariance functions $K_{Hi}(\tau)$ (i=1.2.3) can be individually modeled with an autoregressive process.

Also, we note that $K_{H1}(\tau)$ is composed of a product of the time correlation function $M_d(\tau)$, which is a scalar, and the covariance matrix C of the scattering matrix elements h_{ij} . It then follows that the complex vector autoregreesive process can be modeled with scalar coefficients $a_i \ldots a_M$, that is

$$A_i = a_i!$$
 $i=1, \dots, M_a$

and

ssoreshyvederimiserenvendenne^f

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{M}_{a} \\ \mathbf{h}_{1}(t) = & \sum_{j=1}^{M_{a}} \mathbf{A}_{j} \mathbf{h}_{1}(t - i\Delta t) + \mathbf{u}_{1}(t) \end{split}$$
 (4-12)

$$K_{H1}(m\Delta t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M_a} a_i K_{H1}[(m - i)\Delta t] = C + \sum_{i=1}^{M_a} a_i - M_d[(m - i)\Delta t]$$

The same argument applies to $K_{H2}(\tau)$ and $K_{H3}(\tau)$.

Therefore,

Ĭ.

$$h_2(t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M_b} b_i h_2(t - i\Delta t) + u_2(t)$$
 (4-13)

$$K_{H2}(m\Delta t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M_b} b_i K_{H2}[(m-i)\Delta t]$$
$$= D \cdot \sum_{i=1}^{M_b} b_i \cdot M_d[(m-i)\Delta t] \cdot M_t[2(m-i)\Delta t]$$

and

errivelikus ardinus uduk sen yikud na ma

ika intelumentupanen anten surahisi patinakun anpun Zennisekan antannan kanantan kananan kananan an ananan kanan

AND REAL VIEW AND THE DESCRIPTION AND A DESCRIPTION OF A

$$h_{3}(t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M_{c}} c_{i} h_{3}(t - i\Delta t) + u_{3}(t)$$
(4-14)

$$K_{H3}(m\Delta t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M_c} c_i K_{H3}[(m - i)\Delta t]$$

$$= \overline{D} \cdot \sum_{i=1}^{c_{i}} c_{i} M_{d}[(m-i) \Delta t] \cdot \overline{M}_{r}[2(m-i)\Delta t]$$

Furthermore, since

$$\mathbf{D} \cdot \mathbf{M}_{r}(2\tau) \div \overline{\mathbf{D}} \cdot \overline{\mathbf{M}}_{r}(2\tau) = 2 \operatorname{Re}[\mathbf{D} \cdot \mathbf{M}_{r}(2\tau)]$$

it follows that c_i is the complex conjugate pair of b_i i.e., $c_i = \bar{b}_i$

and

$$h(\tau) = h_1(\tau) + h_2(\tau)$$
 (4.15)

The scalar coefficients a_i , b_i and c_i can be obtained by solving the Yule-Walker equations of the correlation functions $M_d(\tau)$, $M_d(\tau) \cdot M_r(2\tau)$ and $M_d(\tau) \cdot M_r(2\tau)$ respectively.

From a closer examination into the properties of the correlation functions $M_d(\tau)$, $M_r(2\tau)$, $\overline{M_r}(2\tau)$ in Appendix A (Equations 10-14), it is noted that these functions are expressed in terms of exponential functions of complex exponents.

$$M_{d}(\tau) = \exp \left[-j\overline{\omega}_{d}\tau - \frac{\sigma_{d}^{2}}{2}\tau^{2}\right]$$
$$M_{t}(2\tau) = \exp \left[-j2\overline{\omega}_{t}\tau - 2\sigma_{r}^{2}\tau^{2}\right]$$
$$\overline{M}_{t}(2\tau) = \exp \left[j2\overline{\omega}_{t}\tau - 2\sigma_{r}^{2}\tau^{2}\right]$$

where $\overline{\omega}$ denotes the average value of ω , and σ^2 represents the variance of ω .
The real part of the exponents are all negative and thus an exponentially decorrelating function of time. The imaginary part $\overline{\omega}\tau$ is associated with the sinusoidal modulation of angular rate $\overline{\omega}$ (i.e., $m(\tau) = \exp(-j\omega t)$, a line in the power spectral domain since this imaginary part of the exponent is a linear function of τ .

Under this special case, the real and imaginary parts of the exponent can be separated by associating the real part with the autoregressive process and the imaginary part with the sinusoidal modulation.

Realization of the autoregressive process for the general case of Equations (4-12), (4-13) and (4-14) yields complex valued coefficients. For the special case the coefficients are real.

For this special case we define the three autoregressive (AR) processes as $a_1(t)$, $b_2(t)$ and $b_3(t)$ and the associated scalar coefficients a_i , b_j and c_i which are real values.

Then we have

and the second standard and a standard and a standard standard standard standard standard standard standard st

$$\hat{K}_{\text{III}}(\textbf{m}\Delta t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M_a} \hat{A}_i \hat{K}_{\text{HI}}[(\textbf{m} - i)\Delta t] = C \sum_{i=1}^{M_a} \hat{A}_i \cdot \exp\left[-\frac{\sigma_d^2}{2}(\textbf{m} - i)^2 \Delta t^2\right]$$

$$\hat{K}_{H2}(m\Delta t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M_b} \hat{b}_i \hat{K}_{H2}[(m-i)\Delta t]$$

= D $\sum_{i=1}^{M_b} \hat{b}_i \exp[-\frac{\sigma_d^2 + 4\sigma_r^2}{2}(m-i)^2\Delta t^2]$

$$\bigwedge_{i_{3}(t)}^{h} = \sum_{i=1}^{M_{b}} \bigwedge_{b_{i}}^{h} \bigwedge_{h_{3}(t - i\Delta t)}^{h} + u_{3}(t)$$
(4-18)

$$\hat{\mathbf{k}}_{H3}(\mathbf{m}\Delta t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M_b} \hat{\mathbf{k}}_i \hat{\mathbf{k}}_{H3}[(\mathbf{m} - i)\Delta t]$$

-

$$= \overline{D} \sum_{i=1}^{M_{b}} \hat{b}_{i} \exp \left[-\frac{\sigma_{d}^{2} + 4\sigma_{r}^{2}}{2}(m-i)^{2}\Delta t^{2}\right]$$

and

$$-j\omega_{d}t \qquad -j\overline{\omega_{r}}, \qquad j\overline{\omega_{r}}, \qquad j\overline{\omega_{r}}, \qquad h_{1}(t) = c \qquad [h_{1}(t) + c \qquad h_{R}(t) + c \qquad h_{3}(t)] \qquad (4-19)$$

An efficient algorithm developed by Durbin [DURBIN, 1960] to compute the coefficients of the AR process, is used. This algorithm computes the coefficients in a recursive manner increasing the order of the AR process by one with each iteration until the desired mean squared error criterion of the fitness of the AR model to the theoretical convariance function is met. A discussion on the Durbin Recursive Algorithm is given by Appendix F.

Realization of the stochastic modeling of chaff is accomplished using the AR processor in the form of a digital filter with an appropriate number of delays T and an associated weighted feedback loop whose weights are the scalar coefficients. Two functional diagrams of the stochastic chaff model are given in Figures 4-8 and 4-9 for the general and special cases respectively.



......

S

4.2.4 Covariance Matrix Validation

Correlation functions of the elements in the chaff scattering matrix are plotted in Figures 4-10 and 4-11. These functions were derived from the covariance matrix, which results from the scattering matrix. Figure 4-10 has plots of the theoretical correlation functions according to the results of Appendix A. Simulated correlation curves for a 7-point autoregressive fit of both amplitude and phase are found in Figure 4-11. As would be expected, the simulated curves differ slightly from the theoretical curves. However, the simulated curves would be expected to approach the theoretical curves if an infinite number of samples were used in the computation.

4.3 SIMULATION

4.3.1 Overview

The overall simulation is carried out in two major steps as indicated in Figure 4-12. The first step consists of simulating the target and chaff. Included in this function is the generation of sampled versions of scattering matrices for both target and chaff as would be sensed by the radar. The second major step is the simulation of the signal processing performed in the radar. This consists of computing the covariance matrices of the target and chaff from the sampled data and performing the optimization process to arrive at the weights (and waveform in the matrix weighting case) to be applied to the pulse train.

This simulation approach has the advantage that the target and chaff simulations need to be run only once for a given set of conditions. The results are stored on tape and can then be used as needed by the various processing routines.

4.3.2 Target

HARLENE IN CHARLES PER CONTINUES

antion for the second second second

Simulation of the target consists of generating samples of the scattering matrix for a series of aspect angles representative of a target maneuver. Two basic modules are used in the simulation, each of which includes several subroutines. One is the geometry module; the other is the scattering matrix module. These modules and routines are shown in the target simulation block diagram of Figure 413.

Two loops are shown in the diagram, one is a loop on all of the scatterer's composing the target. The second loop controls the number of scattering matrix samples generated by the program.

The input to the program includes the range of aspect angles and angle increments to be used in computing the scattering matrix samples. The output consists of a vector sum of the individual scatterer scattering matrices. This sum includes both amplitude and phase from each of the scatterers for each of the elements in the scattering matrix. This is what produces the deep nulls in the rcs plots as a function of aspect angle.



T: ALCONT

ಯನ್

Figure 4-10. Theoretics' Chaff Scattering Matrix Correlation Function

1



Æ

1

-3-4-55

Figure 4-11. Simulated Chaff Model Autoregression Process



Figure 4-12. Overall Simulation Block Diagram

The service second

- - -



Figure 4.13, Target Simulation Block Diagram

2

a set of a strategy

200 A 40000

4.3.3 Chaff

WAYNAM SATER JANUN

Chaff simulation consists of generating random samples of the scattering matrix from representative stochastic processes. A block diagram of the chaff simulation is shown in Figure 4-14. The program is divided into two basic areas. The first consists of a one-time computation of parameters and values needed for generation of the random samples. The second is the loop composed of the actual steps followed in the recursive generation of the stochastic process outputs.

Inputs to the program include parameters to the theoretical correlation model, angles describing the geometrical distribution of the dipoles, parameters affecting the power received by the radar, and the number (and size) of the time increments required. The outputs are samples of the elements in the scattering matrix as a function of the time increments.

4.3.4 Processing Algorithms

4.3.4.1 <u>Weighting Matrix</u> - A block diagram showing the main steps in the simulation of the weighting matrix followed by a maximum likelihood receiver is depicted in Figure 4-15. The inputs to this processor simulation are the target and chaff samples of the scattering matrices.

The first section of the program is devoted to computing the optimum transmit waveform and receive weighting/transform matrix. The weighting'transform matrix was computed according to the method discussed in Section 3. However, the transmit waveform is determined through a more direct approach. We assumed that an antenna in a practical system would be able to transmit polarization states defined by four bits of phase and four bits of amplitude information. This yields a total of 256 states, only 114 of which are nonredundant. Thus, the algorithm used in selecting the optimum waveform cycled through these 114 states for each pulse and chose the state which minimized the Frobenius norm as discussed in Section 3.

The second part of the program consists of a loop wherein the target and chaff samples are operated on by the optimum radar. This includes transmitting the optimum waveform, operating on the return with the weighting/transform matrix, and comparing the result with a threshold. The number of threshold crossings is then counted and used in determining the probability of detection.

4.3.4.2 <u>Weighting Vector</u> – A block diagram of the vector weighting method is shown in Figure 4-16. The simulation consists of two parts. The first includes a loop to iterate on the optimum weighting vector and then computes the signal-to-chaff ratio resulting from the application of this optimum vector. The second part computes the signal-to-chaff ratio for the simple matched filter case. Plots of the outputs provide comparison of the optimum vector approach to the conventional matched filter method.



4-24

الم تر الم الم الم



Acres

and the second s

 A_{i}

-

Figure 4-15. Block Diagram of Weighting Marrix Simulation



Arithmetics

100

4.3.4.3 Single Channel – A simple method was $u \neq d$ in performing the simulation of the single channel system. The approach was to compute the target and chaff covariance matrices, introduce a waveform with equal pulses, account for matched filter weighting, and then to calculate the theoretical probability of detection based on the power computations for chaff plus noise vs target and chaff plus noise. A block diagram of the simulation flow is shown in Figure 4-17.

, HE

NEWIN

RELEASE STREET, STREET



2

•



A STATE

- -

BUTTO STREET STREET STREET

•

and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

Ĵ,

429

Section 5

COMPUTER SIMULATION RESULTS

The purpose of the computer simulations was to evaluate the effectiveness of dual channel systems as compared to single channel systems. This was accomplished by exploiting the polarization properties of various target models relative to those of chaff, in terms of maximizing the receiver output signal-to-clutter ratio (s/c). The major figure-of-merit (FOM) considered was the probability of target detection for a given false alarm probability due to clutter plus receiver noise. Associated with each result is the other major study output which yields transmit waveform selection coupled with optimum receiver weighting.

The results reported include those of the matrix and vector approaches, as well as the Stokes formalism. The latter was noted as being obtained in a previous study [Rosien, 1979].

5.1 SIMULATION PARAMETERS

This section describes the various input/output parameters associated with obtaining results for the aforementioned three approaches, and discusses the types of conclusions one can draw from each.

5.1.1 Target and Chaff Models

DEN AMARING AN CONTRACT

The description of the generation and simulation of the target and chaff models, has been covered in Section 4. The scattering matrix correlation functions of the models utilized to obtain the reported upon dual and single channel results are compared for reference in Figure 5-1. The $|h_{22}h_{22}^*|$ parameter is shown.

Three target models are noted: the standard Swerling I and two others designated as RTI and RT3. The time base for the correlation functions is given in terms of an interpulse period ΔT , to conform with the use of transmit signals consisting of generalized pulse train formats. The SWI target model utilizes the same scattering matrix as the BQM-34A model, but has a constant correlation function (pulse-to-pulse correlation). The RT1 and RT3 target models are also those of the BQM-34A drone. This shorthand notation refers to interpulse sampling intervals of 1 mscc and 3 msec respectively, where 3 msec represents a greater change in target aspect per ΔT . As a consequence, the RT1 model is more closely associated with the Swerling I, whereas RT3 would be more nearly like a Swerling II.

The chaff model closely matches the RT3 target in terms of its h_{22} scattering matrix correlation function. It should be noted that the same chaff correlation property is used regardless of the value of the interpulse period. In this way one obtains a variation in the spectrum of the target relative to the chaff. For example, the RT3 target has essentially the same spectrum as does the chaff. By contrast, the chaff has a much broader spectrum than does the impulse associated with Swerling I. The RT1 target represents a choice between these two.



and the second second second

The Human

¥.

are shall mit h

Figure 5-1. Target/Chaff Scattering Matrix Correlation Functions

5.1.2 Definition of s/c Ratie

HEREVEND SAURANENNIAR SEARNEN HERAREN BEREVEN SAURANEN SAURANEN AN

和11台中世界的名用各位市场出生的法理的《国际中的》

Each of the approaches has a common reference for s/c ratio, a key parameter associated with probability of target detection. The ratio utilized is defined as the total available target power relative to the total available chaff power. The available power is given as:

$$P_2 = [h_{22}]^2 + 2[h_{12}]^2 + [h_{22}]^2$$
(5-1)

where the H parameters are relative to either the target or chaff scattering properties.

Equate a (5-1) represents all of the energy that can be scattered back from either target or chaff, when impinged upon by a dual channel transmit waveform. Receiver noise is taken into account by scaling P_a to a normalized noise vector. If, for example, the s/n ratio is designated as 20 dB, then P_a for the larget would be 100 times greater than the input noise vector. Similarly, a c:n ratio of 17 dB results in a P_a for chaff which is 50 times the noise. This results in an available input s/c ratio of +3 dB, which is then the value plotted on the detection probability curves.

5.1.3 Qualitative Assessment

There are various differences noted in the computer simulations for the three approaches reported upon. The Stekes formalism compared dual and single thannel results on the basis of single pulse probability of detection. As a consequence, the correlation properties of the target and chaff were not a factor, although the scattering matrices were key parameters in the optimization procedure. The Stokes output consisted of the optimum transmit and receiver antenna polarizations for maximizing the site ratio.

The vector method employed a transmit sequence of five pulses using the RT1 target model. An iterative procedure was used to converge to the maximum s c ratio. Comparisons were made for dual and single channel performance based upon relative v c, but not to target detection. Other significant results consisted of the selected five-pulse transmit vector and associated dual channel receiver weighting function which maximized the s c. As previously noted, these results depend upon the initial choice of the five-pulse waveform.

The matrix results were by far the most comprehensive, comparing performance for all three target models against both dual and single obtannel implementations. Results were derived for the probability of target detection figure-of-merit. Other, outputs of interest were the optimum transmit vector selected from smong a library of 114 waveforms utilizing a three-pulse sequence, and its associated 6 x 6 receiver weighting matrix.

Although the three approaches had differences associated with the choices of transmit vector pulse sequences, the results were consistent enough to be significant. All three exhibited the same basic result, in that the dual channel implementation does provide enhanced performance over conventional single channel configurations.

5.2 STOKES APPROACH RESULTS

ข้องปนชายกลายสรรรมของการรูปของมหลังหลังหลังหลายสายครั้งสรรมของได้อายหลง (รองมหาสร

સંસ્થાય સ્થય જે જે જે મારો માટે કે જે જે જે માટે છે છે છે. આ સાથે માટે છે જે છે છે છે છે છે છે. જે છે છે છે છે

The above was reported by Rosien, et al (1979). Figure 5-2 is excerpted from this report and is representative of the basic results obtained using the Stokes formalism.

The probability of target detection for single-pulse operation is shown for various s/c ratios (as defined previously). The false alarm probability was set to 10^{-4} , the chaff dipoles were uniformly distributed ± 45 degrees from the horizontal, and the BQM-34A aspect angles are distributed as shown in the figure. Optimum dual channel performance is plotted relative to conventional single channel operation. Substantial improvement is noted when compared against single channel horizontal and circular polarized systems. Approximately 2 dB of improvement is seen versus the vertically polarized single channel system. The lesser improvement, in this case, is a result of the chaff model dipole distribution which favors the horizontal. The vertically polarized signal, therefore, results in substantially less chaff backscatter than does either the horizontally or circularly polarized waves. Since the target does not have a strong preferred polarization for its backscatter return, it becomes obvious that a vertically polarized system would be the choice for the single channel implementation, and a nearly vertically polarized system would also be implemented for dual channel operation.



Figure 5-2. Single-Pulse Detection Probabilities for various (transmit-receive) polarizations

The major fact seen by these results, is that the Stokes method does yield better performance for dual channel operation, despite the obvious high level of performance exhibited by single channel vertical. It should also be noted that these results were for single pulse transmission, such that the spectral differences between the target and chaff could not be exploited in the signal processor.

5.3 VECTOR APPROACH RESULTS

e

aucural Joyca and an analyza and a start and a start and a start and a start and a start and a start and a start

The vector weighting results were based upon transmission of a five-pulse sequence. The figure-of-merit utilized was the relative improvement in s/c for various dual and single channel implementations, as a function of the chaff dipole distribution. No further effort was expended in this area, in view of the importance attached to the development of the more encompassing matrix approach.

Figure 5-3 depicts typical results for the RTI target in chaff. The s/c is shown relative to matched right circular single channel operation.* The dipole orientation angles refer to the distribution within the chaff cloud, where 90 degrees is for completely random



Figure 5-3. Signal-to-Clutter Improvement Ratio for Vector Weighting Method

Matched filter is standard definition referred to maximizing received s/n ratio.

dipole distribution, and 15 degrees refers to nearly horizontal distribution. As noted in the figure, matched filter performance for single channel horizontal and circular polarizations is extremely poor. The matched vertical performance is good for dipole distributions which are nearly horizontal (less than 30 degrees). Beyond this, he matched vertical performance degrades rapidly, and, as would be expected, it converges to the circular and horizontal levels for the completely random chaff distribution at 90 degrees. This convergence at 90 degrees for matched filter operation was also evident in the Stokes results for single pulse transmission.

Figure 5-3 also indicates four variants of dual channel operation. The vertical transmit-optimum receive curve is for a dual channel receiver optimally weighted for transmission of a vertically polarized five pulse sequence. This in tact, is the result of the first iteration associated with the Rummler waveform convergence technique. Similar curves are shown for horizontal and circular polarized five pulse sequences. As expected from the predominantly horizontal chaff dipole distribution, the dual channel receiver weighted for vertical transmission provides the best overall performance. There is again convergence of results at 90 degrees.

The optimum curve is the result of utilizing the Rummler iterative technique, for which both the transmit vector and receiver weight are interchanged during each iteration. The iterative procedure was terminated when convergence in size ratio was achieved. Although the optimum curve is for full dual channel operation, it can be appreciated from prior results that the optimum performance is only slightly better than vertical transmit-optimum dual channel receive. This is a consequence of the optimum transmit way form being nearly vertically polarized. A significant result of the iterative procedure was that the convergence in transmit waveform, was independent of the initial choice. The iterations were started with either vertical, circular, or horizontal five pulse sequences. In all cases, the optimum waveform converged to the identical nearly vertically polarized structure.

5.4 MATRIX APPROACH RESULTS

Computer runs were made for probability of target detection P_D as a function of the previously defined sic ratio, at a false alarm probability of 10^{-4} . Performance levels for the three target model set of Figure 5-1 were computed for chaff dipole distributions corresponding to 15, 45, and 90 degrees. Comparisons were made between dual channel operation and matched filter single channel operation. The optimum transmit vector was chosen from a set of 114 three-pulse sequences. The associated dual channel receiver weight corresponds to a maximum likelihood detector, which is a function of the probability distributions related to the target, chaff, and receiver noise.

3

And R.B.C. Stand Concernant of the Party of

5.4.1 **Dual Channel Results**

Figure 5-4 is a comparison of dual channel performance between the three target set of RT1, RT3, and Swerling I. The limited range of s₁c shown, was chosen to encompass the P_D region of interest for the more random dipole distributions; namely a P_D in the order of 0.5 for $\theta = 45^{\circ}$ and 90°. At dipole distributions near the horizontal ($\theta = 15^{\circ}$), performance



ur arrever bye a symmetry of behind and out of the transfer of the second many of the second second second second

supplied the state of the state of the

Haukutunanan darahan handalah handalah handan

Figure 5-4. Comparison of Dual Channel Performance for RT3. RT1. SWI Targets

at these s ratios is very good for all three target representations. This would be expected at this dipole distribution, since operation with essentially vertically polarized transmit pulses yields minimal chaff backscatter (note similar good results at $\theta = 15^{\circ}$ for vector and Stokes approaches to using vertical transmission).

As the dipole distribution becomes more random, performance degrades for these s/c ratios as noted in the figure. Performance for all target models at a P_D of 0.5, for example, is about 5-6 dB worse at $\theta = 90^\circ$ than it is for $\theta = 45^\circ$. The difference in detection performance at a P_D of 0.5 between $\theta = 15^\circ$ and $\theta = 45^\circ$ is not shown in Figure 5-4. The basic trend of the curves indicates a significantly greater difference than the 6 dB noted in the prior case. A rough estimate would place this differential in the order of 10-12 dB. It becomes rather obvious from these and prior results, that the structure of the chaff model emphasizing horizontal dipole orientation, strongly influences the ultimate choice of more nearly vertical transmit polarization vectors; and ultimately leads to poorer performance as the distribution becomes more random.

Regardless of the chaff distribution, however, target detection is best for the RT3 model, followed by RT1 and SWI, respectively. This trend would be expected, in general, in terms of target detection between SWI and SWII models, noting that the RT3 model tends toward the uncorrelated pulse-to-pulse SWII. For a P_D of 0.5 and a P_{FA} of 10⁻⁴, the SWII requires 1 dB less signal return than the SWI in the case of a three-pulse sequence operating only against receiver noise. As noted in Figure 5-4, the RT3 target requires 5 dB less signal return than the SWI when operating in the dual channel chaff plus noise environment at θ = 45°. This added enhancement for the RT3 target can also be anticipated when utilizing the polarization discriminant. An analogy can be made if one examines the decorrelation of echoes from a complex target utilizing a polarization agile waveform as having effects similar to frequency agility [Nathanson, 1969] This decorrelation is desirable in a clutter and/or noise-only environment. Averaging of independent target samples will then essentially reduce the probability of a null in the target cross section at the aspect of interest. While this averaging process does not reduce the total clutter power, its variance will, however, be reduced. Since detectability is proportional to the ratio of target power to the variance of the total clutter plus noise power, target detection v ll be improved. This decorrelation of the target echo suggests a movement of the target model towards the more desirable SWII configuration.

Although complete target decorrelation is not anticipated for the three-pulse sequence utilized, it is noted that the RT3 target will have more degrees of freedom than the SWI in terms of optimally combining the target echo returns relative to the chaff. It should be noted that the SWI target will also become par. ally decorrelated, but not to the extent of either RT1 or RT3. This then results in the enhancement of RT3 relative to both RT1 and SWI, when the dual channel polarization returns are optimally combined.

5.4.2 Matrix Dual vs Single Channel Results

Indexed of an IVI IVI indextwo discursion in the Society of the So

A comparison of the matrix dual channel implementation relative to conventional single channel matched filter systems is shown for the three target models in Figures 5-5 through 5-13 for chaff dipole distributions of 15, 45, and 90 degrees.

Figures 5-5, 5-6, and 5-7 show performance comparisons for the SWI, RT1 and RT3 targets respectively for $\theta = 15^{\circ}$. The horizontal and right circular polarized systems perform very poorly in the matched single channel configurations, because of the horizontal distribution of the chaff dipoles. The matched vertical system performs very well over the range of s/c, as would be expected. In each case however, the dual channel implementation provides even better performance.

Figure: 5-8, 5-9, and 5-10 show similar performance comparisons for $\theta = 45^{\circ}$. Single channel horizontal and right circular systems still perform poorly, since the dipole distribution remains biased toward the horizontal plane. All three dual channel systems out perform the single channel vertical systems. At a P_D of 0.5, for example, SWI operation is 2 dB better, RT1 is 4 dB better, while the RT3 target exhibits 9 dB better performance in the dual channel mode.



يك سي ال

20

.C.,

Strate State

and the second

12012

Figure 5-5. Dual vs Single Channel



Figure 5-6. Dual vs Single Channel



Figure 5-7. Dual vs Single Channel



honoxymenally and a standard and a standard and a standard and a standard and a standard and a standard and a s

Statistical and a statistical statistics of the statistics of the statistical statistics of the statis

States and a states

to season and a strain and the season of the se

.

2

Figure 5-8. Dual vs Single Channel Swerling I Target

5.10



;

. ...h

;

1

.





Figure 5-10. Dual vs Single Channel RT3 Target



- - - - - -

9832-40

Santa WAN

والمراجع والمستعلم والمستعد والمراجع والمحالية والمعالية المراجع والمعالية المحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية

ALLAN MAN AND ASSA

102 EN WHA





Figure 5-12. Dual vs Single Channel



Figure 5-13. Dual vs Single Channel

Figures 5-11, 5-12, and 5-13 show similar results for $\theta = 90^{\circ}$. With the dipoles now randomly distributed, the single channel matched horizontal and vertical systems tend toward the same performance levels. Here again, the dual channel performance remains superior although the dB differential relative to single channel vertical is less than for $\theta = 45^{\circ}$. This is to be expected in view of the more random dipole distribution, which mitigates against the exploitation of the more deterministic chaff polarization at $\theta = 15^{\circ}$ and 45° .

In all cases of dipole distribution, it is noted that more effective dual channel to conventional single channel performance is possible for the RT3 target relative to either the RT1 or SWI models. This again illustrates the advantages of a target model which is not as highly correlated on a pulse-to-pulse basis. parti-ularly when exploiting the dual polarization scattering property.

5.4.3 Transmit Waveform Selection

AMULESCING PERKEND

THE ALL NO. W. M. LEWIS

is distribution of the second of

The transmit waveform dual channel vector is selected by a minimization procedure relative to the Frobenius norm (see Section 3.1.2). The matrix method computation relied

upon a library of prestored polarization states and selected a 3-pulse sequence which most closely matched the norm. The library of available transmitter polarization states is illustrated in Figure 5-14.

This polar representation maps circular polarization at the origin, linear polarization along the circumference of a circle with radius = 1, and elliptical polarizations within a circle with radius < 1. The representation is such that the direction of a major axis of the ellipse for each polarization state is along the radius vector which goes through the point representing the state on the plot. Similarly, the direction of linear polarizations are along the radius vector. Furthermore, elliptical polarizations, whose sense of rotation is right handed, are mapped on the right-half plane of the polar plot, and left-handed polarizations are mapped on the left-half plane of the plot. The ellipticity is given by 1-r, where r is the radius of the circle. In this way, all of the information relating to the polarization state becomes readily available. The symbols (A) in Figure 5-14 indicate the librery of prestored polarization states available for selection.

Two typical waveform choices are shown in Figure 5-14 for the SWI and RT3 targets, at a dipole distribution corresponding to $\theta = 45^{\circ}$. The RT3 sequence consists of three pulses all linearly polarized, and lying from 11 to 22 degrees from the vertical. The first pulse is at 22 degrees, and the next two pulses are at 11 degrees (note small double circle in figure). The SWI set consists of a first pulse linearly polarized at 22 degrees from the vertical, a second pulse with a left-handed ellipticity of 0.56 and the major axis aligned 21 degrees from the vertical, and a linearly polarized third pulse 11 degrees from the vertical. As expected, the preferred dual channel polarizations do lie more nearly vertical. The SWI transmit vector has more ellipticity which denotes a trend towards more decorrelation of the SWI model through the polarization discriminist.

5.4.4 Receiver Matrix

Ant HARDENS AND STOLED A HARD AN AN AND AND A

and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

The receiver weighting matrix is computed from knowledge of the transmit waveform and the likelihood function related to the target, clutter, and noise probability distributions. For the 3-pulse sequence, the optimum receiver matrix G_{opt} would be a 6 x 6. The SWI target is a special case because of the invariance of its pulse-to-pulse scattering matrix correlation function, which yields only three eigenvalues in the maximization procedure. Consequently, G_{opt} for SWI is a 3 x 6 matrix. A typical example of G_{opt} for SWI is shown below for a s/c ratio of +3 dB, and a dipole 0 of 45°

Note the elements of G are written in polar form

$$G_{opt} = \begin{bmatrix} (0.32, -7^{\circ}) & (0.17, -32^{\circ}) & (0.1, -33^{\circ}) & (0.14, -60^{\circ}) & (0.24, -5^{\circ}) & (0.1, -45^{\circ}) \\ (0.07, 67^{\circ}) & (0.11, -76^{\circ}) & (0.05, 51^{\circ}) & (0.21, -69^{\circ}) & (0.03, -36^{\circ}) & (0.04, 33^{\circ}) \\ (0.003, -72^{\circ}) & (0.12, -11^{\circ}) & (0.05, -40^{\circ}) & (0.03, -88^{\circ}) & (0.02, -31^{\circ}) & (-14, -5^{\circ}) \end{bmatrix}$$



Section 6

and the second statement of the second second second second second second second second second second second se

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The primary objectives of the study were met in the following specific areas:

- a) An analytical and systematic approach vas developed for dual channel optimum processing applicable to the radiar scattering matrix of targets and clutter.
- b) The matrix approach was utilized to develop an optimal transmit waveform and optimum receiver which maximizes the signal-to-clutter ratio for enhancement of target detection at a given probability of false alarm.
- c) A statistical model was generated for the polarization scattering matrix of the BQM-34A target drone, and for a dipole chaff cloud. The properties incorporated in both models focused upon the temporal/range behavior of their scattering matrix elements. Two forms of the chaff model were developed; a theoretical representation composed of general mathematical expressions, and a stochastic model derived from an autoregressive process fit to the theoretical model.
- d) The above models were utilized in computer simulations to compare target detection performance in chaff for dual channel system configurations against conventional single channel systems.

Five analytical approaches were considered for polarization processing implementation:

1) Matrix,

SUPERSOLDER RESERVED IN

- 2) Vector,
- 3) State-space,
- 4) Fredholm,
- 5) Stokes.

Of the above, the matrix and vector approaches fall under the heading of finite dimensional space techniques. The matrix method was the most fully developed and as such yielded the most promise in terms of meeting the study objectives for dual channel waveform and receiver design. It utilizes all of the information available in the target/clutter measurement space, and results in a method of waveform selection based upon the scattering matrices of the target and clutter. Once the waveform has been chosen, a maximum likelihood criterion is utilized for target detection at a desired false alarm rate.

The vector method can be considered a special case of the matrix approach, in that only a part of the available information is processed from the measurement space. Althou, h this yields better results than conventional single channe' systems and is simpler to implement than a matrix receiver, its performance relative to the matrix receiver is obviously not ar good.

Considerable effort was devoted to the development of a Kalman filter realization of a state-space model utilizing the target and clutter scattering properties. This approach was

carried to the point of an optimum receiver design, given the transmit waveform and the relevant scattering matrices. This effort exemplified the most consistently unified approach towards utilizing both the temporal and range behavior of the scattering matrix elements. Further work is required, however, in developing this approach for waveform design.

An approach using Fredholm integral equations was formulated to the extent of enumerating the system of equations involved with the target/clutter scattering elements. A generalized method of solution was presented. No further effort was expanded beyond this point, although a preliminary conclusion would indicate that the complexity involved, relative to the other techniques, might not warrant auditional work.

The Stokes approach was formulated and investigated in a prior study. These results were reported upon for completeness and indicated the capability to design an optimum transmit-receive antenna polarization pair for maximizing the signal-to-clutter ratio for use with non-coherent processing.

Computer derived results were presented for the matrix, vector, and Stokes approaches. It was shown that for either single pulse or coherent pulse train processing, exploitation of the polarization discriminant in a dual channel configuration was clearly superior to conventional single channel matched filter performance. The matrix results also considered the differences in dual channel performance for three variants of the BQM-34A drone point target model in chaff. These included a pulse-to-pulse correlated Swerling I model and two less correlated versions tending toward Swerling II. Correlation of the chaff scattering matrix was set identical to the least correlated target model, RT3.

Probability of target detection was used as a figure-of-merit for a false alarm probability of 10^{-4} . Best performance was obtained for the least correlated target model, with worst performance for the Swerling I (a typical 6 dB differentia, for a P_D of 0.5). This is consistent with tandard results for Swerling II relative to Swerling I targets. The pulse-to-pulse decorrelation, inherent in the RT3 target scattering property, provides for more degrees of freedom in terms of optimizing the receiver matrix combination associated with the individual pulse returns. This results in the noted better performance relative to SWI. It should be noted however, that performance of the Swerling I target was also enhanced by dual channel polarization processing relative to single channel matched filter det-ction.

The major conclusions reached from the foregoing results can be restated as follows:

- a) Exploitation of polarization scattering properties will enhance the detection of targets in chaff relative to conventional single channel systems.
- b) Analytical and systematic approaches have been presented to develop optimal transmit waveforms and associated receiver designs for maximizing the probability of target detection for a given false alarm rate.
- c) The availability of previously developed polarization sensitive models of targets and chaff, provides a powerful tool in the systematic evaluation of the above techniques.

The following study tas's are recommended to further evaluate the practicality of inultichannel polarization processing:

- a) Expansion of the state-space approach to include waveform design as a possible adjunct to or replacement and generalization of the matrix method.
- b) Reconfigure the target and chaff models to include realistic target trajectories and chaff mean velocities, to combine 'MTI processing' in conjunction with the polarization discriminant for dual channel waveform and receiver design evaluation. U e of longer pulse trains would be investigated for this implementation

- c) Develop and/or utilize other clutte, models to evaluate performance in different interfering environments. Ellipticity associated with rain drops, for example, would be a reasonable contrast to the dipole structure of the chuif model.
- d) Develop a strategy for detection of targets in clutter, without prior knowledge of target scattering matrix. Use typical surveillance radar requirements. Evaluate performance of various approaches: for example, use waveform to minimize clutter backscatter or maximize s/c ratio for 'average' target.
- e) Preliminary design of dual channel system utilizing methods developed during study. Provide qualitative cost assessment against single channel system.
- f) Develop an approach using the range spread properties of the scattering matrix in conjunction with its polarization and temporal behavior, to design the waveform and receiver for optimizing target detection in clutter.

REFERENCES

Beguin, D.E., Bosc, H.J., and Colin, J.M., "Rain Echo Elimination," Laboratoric Central de Telecommunication, U.S. Patent Number pending.

Boriso't, S.L., "Bistatic Cross Section of a Randomly Oriented Dipole," IEEE Trans on Antennas, Vol AP-15, pp 320-321, 1967.

Daley, J.C., et al, "NRL Terrain Clutter Study Phase II," NRL Report 67-49, October 21, 1968.

DeLong, D.F. Jr., and Hofstetter, E.M. (1967), "On the Design of Optimum Radar Waveforms for Clutter Rejection," IEEE Trans on Information Theory, Vol IT-13, pp 454-463.

Durbin, J., "The Fitting of Time-Scries Models," Rev. Inst. Statist., Vol 28, pp 233-243, 1960.

Ewell, G.W., Alexander, N.T. and Tomberlin, F.L., "Investigation of the Effects of Polarization Agility on Monopulse Radar Angle Tracking," Project A-1225, Engineering Experiment Station, Georgia Institute of Technolog/, 1971.

Friedman, B., "Principles and Techniques of Applied Mathematics." John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 1957.

Helstrom, C.W., "Statistical Theory of Signal Detection," 2nd Ed., 1968, Pergamon Press, N.Y.

Kennaugh, E.M., "Effects on the Type of Polarization on Echo Characteristics," Final Engineering Report, Antenna Lab, Ohio State University, Vol I, AF Contract 28 (099)-90. June 1951, AMC 3.51, Griffiss AFB, N.Y.

Nathanson, F.E., "Adaptive Circular Polarization," IEEE International Radar Conference, Washington, D.C., 1975.

Nathanson, F.E., "Radar Design Principles," McGraw-Hill, Inc., 1969

Poelman, A.J., "Reconsideration of the Target Detection Criterion Based on Adaptive Polarizations," 1976 AGARD Symposium.

"Radar Signature Measurements of the BQM-34A and BQM-34F Target Drones," RATSCAT 6585th Test Group, AFSWC-TR-74-01, January 1974.

Rao, C.R., "Linear Statistical Inference and its Application," J. Wiley, N.Y.

Rosien, R. et al, "Implementation Techniques for Polarization Control for ECCM." RADC-TR-79-4, February 1979, B035618L. Rummler, W.D. (1966), "Clutter Suppression by Complex Weighting of Coherent Fulse Trains," IEEE Trans. on AES, Vol 2, pp 689-699.

Rummler, W.D. (1967). "A Technique for Improving the Clutter Performance of Coherent Puise Train Signals," IEEE Trans. on AES, Vol 3, pp 898-906.

Van Trees, H.L., "Detection, Estimation, and Modulation Theory, Part I," John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 1968.

Van Trees, H.L., "Detection, Estimation, and Modulation Theory, Part III," John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 1971.

Wong, J.L., Reed, I.S. and Kaprielian, Z A., "A Model for the Radar Echo from a Random Collection of Rotating Dipole Scatterers," IEEE Trans on AES, Vol 3, pp 171-178, 1967.

いいいり やく

A THE REAL AND A THE PARTY OF

Lind Manual And States of the

arra koy ara-koanan haraan asaa kamisin ahkaraa kakara na karana na anana na anana haran haran haran haran a

Appendix A

Walt: wales

A MODEL FOR THE SIMULATION OF THE SPECTRAL AND POLARIZATION CHARACTERISTICS OF CHAFF

by

GEORGE A. IOANNIDIS

ITT Gilfilian Van Nuys, California 91409 a territe and provided Applyprent rest

and the contract of the sector

Abstract

And the state of the state of the second s

ź

:

ĩ

1.2

i,

HEARS AND IN

1

UCLUR

Ĵ

A vector autoregressive process is used to obtain a Stochastic model for the simulation of both the spectral and polarization characteristics of a chaff cloud consisting of a collection of rotating dipoles, which may have either completely random or preferred orientations.
INTRODUCTION

Recently there has been considerable interest in the use of polarization diversity to improve signal detection in the presence of background clutter.^(1,2,3) In the design of such polarization agile radar systems, one must consider both the autocorrelation and cross correlation functions of the backscattered signals for two orthogonal polarizations.⁽³⁾

What follows is a model for a random collection of rotating dipole scatterers. This model is a generalization of a model by Wong et al.⁽⁴⁾ and allows the simulation of both the polarization and temporal characteristics of radar signals backscattered from a collection of rotating dipoles, which have either completely random or preferred orientations. This model makes use of a vector auto-regressive process for the simulation of the scattering matrix elements of a dipole cloud and can be used for the statistical simulation of signals scattered from chaff.

THE SCATTERING MATRIX OF A ROTATING DIPOLE

When a dipole is rotating about the s-axis of an orthogonal coordinate system, (s, u, v) as shown in Figure A-1, the direction of its dipole moment is given by

$$\hat{\mathbf{d}} = \hat{\mathbf{u}} \cos \psi + \hat{\mathbf{v}} \sin \psi \tag{1}$$

where ψ is the angle of the dipole with the \hat{u} -axis given by

$$\psi = w_r t + \alpha. \tag{2}$$

....

 w_r is the dipole rotation rate in rad/sec

and α is a constant phone angle.

If the polar angles of the above s-axis, relative to a Cartesian frame (x, y, z), are θ and ϕ , as shown in Figure A-1, and if the u-axis is chosen to lay in the x-y plane, then by a coordinate rotation from the (x, y, z) to the (x, y, z) system we obtain that

$$\hat{d} = -\hat{x} (\sin \phi \cos \psi + \cos \theta \cos \phi \sin \psi) + \hat{y} (\cos \phi^{\dagger} \cos \psi - \cos \theta \sin \phi \sin \psi) + \hat{z} \sin \theta \sin \psi.$$
(3)

When an electro magnetic wave is propagating along the z axis, the scattering matrix of the above dipole is given by (Borison⁽⁵⁾, Wong et al⁽⁴⁾)



יו שרוציה וובעילי המוערטו ווויה לרביל בעיצור וויהו אוליו לבי לי

e.A.d.A.d.aaaaayyyy, seedadd ternamoonia renameta ino ar yr mig naf rich

(* 1)() AD1*je*e

2

Figure A-!. Rotating Dipole

$$H = \begin{pmatrix} h_{xx} & h_{xy} \\ h_{yx} & h_{yy} \end{pmatrix} = \sqrt{0.9} \lambda \hat{d} \hat{d}'$$
(4)

فلال مسترمو مور ويتوم و معدور

restates a subject a subject of

Marate alleringen

.....

where (λ is the radar wavelength).

From Equations (3) and (4) we find that the elements of the scattering matrix H can be expressed as

$$h_{xx} = \sqrt{0.9} \lambda [C_1 + D_1 e^{j2\psi} + D_1^* e^{-j2\psi}]$$
(5)

$$h_{yx} = h_{xy} = \sqrt{0.9} \lambda [C_2 + D_2 c^{j-1/2} + D_2^* c^{-j-1/2}]$$
 (6)

and

the summer support the second second

K ave et also som en som enge statered. Het verst de date her de ser fres i kensuteriseter i sere de sere de se

$$h_{yy} = \sqrt{0.9} \lambda \left[C_3 + D_3 e^{j2\psi} + D_3^* e^{-j2\psi} \right]$$
(7)

where the superscript * de totes complex conjugate.

$$C_{1} = \frac{1}{2} [\sin^{2} \phi + \cos^{2} \phi \cos^{2} \theta]$$

$$D_{1} = \frac{1}{4} [\sin^{2} \phi - \cos^{2} \phi \cos^{2} \theta] - j \sin^{2} \phi \cos^{2} \theta]$$

$$C_{2} = -\frac{1}{2} \sin \phi \cos \phi \sin^{2} \theta$$

$$D_{2} = -\frac{1}{2} [\sin \phi \cos \phi + \sin \phi \cos \phi \cos^{2} \theta - j \cos (2\phi) \cos \theta]$$

$$C_{3} = \frac{1}{2} [\cos^{2} \phi + \sin^{2} \phi \cos^{2} \theta]$$

$$D_{3} = \frac{1}{2} [\cos^{2} \phi - \sin^{2} \phi \cos^{2} \theta] + J \sin (2\phi) \cos \theta]$$

34

STATISTICS OF $\mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{x}\mathbf{x}},\,\mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{y}\mathbf{y}}$ FOR A RANDOM COLLECTION OF ROTATING DIPOLES

A study of the temporal and polarization response of a random collection of rotating dipoles requires estimates of autocorrelations and cross correlation functions for the elements of the scattering matrix H of Equation (4), such as

With the states with the second

$$E[h_{xx}(t) h_{xx}^{*}(t-\tau)] = F[h_{xx}(t) h_{yy}^{*}(t-\tau)] = E[h_{xx}(t) h_{xy}^{*}(t-\tau)] = F[h_{yy}(t) h_{xy}^{*}(t-\tau)] = etc$$

where the expectation is over time and all possible orientations for the axes of rotation of the dipoles.

These relations can be expressed in a compact form by use of the covariance matrix

$$K_{\rm H}(r) = {\rm Eth}(r) \, \overline{\rm h}^* \, (r-r)$$
 (8)

of a vector h(t), defined as.

him had a start the same that the second

$$\tilde{\mathbf{h}}(t) = \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{x}\mathbf{x}}(t) \\ \mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{x}\mathbf{y}}(t) \\ \mathbf{h}_{\mathbf{y}\mathbf{y}}(t) \end{bmatrix}$$
(9)

if the distribution function for the angular rotation rate is $p_{w_1}(w_1)$ and for the Doppler shift due to the drift velocity is $p_{w_1}(w_3)$, then, using the results of Woog, et al.⁽⁴⁾ and substituting from Equations (2), (5), (6) and (7) into Equations (8) and (7), we obtain that $K_H(\tau)$ can be expressed as

$$K_{H}(\tau) = M_{d}(\tau) \tilde{C} + 2Rc (M_{w_{c}}(2\tau) + \tilde{D})$$
(10)

where the matrix C is given by

$$\tilde{c} = \begin{pmatrix} F_{1}c_{1}f^{2} & F_{1}c_{1}c_{2}^{*} & F_{1}c_{1}c_{3}^{*}f \\ F_{1}c_{2}c_{1}^{*} & F_{1}c_{2}f^{2} & F_{1}c_{2}c_{3}^{*}f \\ F_{1}c_{3}c_{1}^{*} & F_{1}c_{3}c_{2}^{*}f & F_{1}c_{3}f^{2} \end{pmatrix}$$
(11)

the matrix \widetilde{D} is given by

$$\widetilde{D} = \begin{pmatrix} E_1 D_1 P_2^* & E_1 D_2^* & E_1 D_3^* \\ E_1 D_2 D_1^* & E_2 D_2^{-2} & E_1 D_2 D_3^* \\ E_1 D_3 D_1^* & E_1 D_2 D_3^* & E_2 D_3^{-2} \end{pmatrix}$$
(12)

 $M_{d}(\tau)$ and $M_{w}(\tau)$ are the characteristic functions

$$M_{d}(\tau) = F\left[c^{jw_{d}\tau}\right]$$
$$M_{w_{f}}(\tau) = F\left[c^{jw_{f}\tau}\right]$$

and $E(C_iC_j^{(*)})$. $E(D_iD_j^{(*)})$ are spherical random averages of the orientation of the rotation axes (Figure A-1) given by

$$I \left\{ \begin{pmatrix} i C_1 C_1^* \\ i D_1 D_1^* \end{pmatrix} = \frac{1}{\Omega} \int_{\phi_1}^{\phi_2} d\phi \int_{\theta_1}^{\theta_2} \left\{ \begin{cases} C_1 C_1^* \\ D_1 D_1 \end{cases} \right\} \sin \theta \, d\theta$$
(13)

and

$$\Omega = \int_{\theta_1}^{\theta_2} d\theta \int_{\theta_1}^{\theta_2} \sin \theta d\theta = (\theta_2 - \theta_1) (\sin \theta_1 - \cos \theta_2)$$
$$0 \le \theta_1 \le \theta_2 \le 2\mathbf{r}, \ 0 \le \theta_1 \le \theta \le \mathbf{r}$$

When the dipoles have all possible orientations and the variables w_{ij} and w_{j} are normal, with densities $N(\tilde{w}_{ij}, \sigma_{ij}^{-2})$ and $N(\tilde{w}_{ij}, \sigma_{j}^{-2})$, respectively, we obtain that the covariance matrix $\Sigma_{ij}(\tau)$ is given by



$$K_{H}(\tau) = \exp\left[\frac{\sigma_{d}^{2}\tau^{2}}{2}\right] \frac{1}{5} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{2}{3} & 0 & \frac{1}{2} \\ 0 & \frac{1}{12} & 0 \\ \frac{1}{2} & 0 & \frac{2}{3} \end{pmatrix} + \exp\left[-j\overline{w}_{d}\tau - \frac{\sigma_{d}^{2}\tau + \omega^{2}}{2}\right] \operatorname{cos}\left(2w_{r}\tau\right) \frac{1}{5} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{1}{3} & 0 & -\frac{1}{6} \\ 0 & \frac{1}{4} & 0 \\ \frac{1}{6} & 0 & \frac{1}{3} \end{pmatrix} (14)$$

Manking a putantine in

STOCHASTIC MODELING OF THE SCATTERING MATRIX ELEMENTS OF CHAFF

If we assume that the vector \tilde{h} (f) of Equation (8) is a sample from a Gaussian vector process, then use of a vector autoregressive process yields a relatively simple linear model that has \tilde{h} (t) as its output. In general, a vector autoregressive process requires the use of latrix coefficients⁽⁶⁾. However, because of the structure of the covariance function of \tilde{h} (t), given by Equation (10), the stochastic vector \tilde{h} (t) can be modeled as the sum of three vector autoregressive processes $\tilde{h}_1(t) \tilde{h}_2(t)$ and $\tilde{h}_3(t)$ with scalar coefficients as

$$\tilde{h}(n\Delta t) = \left\{ \tilde{h}_{1}(n\Delta t) + \tilde{h}_{2}(n\Delta t) \exp(-j2\tilde{w}_{1}\Delta tn) + \tilde{h}_{3}(n\Delta t) \exp(+j2\tilde{w}_{1}\Delta tn) \right\} \exp(-j\tilde{w}_{1}\Delta tn)$$
(15)

where

and a substantiant of the substantian of the substantiant of the

$$\tilde{h}_{1}(n\Delta t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M_{1}} z_{i} \tilde{h}_{1}((n-i)\Delta t) + X_{n}$$

$$\tilde{h}_{2}(n\Delta t) = \sum_{i=1}^{N_{2}} b_{i} \tilde{h}_{2}((n-i)\Delta t) + Y_{n}$$

$$\tilde{h}_{3}(n\Delta t) = \sum_{i=1}^{M_{2}} b_{i} \tilde{h}_{3}((n-i)\Delta t) + Z_{n}$$

and the $a_1^{(s)}$ and $b_1^{(s)}$ are scalar constants obtained from the Yule-Walker Equations (6)

$$\frac{M_1}{2} = a_1 R_1 \left[(k-n\Delta t) - K - R_1 (k\Delta t) + k = 1 \dots M_1 \right],$$

in 1

and

1

APARTERNATION NEWSTRY AND AND AND AND ALL AND A AND A AND A AND A AND A AND A AND A AND A AND A AND A AND A AND

$$\frac{M_2}{\sum_{i=1}^{k} b_i R_2} [(k-i)\Delta t] = R_2(k\Delta t), k = 1, ..., M_2$$

which can be solved by a fast recursive procedure developed by $Durbin^{(7)}$.

The orders of zutoregression M_1 and M_2 depend on the sampling interval Δt and the desired accuracy in approximating the correlation functions $R_1(k\Delta t)$ and $R_2(k\Delta t)$, where

$$R_1(k\Delta t) = M_d(k\Delta t)$$
 evaluated for $\vec{w}_d = 0$

and

$$R_2(k\Delta t) = M_d(k\Delta t) + M_{w_r}(2k\Delta t)$$
 evaluated for $\bar{w}_d = 0$ and $\bar{w}_r = 0$

when we want to the second sec

The vectors X_n , Y_n and Z_n are independent noise vectors with autocovariance matrices

$$E[X_{i}X_{j}^{\bullet}] = \delta_{ij}\widetilde{C}$$
$$E[Y_{i}Y_{j}^{\bullet}] = \delta_{ij}\widetilde{D}$$

and

$$\mathbb{E}[Z_1 Z_j^*] = \delta_{ij} \widetilde{D}$$

where the bar denotes complex conjugate.

In numerical simulations these vectors can be generated from

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{x}_{i} &= \widetilde{\mathbf{c}}_{0} \mathbf{v}_{i} \\ \mathbf{y}_{i} &= \widetilde{\mathbf{D}}_{0} \mathbf{v}_{i} \end{aligned}$$

and

$$t_1 = \tilde{D}_0 W_1$$

where

ADE EN UNYTHIN BAY AND A BURNESS

S.B.Im Keal

PULSTRV HAN

and the second second of the second se

NUVIER OF MEN CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACT OF A

$$\tilde{c}_0 \tilde{c}_0^* = \tilde{c}$$
$$\tilde{D}_0 \tilde{D}_0^* = \tilde{D}$$

The asterisk denotes complex conjugate transpose and the vector $U_1 V_1$ and W_1 are threedimensional complex white noise vectors with Gaussian uncorrelated components. In many cases the covariance matrix \tilde{D} is real or $\tilde{w}_r = 0$. If either of these conditions is true then one can snow that $\tilde{h}(n\Delta t)$ can be expressed as the sum of only two autoregressions, which reduces the computations needed for simulation of the elements of the scattering matrix

NUMERICAL RESULTS

As an example of the results obtained by use of the above model, we show in Figure A-2. a polar plot of the polarization states of waves backscattered from a random dipole cloud for three different transmitter antenna polarizations vertical, horizontal and circular. Data for these plots were obtained from the above model for dipoles oriented primarily within 30 degrees from the horizontal. The polar representation (r, ϕ) of the polarization states in these figures is such that the length of the radius vector is r = 1 - c, where c is the ellipticity, i.e., circular polarization is mapped at the origin, linear polarization along the circumference of a circle with radius = 1, and elliptical polarizations within a circle of radius = 1. The polar angle ϕ is such, that direction of the major axis of the ellipse for each polarization state is along the radius vector which goes through the point representing the state of the plot. Similarly, the direction of linear polarizations are along the radius vector. Furthermore, elliptical polarizations whose sense of rotation is right-handed, are mapped on the right-half plane of the polar plot. Thus, the above graphic representation is capable of representing all polarization states and, in effect, maps the surface of the Poincaré polarization sphere onto a circle. The only polarization state which is ambiguous in this representation is circular polarization. Both right-handed and left-handed circular polarizations are momed on the same point at the origin of the coordinate system at the center of the polarization circle. For elliptical polarizations whose major axis is along the vertical, we have arbitrarily choses to map left-handed polarizations onto the lower half of the vertical axis, and right-handed polarizations onto the upper half of the vertical axis. Furthermore, the size of the letter used for indicating the polarization of the received wave is varied in accordance with the total signal power in the wave. i.e., maximum power that can be extracted from the wave by a matched antenna.

FORMULAS FOR THE EXPECTATIONS $E(C_iC_i^*)$ and $E(D_iD_j^*)$

$$\Omega = (\phi_2 - \phi_1) \tan \theta_1 - \cos \theta_2)$$

$$1 (\theta_1, \theta_2) = \frac{5}{8} (\cos \theta_1 - \cos \theta_2) - \frac{5}{48} (\cos 3\theta_1 - \cos 3\theta_2) + \frac{1}{80} (\cos 5\theta_1 - \cos 5\theta_2)$$
$$\frac{\cos^3 \theta_2 - \cos^3 \theta_1}{3} - (\cos \theta_2 - \cos \theta_1)$$



$$\begin{aligned} A^{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) &= \frac{3}{8}(\phi_{2}-\phi_{1}) + \frac{1}{32}(\sin^{2}4\phi_{2}-\sin^{4}\phi_{1}) : \frac{1}{4}(\sin^{2}2\phi_{2}-\sin^{2}2\phi_{1}) \\ B^{2}_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) &= (\phi_{1}-\phi_{1}) : \frac{1}{4}(\sin^{4}2\phi_{2}-\sin^{2}2\phi_{1}) \\ B^{3}_{3}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) &= (\phi_{2}-\phi_{1}) : \frac{1}{4}(\sin^{4}2\phi_{2}-\sin^{4}2\phi_{1}) \\ S_{2}(\alpha,\beta) &= \sin^{2}\beta - \sin^{2}\alpha \\ S_{4}(\alpha,\beta) &= \sin^{4}\beta - \sin^{4}\alpha \\ E(C_{1})^{2} &= \frac{1}{4} - \frac{1}{4\Omega} \left[B^{2}_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) G_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \lambda^{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) F_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \right] \\ E(C_{2})^{2} &= \frac{1}{4} - \frac{1}{4\Omega} \left[B^{2}_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) G_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \lambda^{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) F_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \right] \\ E(C_{3})^{2} &= \frac{1}{4} E(C_{1})^{2} \\ E(D_{1})^{2} &= \frac{1}{4} E(C_{1})^{2} \\ E(D_{2})^{2} &= \frac{1}{4} E(C_{1})^{2} \\ E(D_{2})^{2} &= \frac{1}{4} E(C_{1})^{2} \\ E(D_{3})^{2} &= \frac{1}{4} E(C_{2})^{2} + \frac{\cos^{2}\theta_{1} + \cos\theta_{1}(\cos\theta_{2} + \cos^{2}\theta_{2})}{48} \\ E(D_{3})^{2} &= \frac{1}{4} E(C_{3})^{2} \\ E(D_{3})^{2} &= \frac{1}{4} E(C_{3})^{2} \\ E(C_{1}C_{2}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{32\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) G_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{\cos^{2}\theta_{1} + \cos\theta_{1}(\cos\phi_{2} + \cos\phi_{2})}{48} \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{32\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) G_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{\cos^{2}\theta_{1} + \cos\theta_{1}(\cos\phi_{2} + \cos\phi_{2})}{12} \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{32\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) G_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{1}{16\Omega} (\sin^{4}\phi_{2} - \sin^{4}\phi_{1}) F_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{8\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) G_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{1}{16\Omega} (\sin^{4}\phi_{2} - \sin^{4}\phi_{1}) F_{2}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{8\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) G_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{1}{16\Omega} (\sin^{4}\phi_{2} - \sin^{4}\phi_{1}) F_{2}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{8\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) G_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{1}{16\Omega} (\sin^{4}\phi_{2} - \sin^{4}\phi_{1}) F_{2}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{8\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) G_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{1}{16\Omega} (\sin^{4}\phi_{2} - \sin^{4}\phi_{1}) \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{8\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) G_{1}(\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{1}{16\Omega} (\sin^{4}\phi_{2} - \sin^{4}\phi_{1}) \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{8\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{8\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^{4}) &= -\frac{1}{8\Omega} S_{2}(\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \\ E(C_{1}C_{3}^$$

State Party

۲ ۲

.

المناج والمراجع والمعالية والمعالية المحالية المحا

40.23

A Contract of the second state of the second of the second state of the second se

Section 1

$$\begin{split} \mathrm{E}(\mathrm{D}_{1}\mathrm{D}_{2}^{*}) &= -\frac{1}{16\Omega} \left[\mathrm{S}_{2} (\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \mathrm{G} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{(\cos^{4} \phi_{2} - \cos^{4} \phi_{1})}{4} \mathrm{F} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \right] \\ &+ \frac{1}{16\Omega} \left[\frac{1}{2} (\phi_{2} - \phi_{1}) \mathrm{S}_{2} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{1}{8} \mathrm{B}_{2}^{+} (\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \mathrm{S}_{4} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \right] \\ \mathrm{E}(\mathrm{D}_{1}\mathrm{D}_{3}^{*}) &= -\mathrm{E}(\mathrm{D}_{1})^{2} + \frac{1}{16\Omega} \left\{ \mathrm{B}_{2}^{-} (\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \mathrm{G} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \mathrm{B}_{2}^{+} (\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \mathrm{S}_{4} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \right] \\ &+ \left[\frac{(\cos^{5} \theta_{2} - \cos^{5} \theta_{1})}{5} - \frac{(\cos^{3} \theta_{2} - \cos^{3} \theta_{1})}{3} \right] \right\} \\ &- \frac{j}{64\Omega} \mathrm{S}_{2} (\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \mathrm{S}_{4} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \\ \mathrm{E}(\mathrm{D}_{2}\mathrm{D}_{3}^{*}) &= -\frac{1}{16\Omega} \left[\mathrm{S}_{2} (\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \mathrm{G} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) + \mathrm{S}_{4} (\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \mathrm{F} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \right] \\ &+ \frac{j}{16\Omega} \left[\frac{1}{2} (\zeta_{2} - \phi_{1}) \mathrm{S}_{2} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) - \frac{1}{8} \mathrm{B}_{2}^{-} (\phi_{1},\phi_{2}) \mathrm{S}_{4} (\theta_{1},\theta_{2}) \right] \end{split}$$

:

ł

athensios indefension and a subscription

cit-

REFERENCES

ののでの見たりたりためである

RA PARTERNERSCHER CLERKS

÷

- (1) G.A. Ioannidis and D.F. Jammers, "Adaptive Antenna Polarization Schemes for Clutter Suppression and Target Identification in Processing", and International Symposium on the Operator Theory of Networks and Systems, Lubbock, Texas, 1977
- (2) A.J. Poelman, "Reconsideration of the Target Detection Criterion based on Alaptive Antenna Polarizations", AGARD Symposium Proceedings 1975
- (3) A.J. Poelman, "Cross Correlation of Orthogonally Polarized Backseatter Components", HEFF Trans. on AFS, Vol 12, pp 674-682, 1976

- (4) J.1. Wong, I.S. Reed, and Z.A. Kaprielian, "A M-del for the Radar Felio from a Random Collection of Rotating Dipole Scatterers", IEEE Trans. on AES, Vol 3 pp 171-178, 1967.
- (5) S.I. Borison, "Bistatic Cross Section of a Randomly Oriented Dipole", IEEE Trans. on Antennas, Vol. AP-15, pp. 326-321, 1967.
- (6) H. Akarke, "Autoregressive Model Fitting for Control", Ann. Inst. Statistical Math., Vol. 23, pp. 163-150, 1971.
- (7) J. Durbin, "The Litting of Time-Series Models", Rev. Inst. Int. Statist. Vol. 28, pp. 233-243, 1960.

Appendix B

LIKELIHOOD DETECTION

BINARY HYPOTHESIS TESTING

In order to make a decision whether a target is present in chaff, binary hypothesis testing is performed to determine its decision region [see Van Trees 1968]. Referring to Figure B-1, the two hypothesis H_0 and H_1 with respect to the received signal Y (with additive narrowband white noise) are:

Hypothesis H_C:
$$y = Y_c + \frac{n}{z}$$

Hypothesis H₁: $Y = Y_T + Y_C + \frac{n}{z}$

The input signal Y is then processed through the optimally weighted matrix G whose output Z is given by:

$$\mathbf{Z} = \mathbf{G} \cdot \mathbf{y}$$

Hence,

$$Z|H_0 = G \cdot (Y_C + N_o)$$
$$Z|H_1 = G \cdot (Y_T + Y_C + N_o)$$

and the respective covariance matrices are

$$Cov(\mathbf{Z}|\mathbf{H}_{0}) = \mathbf{G} \cdot \mathbf{E}[\mathbf{Y}_{C}\mathbf{Y}_{C}^{*}]\mathbf{G}^{*} + \mathbf{G} \cdot \mathbf{E}[\mathbf{N}_{0}\mathbf{N}_{0}^{*}] \cdot \mathbf{G}^{*} = \mathbf{R}_{CN}$$
$$Cov(\mathbf{Z}|\mathbf{H}_{1}) = \mathbf{G} \cdot \mathbf{E}[\mathbf{Y}_{T}\mathbf{Y}_{T}^{*}]\mathbf{G}^{*} + \mathbf{R}_{CN} = \mathbf{R}_{T} + \mathbf{R}_{CN}$$

In general, the covariance matrices R_T and R_{CN} are not diagonal, and it is desirable to perform a coordinate transformation such that the resultant covariance matrices are simultaneously diagonalized. The new set of transformed random variables are now statistically independent. In order to find the desired coordinate transformation we solve the generalized eigenvalue, eigenvector problem: Find the eigenvalues μ_i and eigenvectors ϕ_i such that

$$R_{\rm T} \phi_{\rm i} = \mu_{\rm j} R_{\rm CN} \phi_{\rm i} \qquad {\rm i} = 1, \ldots k$$

is satisfied.



It is shown in Appendix D (setting $Q = \phi^*$) that solution to the above problem can expressed as follows

The second

annus Same colland weeking the

$$Q R_{cn} Q^* = I$$
$$Q R_T Q^* = \mu$$

where Q is the coordinate transformation matrix

I is (k x k) Identity matrix

 μ is (k x k) diagonal matrix whose elements are the eigenvalues μ_i

The new set of random variables \underline{Z} is

and the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the

and and shall and the states of the states o

$$\underline{Z} = QZ = QG\underline{Y}$$

and the covariances under the two hypotheses are

$$cov(\underline{Z}|H_0) = I$$

 $cov(\underline{Z}|H_1) = \mu$

RECEIVER LIKELIHGOD RATIO

In order to find the decision criteria for the binary hypothesis test we take the likelihood ratio $\Lambda(\underline{Z})$

$$A(\underline{Z}) = \ln\left(\frac{p(\underline{Z}|H_1)}{p(\underline{Z}|H_0)}\right)$$

= $-\underline{Z}^* (\mu \div i)^{-1} \underline{Z} + \underline{Z}^* \underline{I}\underline{Z} - \frac{1}{2} \ln[\det(\mu + 1)]$
= $Z^* [I - (\mu + 1)^{-1}]Z - \frac{1}{2} \ln[\det(\mu + 1)]$

Further, we define another transformation P such that

$$\mathbf{r} = \mathbf{P} \cdot \mathbf{Z} = \mathbf{P} \cdot \mathbf{Q} \cdot \mathbf{Z} = \mathbf{P} \cdot \mathbf{Q} \cdot \mathbf{G} \cdot \mathbf{Y}$$

and

$$P = [1 - (\mu + 1)^{-1}]^{\frac{1}{2}} = \begin{bmatrix} \sqrt{\frac{\mu_1}{1 + \mu_1}} & 0 \\ \sqrt{\frac{\mu_2}{1 + \mu_2}} & \sqrt{\frac{\mu_k}{1 + \mu_k}} \end{bmatrix}$$

then

URILAVITALETATELETATESTATESTELTELTATESTELTE

NACESSED DAYS

A VY LOUGH TO MANY

-

ต่ารัฐ ชาวายสร้างโระสมหน้าวามชาชาเป็นชาวายในประมุณาที่มีสมคร้างให้สมคร้างรู้สุดที่สาวาร (ภาพสาวกรรมการสาวายข

$$A(r) = r^* r + const$$

and the decision criteria is

$$u = r^* r = \sum_{i=1}^{k} |r_i|^2 > T \qquad H_1: \text{ Target present}$$

Consequently, the probability of false alarm \mathbb{P}_{FA} is given by

$$P_{FA} = \int_{T}^{\infty} p(u;H_0)du$$

and probability of detection is given by

$$P_D = \int_T^\infty p(u|H_1) du$$

and the optimal receiver weighting matrix is given by

$$G_{opt} = \mathbf{P} \cdot \mathbf{Q} \cdot \mathbf{G}$$

B-4

THRESHOLD DETERMINATION

The general form of the probability density function p(u) is given by

$$\mathbf{p}(\mathbf{u}) = \sum_{\substack{i=1 \\ j \neq i}}^{k} \frac{1}{\prod_{\substack{j=1 \\ j \neq i}}^{k} \left(i - \frac{\sigma_j^2}{\sigma_i^2}\right)} \frac{e^{-\mathbf{u}/\sigma_i^2}}{\sigma_i^2} : \mathbf{u} \ge 0$$

where

South in the

In a reason in the state of the second state of the second state of the second s

THE PARTY AND A

$$u = \sum_{i=1}^{k} |r_i|^2$$

$$\sigma_i^2 = E |r_i|^2$$

$$p(r_1, ..., r_k) = \prod_{i=1}^{k} p(r_i)$$

$$p(T) = \int_{T}^{\infty} p(u) = \sum_{i=1}^{k} \frac{e^{-T/\sigma_{i}^{2}}}{\prod_{\substack{j=1\\j\neq i}}^{k} (1 - \sigma_{j}^{2}/\sigma_{i}^{2})}$$

For a given P_{FA} the threshold T can be computed from the above equation using the Newton-Raphson iterative technique with the appropriate σ_i^2 for $H_{\tilde{U}}$ condition and $P_{(T)} = P_{FA}$.

1

٠

Appendix C

CONSTRAINED OPTIMIZATION OF S/C

The constrained optimization problem is as follows. Given the target and clutter convariance matrices K_{YT} and K_{YC} , find the optimum W that maximizes the signal to clutter ratio defined by

$$S/C \Delta \frac{W^* K_{YT} W}{W^* K_{YC} W}$$
(1)

where W is a N x1 complex column vector,

* denotes complex conjugate transpose and K_{YT} , K_{YC} are both positive definite hermitian matrices.

This problem is equivalent to maximization of

$$\mathbf{W}^*\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{Y}\mathbf{T}}\mathbf{W} \tag{2}$$

subject to the constraint

TEXTED TOUL COUNTRY NOT SEVEN ADDITION

AND YOUR

A OF STUDY SALVAN

ANTELNING INVERTIAL

$$W^* K_{YC} \tilde{W} = 1 \tag{3}$$

Let λ be the Lagrange multiplier and define F(w) as

$$F(\mathbf{w}) = \mathbf{W}^* \mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{Y}\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{W} - \lambda \left(\mathbf{W}^* \mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{Y}\mathbf{C}} \mathbf{W} - 1 \right)$$
(4)

In order to use the Lagrange multiplier for maximizing F(w), both real scalar functions $W^*K_{YT}W$ and $W^*K_{YC}W$ must be differentiable with respect to W which is complex. Applying the Cauchy-Riemann Equations to test for differentiability, the test fails and it is concluded that the scalar functions are nowhere differentiable in C^N (complex N dimensional space). An alternate approach is to solve the differentiation problems in real space R^{2N} .

Let
$$W = X + jY$$
 (5a)

$$K_{YT} = \operatorname{Re} \left[K_{YT} \right] + j \operatorname{Im} \left[K_{YT} \right]$$
(5b)

$$K_{YC} = \text{Re} \{K_{YC}\} + j \ln \{K_{YC}\}$$
 (5c)

C-1

For any hermitian matrix M we have

$$M = \operatorname{Re}[M] + j I_m[M]$$

$$\operatorname{Re}[M] = (\operatorname{Re}[M])^T, I_m[M] = -(I_m[M])^T$$

where superscript T denotes tranpose.

Therefore. W*MW can be rewritten as

ura esemenyesenedesenedeviketika in terenderingen interenden förste sämteren kanten från en en en den er er er

Territorested in Visio 250 Nichter and Address Address

2

$$W^*M^{W} = X^T Re[M]X + Y^T Re[M]Y + Y^T I_m[M]X - X^T I_m[M]Y$$

+j(X^TRe[M]Y - Y^TRe[M]X ÷ X^T I_m[M]X + Y_T I_m[M]Y)
= X^T Re[M]X + Y^T Re[M]Y + Y^T I_m[M]X - X^T I_m[M]Y
= Re[W^*MW] (6)

and a state of the state

......

A The second sec

erent

Note that

$$X^{T}\tilde{\kappa}e_{1}MY = (X^{T}Re_{1}MY)^{T} = (Re_{1}MY)^{T}(X^{T})^{T} = Y^{T}Re_{1}MX$$

and

$$X^{T}I_{m}[M] X = (X^{T}I_{m}[M]X)^{T} = (I_{m}[M]X)^{T} (X^{T})^{T} = X^{T}(-I_{m}[M])X = 0$$

W*MW can now be expressed as follows

$$\mathbf{W}^*\mathbf{M}\mathbf{W} = (\mathbf{X}^{\mathsf{T}}, \mathbf{Y}^{\mathsf{T}}, \begin{bmatrix} \operatorname{Re}[\mathbf{M}] - \mathbf{i}_{\mathsf{m}}[\mathbf{M}] \\ \mathbf{i}_{\mathsf{m}}[\mathbf{M}] & \operatorname{Re}(\mathcal{A}) \end{bmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{X} \\ \mathbf{Y} \end{pmatrix} = (\mathbf{X}^{\mathsf{T}}, \mathbf{Y}^{\mathsf{T}}) \operatorname{M}_{1} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{X} \\ \mathbf{Y} \end{pmatrix}$$
(7)

where M_{1} is a positive definite symmetric real matrix.

Now we introduce the gradient operator $\nabla_{\mathbf{W}}$ defined as

$$\nabla_{\mathbf{W}} \Delta \left(\frac{\partial}{\partial x_1}, \frac{\partial}{\partial x_2}, \dots, \frac{\partial}{\partial x_N}, \frac{\partial}{\partial x_1}, \frac{\partial}{\partial x_2}, \dots, \frac{\partial}{\partial x_N} \right)$$
(8)

$$\nabla_{\mathbf{W}}\begin{pmatrix}\mathbf{X}\\\mathbf{Y}\end{pmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{\partial X_{1}}{\partial X_{1}} \cdot \frac{\partial X_{1}}{\partial X_{2}} \cdot \cdots \cdot \frac{\partial X_{1}}{\partial X_{N}} \cdot \frac{\partial X_{1}}{\partial Y_{1}} \cdot \cdots \cdot \frac{\partial X_{1}}{\partial Y_{N}} \\ \frac{\partial X_{2}}{\partial X_{1}} \cdot \cdots \cdot \frac{\partial X_{N}}{\partial X_{1}} & \frac{\partial Y_{N}}{\partial X_{1}} \\ \frac{\partial Y_{1}}{\partial X_{1}} \cdot \cdots \cdot \frac{\partial Y_{N}}{\partial X_{N}} & \frac{\partial Y_{N}}{\partial Y_{N}} \end{bmatrix}^{T} = 1 \quad (9)$$

inter a si

With the work of the statistic the statistic of the stati

** <u>**</u> *** ***

يت ال

Then we have

ata in 11 and 11 th Annual Taylor and a state of the Long of the L

SCHOLDE SCHADE

$$\nabla_{\mathbf{W}}(\mathbf{W}^*\mathbf{M}\mathbf{W}) = \nabla_{\mathbf{W}} \begin{bmatrix} (\mathbf{X}^{\mathrm{T}}, \mathbf{Y}^{\mathrm{T}})\mathbf{M}_{1} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{X} \\ \mathbf{Y} \end{pmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$$
$$= 2 \begin{bmatrix} \nabla_{\mathbf{W}} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{X} \\ \mathbf{Y} \end{pmatrix}^{\mathrm{T}} \mathbf{M}_{1} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{X} \\ \mathbf{Y} \end{pmatrix}$$
$$= 2\mathbf{M}_{1} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{X} \\ \mathbf{Y} \end{pmatrix}$$
(10)

To find the W that gives the extremes (min and max) of F(w) we set

$$\nabla_{\mathbf{W}} \mathbf{F}(\mathbf{W}) = \mathbf{0} \tag{11}$$



That is, from Equations (7) and (10)

$$\nabla_{\mathbf{W}} \mathbf{F}_{\{\mathbf{W}\}} = \nabla_{\mathbf{W}} [\mathbf{W}^* \mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YT}} \mathbf{W} - \lambda (\mathbf{W}^* \mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YC}} \mathbf{W} - 1)]$$

= 2
$$\begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{R} \mathbf{e} [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YT}}] & -\mathbf{I}_m [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YT}}] \\ \mathbf{i}_m [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YT}}] & \mathbf{R} \mathbf{e} [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YT}}] \end{bmatrix} - \lambda \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{R} \mathbf{e} [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YC}}] & -\mathbf{I}_m [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YC}}] \\ \mathbf{i}_m [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YT}}] & \mathbf{R} \mathbf{e} [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YT}}] \end{bmatrix} - \lambda \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{R} \mathbf{e} [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YC}}] & -\mathbf{I}_m [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YC}}] \\ \mathbf{i}_m [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YC}}] & \mathbf{R} \mathbf{e} [\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{YC}}] \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{X} \\ \mathbf{Y} \end{pmatrix} = \mathbf{0} \quad (12)$$

Equation (12) is equivalent to two simultaneous equations set to zero

$$(\operatorname{Re}[K_{YT}] - \lambda \operatorname{Re}[K_{YC}]) X - (I_m[K_{YT}] - \lambda I_m[K_{YC}]) Y = 0$$
(13a)

A diversion

$$(I_{m}[K_{YT}] - \lambda!_{m}[K_{YC}]) X + (Re[K_{YT}] - \lambda Re[K_{YC}]) Y = 0$$
(13b)

Therefore, we can express the two simultaneous equations into one as follows

$$(\operatorname{Re}[K_{YT}] - \lambda \operatorname{Re}[K_{YC}])X + j(I_m[K_{YT}] - \lambda J_m[K_{YC}] \neq jY)$$

+j[(I_m[K_{YT}] - \lambda I_m[K_{YC}])X + (\operatorname{Re}[K_{YT}] - \lambda \operatorname{Re}[K_{YC}])Y] = 0 (14)

cr equivalently

$$\frac{[K_{YT}] - \lambda Re[K_{YT}] + j(l_m[K_{YT}] - \lambda l_m]K_{YT}]}{[K_{YT} - \lambda K_{YC}]} + [X + iY]$$
(15)
= [K_{YT} - \lambda K_{YC}] = 0

Thus.

AVAUCENTSREEMENTANA AVAN

SEMENTINE SAMTHED MICHAEM PROVINCE

$$\nabla_{\mathbf{W}} F(\mathbf{w}) = 2 \left(K_{\mathbf{YT}} - \lambda K_{\mathbf{YC}} \right) \cdot \mathbf{W} = 0 \tag{16}$$

The solution to $(K_{YT} - \lambda K_{YC}) \cdot W = 0$ can be obtained using the simultaneous diagonalization of two hermitian matrices discussed in Appendix D.

It then follows that there are N such extreme values λ_i and transformation vectors W_i (equals ϕ_i in Appendix D) that satisfies Equation (16) as given below

$$W_{i}^{*} K_{YT} W_{i}^{*} = \lambda_{i}^{*}$$

 $W_{i}^{*} K_{YC} W_{i}^{*} = 1$ (17)

C-*

Substituting Equation (17) into Equation (1) yields

$$(S/C)_{i} = \frac{W_{i}^{*}K_{YT}W_{i}}{W_{i}^{*}K_{YC}W_{i}} = \lambda_{i}$$

and

· · · · · · · ·

1

4

 $\underset{W_i}{\overset{Max(S/C)}{\overset{=}}} \lambda_{\max}$

Hence, by selecting the largest eigenvalue $\lambda_i (= \lambda_{max})$ and the corresponding transformation vector $W_i (= W_{opt})$, then (S/C) is maximized over all W satisfying the constraint.

And the second second second

لارد المسلمات الأراكية المراكية المراكية المراكية الألالية المراكية المراكية المراكية المراكية المراكية المراكية

SIMULTANEOUS DIAGONALIZATION OF TWO COVARIANCE MATRICES

Let A and B be the two complex NXN covariance (positive definite and hermitian) matrices.

We show that the two covariance matrices A and B can be simultaneously reduced to a diagonal form by a NXN matrix ϕ such that,

$$\phi^* \mathbf{B} \phi = \Lambda$$

$$\phi^* \mathbf{A} \phi = \mathbf{I}$$
(1)

where A is a NXN diagonal matrix whose elements are real and I is a NXN identity matrix.

The columns of ϕ are the eigenvectors ϕ_i satisfying

$$(\mathbf{B} - \lambda_i \mathbf{A})\phi_i = 0 \tag{2}$$

where the λ_i are the eigenvalues of the matrix equation

$$|\mathbf{B} - \lambda \mathbf{A}| = 0 \tag{3}$$

where | • | denotes determinant of a matrix.

Simultaneous diagonalization of the matrices are performed in two steps. The first step is to diagonalize matrix A, that is,

$$W^*AW = \Omega \tag{4}$$

The columns of W are the eigenvectors wi satisfying

$$\mathbf{A} \cdot \mathbf{w}_{\mathbf{i}} = \omega_{\mathbf{i}} \mathbf{w}_{\mathbf{i}} \qquad \mathbf{i} = 1, \dots, \mathbf{N}$$
 (5)

where ω_i are elements of the diagonal matrix Ω and the eigenvalues of the matrix equation

$$|\mathbf{A} - \boldsymbol{\omega}\mathbf{i}| = 0 \tag{6}$$

Note that A is hermitian and thus Ω is real and W is a unitary matrix, i.e.,

$$W^*W = W^{-1}W = 1$$
 (?)

From Equation (4),

£

A DO VULVING NOV

Sheffm. Oly-NHAME

kraternaten hendernationer folgingen af restriction

$$\mathbf{A} = \mathbf{W} \mathbf{\Omega} \mathbf{W}^* \tag{8}$$

D-1

Since A is hermitian, the eigenvalues ω_j are real and thus,

$$\Omega = \Omega^{\frac{1}{2}} \cdot \Omega^{\frac{1}{2}}$$
⁽⁹⁾

Now A can be rewritten as

$$\mathbf{A} = \mathbf{W} \cdot \boldsymbol{\Omega}^{\nu_2} \cdot \boldsymbol{\Omega}^{\nu_2} \cdot \mathbf{W}^* \tag{10}$$

and

200000

n sen na kanan na manan kanan ka

elisystemunoponening

$$\Omega^{-\frac{i_2}{2}} \cdot W^* \cdot \mathbf{A} \cdot W \cdot \Omega^{-\frac{i_2}{2}} = 1$$
(11)

Substituting Equation (10) into Equation (3) yields

$$|\mathbf{B} - \lambda \mathbf{A}| = |\mathbf{B} - \lambda (\mathbf{W} \Omega^{\frac{12}{2}} \cdot \Omega^{\frac{12}{2}} \mathbf{W}^*)|$$

= $|\mathbf{W} \Omega^{\frac{12}{2}} (\Omega^{-\frac{12}{2}} \mathbf{W}^* \mathbf{B} \cdot \mathbf{W} \Omega^{-\frac{12}{2}} - \lambda \mathbf{I}) \Omega^{\frac{12}{2}} \mathbf{W}^*|$
= $|\mathbf{W} \Omega^{\frac{12}{2}}| \cdot |\Omega^{-\frac{12}{2}} \mathbf{W}^* \mathbf{B} \cdot \mathbf{W} \Omega^{-\frac{12}{2}} - \lambda \mathbf{I}| \cdot |\Omega^{\frac{12}{2}} \mathbf{W}^*|$ (12)
= 0

Both $|W\Omega^{1_2}|$ and $|\Omega^{1_2}W^*|$ are non-zero hence

$$\left[\Omega^{-1/2} \mathbf{W}^* \mathbf{B} \mathbf{W} \Omega^{-1/2} - \lambda \mathbf{I}\right] = 0 \tag{13}$$

Let

$$\mathbf{K} = \boldsymbol{\Omega}^{-1} \mathbf{W}^* \cdot \mathbf{B} \cdot \mathbf{W} \boldsymbol{\Omega}^{-1} \mathbf{\Omega}^*$$
(14)

Note that K is also hermitian.

The second step is to diagonalize K. The same procedure as the diagonalization of matrix A is used.

$$V^*KV = \Lambda \tag{15}$$

where the columns of the unitary matrix V are the sigenvectors \boldsymbol{v}_{j} satisfying

$$K v_i = \lambda_i v_i \qquad \qquad \vdots = 1, \dots, N \qquad (16)$$

and $\boldsymbol{\lambda}_{j}$ are the eigenvalues of the matrix equation

$$|\mathbf{K} - \mathbf{M}| = 0 \tag{17}$$

S. Frank

Substituting K from Equation (14) into Equation (15), we have,

$$V^* \Omega^{-1/2} W^* B W + \Omega^{-1/2} V = \Lambda$$
(18)

Premultiply and postmultiply Equation (11) by V* and V, respectively.

$$V^* \Omega^{-1} W^* A W \Omega^{-1} V = V^* V = 1$$
 (19)

The last equality in Equation (19) is due to the property of a unitary matrix.

Defining the matrix operator ϕ as follows

$$\phi = W \Omega^{-\frac{1}{2}} V \tag{20}$$

Then Equations (18) and (19) yield

E

$$\phi^* \mathbf{A} \phi = \mathbf{i}$$
(21)

Appendix E

BHATTACHARYYA DISTANCE B FOR GAUSSIAN DENSITIES

It is assumed that the conditional probability densities under the two hypotheses HQ and H1 are zero mean Gaussian. It is noted that the random variable Z is complex and the real and imaginary components are independently zero mean Gaussian. Hence, the waveform is described in terms of Rayleigh distributed amplitude (envelope) and uniformly distributed phase.

The Gaussian statistical representation is a reasonable one for chaff as well as for targets of the Swerling I and II class where the target amplitude iluctuation is described by a Rayleigh distribution.

Let the two conditional probability densities p(Z | H0) and p(Z | H1) be zero mean Gaussian densities under the two hypotheses H0 and H1. The zero mean Gaussian densities densities are [Helstrom 1968]

$$p(Z \mid H0) = \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} \cdot \frac{|K_{Z0}|^{\frac{1}{2}}}{|K_{Z0}|^{\frac{1}{2}}} \cdot exp\left[-\frac{Z^{*}K_{Z0}^{-1}Z}{2}\right]$$
(1)

REAL STREAM REAL PRODUCTION OF THE CONTRACT OF THE STREAM OF THE STREAM OF THE STREAM OF THE STREAM OF THE STRE

$$p(Z | H1) = \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} | K_{Z1} |^{\frac{1}{2}} \cdot exp\left[-\frac{Z^{*}K_{Z1}^{-1}Z}{2}\right]$$
(2)

where K_{Z0} , K_{Z1} are the kXk covariance matrices of H0 and H1.

ALLERIZ CANAL WATER DAVIES YO MALAN

HUMA KUMAKUMANA MANAKAN TARAKAMAN ATAMA ANG MANA PERIMATA PERIMATA PERIMANAN MANAKANAN

Note that [1] denotes the absolute value of the determinant of a matrix.

Substituting Equations (1) and (2) into the integrand of Equation (3-34) in Section 3, the integrand becomes

$$I(Z) = [p(Z;iH) \cdot p(Z|H)]^{\frac{12}{2}} = \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k} |K_{Z1}|^{\frac{12}{2}} |K_{Z0}|^{\frac{12}{2}}} \cdot exp\left[-\frac{1}{2}Z^{*}\left(\frac{K_{Z0}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1}}{2}\right)_{Z}\right] (3)$$

E-1

and evaluation of J using Equation (3) yields

21.10

any many menta distriction with

na sunteneteri di filita von chuile fell

$$S = \int_{\Omega} I(Z) dZ = \frac{\left| \frac{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{-1}}{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{\frac{1}{1}}}{\int_{\Omega} \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} \left| \frac{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{-1}}{(2\pi)^{k}} \right|^{\frac{1}{k}}} + \exp\left[-\frac{1}{k_{Z0}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right]^{\frac{1}{1}}}{\int_{\Omega} \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} \left| \frac{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{-1}}{\int_{\Omega} \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} \left| \frac{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{-1}}{\int_{\Omega} \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} \left| \frac{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{-1}}{\int_{\Omega} \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} \left| \frac{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{\frac{1}{1}}}{\int_{\Omega} \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} \left| \frac{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{\frac{1}{1}}}}{\int_{\Omega} \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} \left| \frac{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{\frac{1}{1}}}}}{\int_{\Omega} \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} \left| \frac{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{\frac{1}{1}}}}{\int_{\Omega} \frac{1}{(2\pi)^{k}} \left| \frac{K_{ZO}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1} \right|^{\frac{1}{1}}}}}} \right|^{\frac{1}{1}}}}$$

The term in the numerator of Equation (4) $(K_{Z0}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1})$ can be rewritten as

and a substitute to reach a second

$$(K_{Z0}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1}) = K_{Z0}^{-1} (I + K_{Z0} K_{Z1}^{-1}) = K_{Z0}^{-1} (K_{Z1} + K_{Z0}) K_{Z1}^{-1}$$

Then, the determinant of $(K_{Z0}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1})$ becomes

$$|K_{Z0}^{-1} + K_{Z1}^{-1}| = |K_{Z0}^{-1} (K_{Z1} + K_{Z0}) K_{Z1}^{-1}| = |K_{Z0}^{-1} \cdot |K_{Z1} + K_{Z0}| \cdot |K_{Z1}^{-1}|$$
(5)

Hence, substituting .quation (5) into Equation (4) yields

$$J = \left| \frac{K_{Z0} + K_{Z1}}{2} \right|^{-1} \cdot |K_{Z0}|^{\frac{1}{2}} \cdot |K_{Z1}|^{\frac{1}{2}}$$
(6)

The Bhattacharyy2 distance B is given by

$$= - \ln J = - \ln \left[\left| \frac{K_{Z0} + K_{Z1}}{2} \right|^{-1} \cdot |K_{Z0}|^{\frac{1}{2}} \cdot |K_{Z1}|^{\frac{1}{2}} \right]$$
$$= \ln \left[\frac{|K_{Z0} + K_{Z1}|}{2^{k} |K_{Z0}|^{\frac{1}{2}} \cdot |K_{Z1}|^{\frac{1}{2}}} \right]$$
(7)

as shown in Equation (3-35).

B

Equation (7) can be further rewritten as

$$B = \frac{1}{2} \ln \frac{|K_{Z0} + K_{Z1}|^2}{|K_{Z0}| \cdot |K_{Z1}|} + \frac{1}{2} \ln \frac{1}{4}$$
(8)

うちょうちょう

In Equation (3-36) K_{Z1} and K_{Z0} are given by

$$K_{Z1} = W F_{yT} W^* + W K_{yc} W^*$$
(9)

$$\mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{Z}\mathbf{0}} = \mathbf{W} \mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{V}\mathbf{C}} \mathbf{W}^* \tag{10}$$

Substituting $K_{ZO} \approx W K_{yc} W^*$ for A and $W K_{yT} W^*$ for B in Appendix D, it is shown that there exists a coordinate transformation matrix ϕ such that

$$\phi^* \mathbf{B} \phi = \phi^* (\mathbf{W} \mathbf{K}_{\mathbf{v} \mathbf{T}} \mathbf{W}^*) \phi = \Lambda \tag{11}$$

$$\phi^* A \phi \approx \phi^* (W K_{vc} W^*) \phi = i$$
(12)

Let $Z = \phi z$

sty and onterstory of itestal alteration

With this coordinate transformation, we get

$$Z^*K_{Z1}Z = Z^*W K_{yT} W^*Z = z^* \phi^*W K_{yT} W^* \phi_2 = z^* \Lambda z$$
 (13)

$$Z^*K_{Z0}Z = Z^*WK_{yc}W^*Z = z^*\phi^*WK_{yc}W^*\phi z = z^*Iz$$
 (14)

Substituting Equations (13) and (14) into Equations (1) and (2),

$$K_{z1} = \Lambda + i \tag{15}$$

$$K_{z0} = 1$$
 (16)

Substituting Equations (15) and (16) into Equation (18) yields

$$B = \frac{1}{2} \ln \left[\frac{k(\Lambda + 1) + 1!^2}{\Lambda + 1} \right]$$

= $\frac{1}{2} \ln \frac{i(\Lambda + 2i!^2)}{i(\Lambda + 1!)} + \frac{k}{2} \ln \frac{1}{4}$ (17)



A is a diagonal matrix whose elements are the eigenvalues λi , i = 1, ..., k. Therefore the determinants of (A + 2!) and (A + 1) can be expressed in the product form as follows

$$|A + 2I| = \prod_{i=1}^{k} (\lambda_i + 2)$$
(18)

$$|A + 1| = \prod_{i=1}^{k} (\lambda_i + 1)$$
 (1^c)

Finally we obtain the desired result

artificessing and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second

Wahter Vision - Interna

Lange L

$$B = \frac{1}{22} \ln \left[\frac{\frac{k}{11}}{\frac{1}{k}} - \frac{\lambda_{1} + 2}{\lambda_{1} + 1} \right] + \frac{k}{2} \ln \frac{1}{2}$$

$$= \frac{1}{22} \frac{\frac{k}{11}}{\frac{1}{11}} \ln \left[\frac{(\lambda_{1} + 2)^{2}}{(\lambda_{1} + 1)} \right] + \frac{k}{2} \ln \frac{1}{2}$$

$$= \frac{1}{22} \frac{\frac{k}{11}}{\frac{1}{11}} \ln \left[\frac{(\lambda_{1} + 2)^{2}}{(\lambda_{1} + 1)} \right] + \frac{1}{\lambda_{1} + 1} + 2 = \frac{1}{2} + \frac{k}{2} \ln \frac{1}{2}$$

$$= \frac{1}{22} \frac{\frac{k}{11}}{\frac{1}{11}} \ln \left[(\lambda_{1} + 1) + \frac{1}{\lambda_{1} + 1} + 2 \right] + \frac{k}{2} \ln \frac{1}{2} \ln \frac{1}{2}$$
(20)

Equation (20) is the result shown in Equation (3-37) in Section 3.

Ref: Helstrom, C.W. "Statistical Theory of Signal Detection," Appendix D. Pergamon Press, 1968

Appendix F

AUTOREGRESSIVE MODELING

The Autoregressive Process

Without lack of generality we consider a scalar random process u_1 with zero mean and variance σ_u^2 . A second process $\{X_t\}$ is defined to be an autoregressive process (AR) of order m if

$$X_{t} = \alpha_{1} X_{t-1} + \ldots + \alpha_{m} X_{t-m} + u_{t}$$
(1)

For the first order case, i.e., m = 1, we have

$$X_t = \alpha_1 X_{t-1} + u_t \tag{2}$$

Therefore by successive substitution

$$X_t = \alpha_1^2 [\alpha_1 X_{t-3} + u_{t-2}] + \alpha_1 u_{t-1} + u_{t-1}$$

Then X_t can be expressed as

$$X_{t} = u_{t} + \alpha_{1} u_{t-1} + \alpha_{1}^{2} u_{t-2} + \dots$$

That is, X_t is expressible as an infinite order moving average process.

For the general order case we define the operator

$$B^k X_t = X_{t-k}$$
 for all k

Then Equation (1) becomes

$$[1-\alpha, 3-\ldots-\alpha_m B^m] X_t = u_t$$

Set

uo. doikudhitdh. 4440. hononunuurinno)

ANUW SOLVARIA

$$\hat{n}(B) = [1 - \alpha_m B^m]^{-1}$$
(3)

$$= \mathbf{I} + \hat{\boldsymbol{p}}_{\mathbf{I}} \mathbf{B} + \ldots + \boldsymbol{\beta}_{\mathbf{m}} \mathbf{B}^{\mathbf{m}} + \ldots \text{ (say)}$$
(4)



We find

AN PERSON AN RECENT OF VALUES OF A REPORT OF A

jakutakutakutan taun auta kendutan tauna taun kutakun kutakun kutaku kutaku kuta kuta kuta kuta ka ku

$$X_{t} = f(B) u_{t}$$
(5)

SALAN WALAN BANKARING ARTHR

It then follows that E X_t = 0 and the variance is finite as soon as $\Sigma \beta_i^2$ is convergent.

Yule-Walker Equations

Let us assume the process to be stationary. Then multiplying Equation (1) by X_{1-k} and taking the expectation, we find for each k>0:

$$\zeta(k) = \alpha_1 \zeta(k-1) + \ldots + \alpha_m \zeta(k-m)$$
(6)

where ζ is the autocorrelation function of the process. The set of Equation (6) is the well known Yule-Walker equations.

The Yule-Walker equations are particularly useful in estimating parameters of an AR process, that is, to estimate the parameters $\alpha_1 \ldots \alpha_m$, given the observations $X_1 \ldots X_2 \ldots X_N$, (say) of the process $\{X_t\}$. It is evident from Equation (6) that we can solve for the α_j 's by substituting the sample autocorrelation functions into the first m Yule-W-lker equations. Let us next consider two recursive methods of solving for the coefficients of the AR process; one for the scalar (Durbin's Method) case and the other for the vector case.

Durbin's Scalar Recursive Algorithm

In fitting a stochastic (stationary) process with an autoregressive process, the order of the process N must be decided. The criteria may be the least squares fitness to the model, where the mean squared error terminates the process when it becomes smaller than some predetermined threshold.

The conventional method of solving for the coefficients is to form N simultaneous Yule-Walker equations and solve for the A_i 's by matrix inversion. However, with this method, each time the order of the AR process is increased, an NXN matrix inversion is required. A more efficient method is to use the Durbin's Recursive Algorithm described below.

The Algorithm

Given the N-1 coefficients $(A_{N-1,1}, \ldots, A_{N-1,N-1})$ for the N-1 order AR process, the N coefficients $(A_{N,1}, \ldots, A_{N,N})$ of the Nth order AR process is obtained from the two recursive equations.

$$\alpha_{NN} = \frac{\rho_N - \widetilde{A}_{N-1}}{\rho_0 - \widetilde{A}_{N-1}} \cdot \frac{R_{-(N-1)}}{R_{N-1}}$$
(7)

$$A_{N} = \begin{pmatrix} A_{N-1} \\ 0 \end{pmatrix} - \alpha_{NN} \begin{pmatrix} A_{(N-1)} \\ -1 \end{pmatrix}$$
(5)

e deres e 11e - ar haveatere anne oar de res o er er al bride. Die beitzelektigtelekteren 1944

where

arkiti bretek

sava berrahir zvinstrukty ki Huzardi

$$\widetilde{\mathbf{A}}_{\mathbf{N}} = (\alpha_{\mathbf{N}1}, \alpha_{\mathbf{N}2}, \dots, \alpha_{\mathbf{N}N})$$

$$\widetilde{\mathbf{A}}_{-\mathbf{N}} = (\alpha_{\mathbf{N}N}, \alpha_{\mathbf{N}N-1}, \dots, \alpha_{\mathbf{N}N})$$

$$\widetilde{\mathbf{R}}_{\mathbf{N}} = (\rho_1, \rho_2, \dots, \rho_N)$$

$$\widetilde{\mathbf{R}}_{-\mathbf{N}} = (\rho_N, \rho_{N-1}, \dots, \rho_1)$$

~ denotes transpose

The mean square error of the Nth order AR process is

$$\sigma_{N}^{2} = \rho_{0} - A_{N} - R_{N} = \rho_{0} \sum_{i=1}^{N} a_{Ni} p_{i} = \sigma_{N-1}^{2} (1 - \alpha_{NN}^{2})$$
(2)

The initial conditions are

$$N = 1, \quad \alpha_{1,1} = \rho_1 / \rho_0, \quad \sigma_1^2 = \rho_0 - (\rho_1^2 / \rho_0)$$

Proof

For the N-1th order AR process, the matrix equation is given by

=	P ₀	PN-2		^a N-1, 1
	•			•
Ĺ	-			•
[]	•			•
	•	•		
	PN-2	^{هر}		"N-1,N-1
	=	$= \begin{cases} P_0 \\ \cdot \\ \cdot \\ \cdot \\ \cdot \\ \cdot \\ \cdot \\ P_{N-2} \end{cases}$	$= \begin{cases} P_0 & P_{N-2} \\ \vdots \\ \vdots \\ \vdots \\ \vdots \\ \vdots \\ P_{N-2} & P_0 \end{cases}$	$= \begin{cases} \rho_{0} & \rho_{N-2} \\ . & . \\ . & . \\ . & . \\ \rho_{N-2} & \rho_{0} \end{cases}$

or in brief notation

$$R_{N-1} = P_{N-1} \cdot A_{N-1} \text{ or } R_{-(N-1)} = P_{N-1} A_{-(N-1)}$$
(10)

194 E.

I want water and make

-

where the coefficients of A_{N-1} are known. Note that P matrix is positive definite.

The matrix form of the Nth order Process is thus given by

$$R_{N} = P_{N} + A_{N} \tag{11}$$

This can be rewritten as

$$\begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{R}_{\mathbf{N}-\mathbf{i}} \\ \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{N}} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{N}-\mathbf{i}} & \mathbf{R}_{-(\mathbf{N}-\mathbf{i})} \\ \mathbf{\tilde{R}}_{-(\mathbf{N}-\mathbf{i})} & \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{0}} \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \underline{\mathbf{A}}_{\mathbf{N}} \\ \mathbf{\alpha}_{\mathbf{NN}} \end{pmatrix}$$

where

a what we want the set of the second

South the state of the state of the state

2

ł

$$\underline{\mathbf{A}}_{\mathbf{N}} \triangleq (\alpha_{\mathbf{N}1}, \ldots, \alpha_{\mathbf{N}, \mathbf{N}-1})$$

Then, we have

$$\mathbf{R}_{\mathbf{N}-1} = \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{N}-1} \cdot \underline{\mathbf{A}}_{\mathbf{N}} + \mathbf{R}_{-(\mathbf{N}-1)} \cdot \mathbf{a}_{\mathbf{N},\mathbf{N}}$$
(12)

$$\rho_{\rm N} = \widetilde{R}_{(N-1)} \underline{A}_{\rm N} + \alpha_{\rm N,N} \rho_0 \tag{13}$$

From Equation (13)

$$\alpha_{N,N}\rho_0 = \rho_N - \widetilde{\mathfrak{R}}_{-(N-1)} \cdot \underline{A}_N \tag{14}$$

From Equations (12 and 10)

$$\underline{A}_{N} = P_{N-1}^{-1} (R_{N-1} - R_{-(N-1)} \alpha_{N,N})$$

$$= A_{N-1} - \alpha_{N,N} P_{N-1}^{-1} R_{-(N-1)}$$

$$= A_{N-1} - \alpha_{N,N} A_{-(N-1)}$$
(15)

B	
æ :	-

Substituting Equation (15) into Equation (14) yields

$$\alpha_{N,N}\rho_0 = \rho_N - \widetilde{R}_{-(N-1)} \cdot A_{N-1} + \alpha_{N,N} \cdot \widetilde{R}_{-(N-1)} \cdot A_{-(N-1)}$$

and

ALVASA ALVASA

1.62.03

and the state of the state wat

$$\alpha_{N,N} = \frac{\rho_N - R_{-(N-1)} \cdot A_{N-1}}{\rho_0 - R_{-(N-1)} \cdot A_{(N-1)}} = \frac{\rho_N - A_{N-1} \cdot R_{-(N-1)}}{\rho_0 - A_{N-1} \cdot R_{N-1}}$$
(16)

From Equation (15) and $\alpha_{N,N}$, we form

$$\frac{\Lambda}{N} = A_{N-1} - \alpha_{N,N} \cdot A_{-(N-1)}$$
$$\alpha_{N,N} = 0 + \alpha_{N,N}$$

and it follows that

$$\mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{N}} = \begin{pmatrix} \underline{\mathbf{A}}_{\mathbf{N}} \\ \alpha_{\mathbf{N},\mathbf{N}} \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{N}-\mathbf{I}} \\ 0 \end{pmatrix} - \alpha_{\mathbf{N},\mathbf{N}} \begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{A}_{-(\mathbf{N}-\mathbf{I})} \\ -\mathbf{I} \end{pmatrix}$$
(17)

Equations (16) and (17) are the recursive equations of Equations (7 and 8). The mean squared error is obtained from

$$\sigma_{N}^{2} \stackrel{\Delta}{=} E[X(t) - \sum_{i=1}^{N} \alpha_{i}^{X(t-i)}]^{2} = E[Q(t) - \sum_{i=1}^{N} \alpha_{i}^{X(t-i)} \cdot \lambda(t)]$$

which yields

$$\sigma_{\rm N}^2 = \rho_{\rm G} - \sum_{i=1}^{\rm N} \alpha_i \, \rho_i \tag{18}$$

Hence

$$\sigma_{\rm N}^2 = \rho_0 - \widetilde{A}_{\rm N} \cdot R_{\rm N} \tag{19}$$

Substituting Equation (17) for A_N above yields

$$\sigma_{N}^{2} = \rho_{0} - \widetilde{A}_{N-1} R_{N-1} - \alpha_{N,N} \widetilde{A}_{-(N-1)} R_{N-1} + \alpha_{N,N} \rho_{N}$$

$$= \rho_{0} - \widetilde{A}_{N-1} P_{N-1} - \alpha_{N,N} (\rho_{N} - \widetilde{A}_{-(N-1)} \cdot R_{N-1})$$

$$= \rho_{0} - \widetilde{A}_{N-1} \cdot R_{N-1} - \alpha_{N,N} (\rho_{N} - \widetilde{A}_{N-1} \cdot R_{-(N-1)})$$

and from Equation (16)

$$\sigma_{N}^{2} = \rho_{0} - \widetilde{A}_{N-1} R_{N-1} - \alpha_{N,N}^{2} \cdot (\rho_{0} - \widetilde{A}_{N-1} R_{N-1})$$

= $(\rho_{0} - \widetilde{A}_{N-1} \cdot R_{N-1}) (1 - \alpha_{N,N}^{2})$
= $\sigma_{N-1}^{2} (1 - \alpha_{N,N}^{2})$ (20)

which is the result of Equation (9)

Matrix Recursive Algorithm

For the general case, the multivariate stochastic process can be modeled by a Vector autoregressive process Z(t)

Consider the following Nth order vector autoregressive process Z(t)

$$Z(t) = \sum_{i=1}^{N} A_{N,i} Z(t-i) + U(t)$$
(21)

where

grougurrandigerunderseurungerenderseurungereiterender herder gegenenderenderenderender herderenderenderenderende

З

 $\widetilde{Z}(t) = [z_1(t) \ z_2(t) \ \dots \ z_p(t)]$

 $A_{N,i}$ pxp matrix coefficients of the Nth order AR process.

U(t)px1 vector of independently distributed zero mean white noise process.

and

~ denotes transpose

The matrix coefficients A₁ can be computed from the matrix Yule-Walker equations

$$K_m = \sum_{i=1}^{N} A_{N,i} K_{m-i}$$
 $m = 1, ..., N$ (22)

where K_m is a covariance matrix (hermitian) given by

$$K_{m} = \frac{1}{L} \sum_{k=1}^{L-m} Z(n+k) \cdot Z^{*}(n) \qquad m = 0, 1, 2 \dots$$

$$K_{m} = K_{-m}^{*}$$

Superscript * denotes complex conjugate transpose

The mean squared error $\sum_{N=1}^{3}$ of the AR process may be obtained from Equation (21)

$$\sum_{N}^{a} = K_{0} - \sum_{i=1}^{N} A_{N,i} K_{i}$$
(23)

Real Process

The matrix recursive algorithm solving for the $A_{N,i}$ is derived below for a real valued multivariate stochastic process. For complex case, see the next subscrition on complex processes.

The mean squared error $\sum_{N=1}^{a}$ of Equation (23) combined with the N Yule-Walker Equations of Equation (22) can be expressed in matrix form as follows

$$\begin{bmatrix} I_{1} & -A_{N,1} & -A_{N,2} & \cdots & -A_{N,N} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} K_{0} & K_{1} & \cdots & K_{N} \\ K_{-1} & K_{0} & K_{N-1} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots \\ K_{-N} & K_{-(N-1)} & K_{0} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \sum_{N=0}^{2} & \cdots & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

or in brief notation

$$[1, -\underline{A}_N] \cdot K_N = \{\sum_{N=1}^{2} 0, \dots, 0\}$$
 (24)

For N+1th order, we pick an α_N such that

$$[1, -\underline{A}_{N}, 0] K_{N+1} = [\sum_{N}^{a} 0, \dots, 0, \alpha_{N}]$$
(25)
which is the representation of Equation (24) and

$$K_{N+1} - A_{N,1} K_N - A_{N,2} K_{N-1} - \dots - A_{N,N} K_1 - 0 \cdot K_0 = \alpha_N$$

or

the provident of the second state of the

NANA KANA KANA KANA

THE CONTRACTOR IN MUCH

stready cyast a second when the

$$a_{N} = K_{N+1} - \sum_{i=1}^{N} A_{N,i} \cdot K_{N+1}$$
 (26)

We note that if $\alpha_N = 0$, then $\underline{A_{N+1}} = (\underline{A_N}, 0)$ and the desired solution is obtained. If this does not happen, α_N must be forced to zero. In order to do this, we introduce the backward (adjoint) equation.

$$Z(t-N) = \sum_{i=1}^{N} B_{N,i} Z(t-N-i)$$

[0, -B_{N,N}, -B_{N,N-1}, ..., -B_{N,1}, 1] · K_{N+1} = [$\beta_{N,0}$, ..., 0, $\sum_{N=1}^{b}$]

or in brief notation

$$[0, -\underline{B}_{N}, 1] K_{N+1} = [\mathcal{G}_{N,0}, \cdots, 0, \Sigma_{N}^{b}]$$
(27)

which is a representation of

$$[-\underline{B}_{N}, 1] \cdot K_{N} = [0, \dots, 0, \sum_{N}^{b}]$$

and

$$\beta_{N} = K_{-(N+1)} - \sum_{i=1}^{N} B_{N,i} K_{i-N-1}$$
 (28)

We now form a weighted combination of Equations (25) and (27).

$$\{ [1, -\underline{A}_{N}, 0] + Q_{N}^{a} [0, -\underline{B}_{N}, 1] \} \rightarrow K_{N+1}$$

$$= \{ \sum_{N}^{a} + Q_{N}^{a} \beta_{N}, 0, \dots, 0, \omega_{N} + Q_{N}^{a} \sum_{N}^{b} \}$$

$$(29)$$

By setting the last element of the vector on the RHS

 $\alpha_{\rm N} + Q_{\rm N}^{\alpha} \sum_{\rm N}^{\rm b} = 0$

or

arada karakaran karakaran kukakaran dan dan dan karakaran kanakaran kanakaran karakaran karakaran kara dan kara

K-U Anterskiels (by Construction in the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state

Nonder Unternanzo

 $Q_{N}^{\alpha} = -\alpha_{N} \left[\sum_{N}^{b} \right]^{-1} = 0$ (30)

then we have the solution for \underline{A}_{N+1} in the form of Equation (24) for N provided we have

$$\underline{\underline{B}}_{N} \text{ and } \sum_{N}^{D} [1, -\underline{\underline{A}}_{N+1}] = [1, -\underline{\underline{A}}_{N}, 0] + Q_{N}^{\alpha} [0, -\underline{\underline{B}}_{N}, 1]$$
(31)

and

$$\sum_{N=1}^{a} = \sum_{N}^{a} + Q_{N}^{a} \hat{\beta}_{N}$$
(32)

In order to obtain the \underline{B}_N and \sum_{N}^{b} , we perform a similar operation as in Equation (29) as follows

$$\{\mathbf{i}\mathbf{0}, -\underline{\mathbf{B}}_{N}, \mathbf{1}\} + \mathbf{Q}_{N}^{b} [\mathbf{1}, -\underline{\mathbf{A}}_{N}, \mathbf{0}]\} \cdot \mathbf{K}_{N+1}$$
$$= [\beta_{N} + \mathbf{Q}_{N}^{b} \sum_{N}^{a}, \mathbf{0}, \dots, \mathbf{0}, \sum_{N}^{b} + \mathbf{Q}_{N}^{b} \alpha_{N}!$$
(33)

from which we get

 $\beta_{\rm N} + Q_{\rm N}^{\rm F} \sum_{\rm N}^{\rm a} = 0$

or

$$Q_{N}^{b} = -\beta_{N} \left[\sum_{N}^{a} \right]^{-1}$$
(34)

and it follows that

$$\begin{bmatrix} -\underline{B}_{N+1}, 1 \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0, -\underline{B}_{N}, 1 \end{bmatrix} + O_{N}^{p} \begin{bmatrix} 1, -\underline{A}_{N}, 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
(35)
$$\sum_{N+1}^{b} = \sum_{N}^{b} + O_{N}^{b} \alpha_{N}$$

The matrix recursive algorithm is stated as follows: Given $(\underline{A}_N; \sum_{N=1}^{a}; \alpha_N)$ and $(\underline{B}_N; \sum_{N=1}^{b}; \beta_N)$ for the Nth order AR process. $(\underline{A}_{N+1}; \sum_{N+1}^{a}; \alpha_{N+1})$ and $(\underline{B}_{N+1}; \sum_{N=1}^{b}; \beta_{N+1})$ for the N+1th iteration is obtained from the following matrix recursive equations

- 1a) $Q_N^a = -\alpha_N \left[\sum_{N=1}^{b} \right]^{-1}$
- 2a) $[1, -A_{N+1}] = [1, -A_N, 0] + Q_N^a \{0, -B_N, 1]$ 3a) $\sum_{N+1}^{a} = \sum_{N=N}^{a} + Q_N^a + \beta_N$ 4a) $\alpha_{N+1} = K_{N+2} - \sum_{i=1}^{N+1} A_{N+1,i} + K_{N+2-i}$ 1b) $Q_N^b = -\beta_N \{\sum_{N=1}^{a}\}^{-1}$ 2b) $[-B_{N+1}, 1] = [0, -B_N, 1] + Q_N^b \{1, -A_N, 0\}$ 3b) $\sum_{N+1}^{b} = \sum_{N=1}^{b} + Q_N^b + \alpha_N$ 4b) $\beta_{N+1} = K - (N+2) - \sum_{i=1}^{N+1} B_{N+1,i} + K_{i-N-2}$

The initial conditions are

Markantantinan'i Valici Pertekanakana jada Manifikanan

a sy wy land in a many a

$$\sum_{0}^{a} = K_{0} = \sum_{0}^{b} : \alpha_{0} = K_{1} \text{ and } \alpha_{0} = K_{1} \text{ and } \beta_{0} = K_{-1} = \widetilde{K}_{1}$$

we note that $\alpha_N = \widetilde{\beta_N}$, i.e., an adjoint relationship

Complex Process

In dealing with a complex random variable z = x + iy, we note that z is in fact comprised of bivariate random variables x, y, and hence a complex scalar stochastic process must be treated as a real vector of dimension two. For a complex N dimensional process, the multivariate dimension is 2N. non to be a construction of the state of the

As described earlier, in the process of generating an AR model, the matrix coefficients of A_i must be determined when the tochastic process is complex, special care must be taken in formulating the matrix equations.

Thus the following rule must be observed

 Given a NNN complex matrix M, decompose this matrix into the real still imaginary parts.

$$\mathbf{M} = \mathbf{R}_{p}[\mathbf{M}] \div \mathbf{i} \mathbf{I}_{p}[\mathbf{M}]$$

2) Define a 2NX2N real mainX M where

$$\underline{\mathbf{M}} = \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{R}_{e}(\mathbf{M}), \mathbf{I}_{m}(\mathbf{M}) \\ -\mathbf{I}_{m}(\mathbf{M}), \mathbf{R}_{e}(\mathbf{M}) \end{bmatrix}$$

3) Substitute \underline{M} for M

The complex form of the matrix Yule-Wilker Equation of Equation (22) can be rewritten as

$$\underline{K}_{m} = \sum_{i=1}^{N} \underline{A}_{N,i} + \underline{K}_{m-i}$$
$$K_{mi} = \sum_{i=1}^{N} \underline{A}_{N,i} + K_{mi}$$

can be rewritten as

WITH THE STATE AND SHOW THE STATE

an or on the second second second

$$\begin{split} & \mathcal{R}_{e}[K_{m}] + j I_{m}(K_{m}) = \sum_{i=1}^{N} \left(\mathcal{R}_{e}[A_{N,i}] + i I_{m}[A_{N,i}] \right) + \left(\mathcal{R}_{e}[K_{m-i}] + i I_{m}[K_{m-i}] \right) \\ & = \sum_{i=1}^{N} \left\{ \left(\mathcal{R}_{e}[A_{N,i}] + \mathcal{R}_{e}[K_{M-i}] - I_{m}[A_{N,i}] + I_{m}[K_{m-i}] \right) \right\} \\ & + j \left(I_{m}[A_{N,i}] + \mathcal{R}_{e}[K_{m-i}] + \mathcal{R}_{e}[A_{N,i}] + I_{m}[K_{m-i}] \right) \right\} \end{split}$$

and

:

No. of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s

distribution of the

.

$$\underline{K}_{m} = \sum_{i=1}^{N} \underline{A}_{N,i} \cdot \underline{K}_{m-i}$$

can also be rewritten as

$$\begin{bmatrix} R_{e}[K_{m}] \cdot I_{m}[K_{m}] \\ -I_{m}[K_{m}] \cdot R_{e}[K_{m}] \end{bmatrix} = \sum_{i=1}^{N} \begin{bmatrix} R_{e}[A_{N,i}] \cdot I_{m}[A_{N,i}] \\ -I_{m}[A_{N,i}] \cdot R_{e}[A_{N,i}] \end{bmatrix} \cdot \begin{bmatrix} R_{e}[K_{m\cdot i}] \cdot I_{m}[K_{m\cdot i}] \\ -I_{m}[K_{m\cdot i}] \cdot R_{e}[K_{m\cdot i}] \end{bmatrix}$$
$$= \sum_{i=1}^{N} \begin{bmatrix} R_{e}[A_{N,i} \cdot K_{m\cdot i}] \cdot I_{m}[A_{N,i} \cdot K_{m\cdot i}] \\ -I_{m}[A_{N,i} \cdot K_{m\cdot i}] \cdot R_{e}[A_{N,i} \cdot K_{m\cdot i}] \end{bmatrix}$$

and a state and a state of the

100 M 200 100

anna a antistera a sua air, antionai 2641 intransversioner after a ann

MISSION of

ŧ₳₽ŧ₳₽₽₩₽₽₩₽₽₩₽₽₩₽₽₩₽₽₩₽₽₩₽₽₩₽₽₩₽₽₩₽₽

Rome Air Development Center

RADC plans and executes research, development, test and selected acquisition programs in support of Command, Control Communications and Intelligence $\{C^3\}$ activities. Technical and engineering support within areas of technical competence is provided to ESD Program Offices (POs) and other ESD elements. The principal technical mission areas are communications, electromagnetic guidance and control, surveillance of ground and aerospace objects, intelligence data collection and handling, information system technology, ionospheric propagation, solid state sciences, microwave physics and electronic reliability, maintainability and convatibility.

YAYAYAYAYAYA

D.K.M. M. LUNING MANAN